SHENZHOU INTERNATIONAL
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

HilEEEEEIRBR28]

STOCK CODE 3 #m% : 2313

* For Identification only £33






B % Contents

10
16
41
54
80
88
100
102
103
104
106
107
110
111
220

REIEN

MBmE

NEIER

ERHmE

EEER RO
TEERME

Ry HeRERRE
EELRAEEEKBRREE
BEEgWmE

B E RS
RAEBEEKR
ReEEmKER
RAPBIRRR
RAERDEHPR
RERTRER

M FAR K

B 75 R B A
MBEEMBE

Corporate Profile

Financial Highlights

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management
Report of the Directors

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Financial Position

Notes to Financial Statements

Financial Information Summary



2

A RN
Corporate Profile

RMEREEZERARAT ([FMNEER]) &
HIMB AR (58 [AKE ) BB &AM
A — it RER - TEURT(OEM)T
REPRELE FRNHBM - RE-FT——
FEZZF-ZFPERRTERRRSN=
E-——FE_T-=FHhEHBMRELEIH
BRE AEERTELEOSHRZANE
BRELAECERTERELOLCESREE

fiL o

2N 55 (B A AE B B AT B BE O T AR BT B
EFE WRE M ERREMNTREE
MARBERESERKXIMR £ L8 FERK
BREBEHEMREFRIRKRE - RRAEE
8 T#162,000A ' BEEE®217EF 7K
BFEESEIT BRI ®250008 -

AEBXZEAEHBESERD  KERER
AXRE - ETEF B3 FUNIQLO - ADIDAS
NIKERPUMASBIR ML REEF - ERTE
WEAMBESHREDAREBETS-

AERHEBRERIZHEABEIHOER
Z-BHNERER_ZTRF+— AR E
BEAEBMAERIMBERAGER LM -AQA
DR A2313 - WK _E—FF=AN\H
RENABEGERE BEGESITERER
(HBM REEGEPEREHKHR =
T—MEANA BEMEBRREEEITEEI
B BRES - R /R5762 ¢

RoE—TFE T -=FHMNRFLEE (55
MBT) [2REF—TIHTERR-ZT—
TELE CBRTTEN) A &EF/ N E
ME] 2 — - BINBEBRER = K& AT
BRAZTE-——FEAEA LW AFI00E

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is the
largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacturer in China. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of highend
knitwear on an OEM basis. The Group was also the knitwear
garment manufacturing enterprise with the largest exporting
amount of knitwear and ranked first among PRC garment exporting
enterprises according to the 2011-2013 reports on the development
of China’s garment industry and the 2011-2013 annual reports on
China’s international trade in textiles and clothing.

The Group’s production base is located in Economic Technical
Development Zone of Ningbo and Vietnam, and strategically set up
garment factories in Quzhou and Anging of China and Cambodia.
The Group also established sales offices or branch offices in
Shanghai, Hong Kong and Osaka. The Group currently had over
62,000 employees and the area of the factories spans across
2,170,000 sg.m., which can produce various knitwear of over 250
million pieces per year.

The Group focuses on producing sports product, casual wear and
lingerie wear for the major international renowned clients including
UNIQLO, ADIDAS, NIKE, and PUMA. The production market is also
gradually extended from Japan to Asia Pacific, Europe and the US
market.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was
included in Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang Seng Composite
MiddleCap Index, all effective from 8 March 2010. In June 2014,
Shenzhou International issued convertible bond of HK$3.9 billion in
Hong Kong, of which the code is 5762.

From the year 2010 to the year 2013, Shenzhou International has
been named in the “Top 1000 Asian Companies” List of Yazhou
Zhoukan and during the year 2010, it has been recognised by
Forbes Asia as one of the “Best Under A Billion” Companies.
Shenzhou International was selected by Finet and QQ.COM as one
of the Top 100 HK Listed Companies 2012.

BRI B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Financial Highlights

BELIFTEMKER

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

BE+-A=t-HALEE/W+t=-A=t-AH

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-mE ZT-=F —2-CF —E——F —Z-%F
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
TEHRKEN Key Financial Information
(AR¥TR) (RMB’000)
HER Sales 11,131,532 10,047,217 8,937,578 9,043,442 6,719,172
BR TS B A1 FIB Profit before income tax 2,543,347 2,201,209 2,005,465 2,059,420 1,624,597
FEFE Profit for the year 2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847 1,272,645
ARFREREA Profit attributable to equity
FEG 1 holders of the Company 2,065,867 1,802,989 1,620,158 1,703,845 1,271,654
FRBEE Non-current assets 5,633,884 4,324,581 3,967,507 3,634,317 3,585,484
mBEE Current assets 10,309,144 6,992,693 5,927,902 4,915,242 3,839,971
nBEE Current liabilities 1,265,177 985,617 1,773,275 2,437,331 2,517,508
RBEEFE Net current assets 9,043,967 6,007,076 4,154,627 2,477,911 1,322,468
BEE Total assets 15,943,028 11,317,274 9,895,409 8,549,559 7,425,455
BEERTBDER Total assets less current liabilities 14,677,851 10,331,657 8,122,134 6,112,228 4,907,952
BiER Total equity 11,811,326 10,331,657 8,122,134 6,112,228 4,813,271
ReRBESSEN Cash and cash equivalents 1,428,074 2,609,050 2,144,405 1,029,596 519,017
FERBLER Key Financial ratios
EFIE(%) Gross profit margin (%) 29.0 28.3 28.5 28.8 29.9
FME X (%) Net profit margin (%) 18.6 18.0 18.1 18.9 18.9
FERBEILEO) Net gearing ratio (%) 12.6 TEAN/A THEAN/A 35 18.9
B E Current ratio 8.1 7.1 3.3 2.0 1.5
ERERER 2 BEH(R) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 49 50 55 45 41
FEZEEH(R) Inventory turnover period (days) 116 110 111 107 116
BT 3 - Notes:

1. FEABEBLHERZGFHEABEE (RITEXR 1.
masRER)NEReRE S SEYWRE loans plus convertible bonds), less cash and cash equivalents and total
Bmz o equity.

Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (bank

Annual Report 2014 4 R 3
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BRERENSMNEESR SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
PRODUCT CATEGORIES

BEt-A=t-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2013 2012 2011 2010
ARET % ARETRT % ARETR % ARETR
RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 % RMB'000

—2-=F —2-Cf —2—f —E-FF

%
%

REMR By products
EHE Sports 5,561,070 55.4 4,994,455 55.9 4,949,196 54,7 3,373,294
UNDE Casual 2,872,104 28.6 2,993,648 33.5 3,046,903 33.7 2,365,684
WKE Lingerie 1,378,932 13.7 701,766 7.8 799,391 8.8 740,586

Hi st Other knitting 235,111 2.3 247,709 2.8 247,952 2.8 239,608

50.2
36.2
11.0

3.6

HEBBE Total sales

10,047,217 100.0 ~ 8,937,578 100.0 9,043,442 1000 6,719,172

100.0

2.3% 2.8%

13.7%

28.6%

55.4%

61.4%

2.8% 3.6%

33.7% 35.2%

50.2%

1R EfRZEE Casual EBREE Sports AAREE Lingerie $t#& Other knitting

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR /A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Financial Highlights

BmBomomNEESEE SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION

HE+-A=t-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-QmE —T-=F —T--F —T——F —E-FF
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
AR®TR % AEBTR % ARETT % ARETT % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

Bmi5 By regions
B[R 8 & International sales
=W Japan 3,081,139 217.7 3,392,580 33.8 2,805,902 31.4 3,224,257 35.7 2,772,854 41.3
BN Europe 1,929,613 17.3 1744070 174 1849436 207 1949355  21.6 1,392,450  20.7
e us 1,300,040 11.7 900,013 8.9 727,913 8.1 516,420 5.7 439,591 6.5
HBER Other countries 2,333,311 21.0 2,101,090 20.9 1,778,979 19.9 1,428,093 156.8 760,347 11.3
BNHE Domestic sales 2,487,429 22.3 1,909,464 19.0 1,775,348 19.9 1,925,317 21.2 1,353,930 20.2
HERGE Total sales 11,131,532 100.0 10,047,217  100.0 8,937,578  100.0 9,043,442 100.0 6,719,172 100.0

21% 20.9% 19.9%

0,
11.7% 17.4% 8.9%

35.7%
11.3%

15.8%
6.5%

21.6% 20.7%

HE =X Other Countries A &M Europe HZK Japan

Annual Report 2014 4F # 5
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
FRMNERR EEIZER AR A A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Genxiang

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Genxiang

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chen Genxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Nomination Committee
Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)
Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BRI B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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ROBFETHRE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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www.shenzhouintl.com
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2313
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5762

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS
Allen & Overy

Lennon & Lawyers
Troutman Sanders

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

China Everbright Bank Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313

CONVERTIBLE BOND CODE
5762
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Chairman’s Statement

S 2% Ma Jianrong
# =€ = ¥ Chairman of the Board
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To All Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to announce the annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for 2014 for shareholders’
review.

In 2014, the operating environment for the Chinese textile and
garment industry remained under pressure. The labor costs in China
had increased substantially, the unfavorable trade policies of major
garment importing countries posed threats to Chinese enterprises,
while some of the developing countries in Southeast Asia, South
Asia and other regions were rising rapidly as strong competitors to
the Chinese textile and garment enterprises. Faced with the adverse
operating environment, the Group has adhered to the established
development strategies. By deepening its lean production
management, strengthening R&D and product innovations,
optimizing product structure and expediting the construction of
overseas production bases, the Group achieved promising operating
results. The international layout of the vertically-integrated operation
model is especially crucial for the Group to consolidate its value
chains from around the globe. Leveraging on the strengths in
management, technology and funding etc., the Group is rapidly
sharpening its competitive edges over its industrial rivals, laying a
solid foundation for the long-term development in the future. | would
like to take this opportunity to invite investors’ recognition of the
Group’s achievement, and to ask for their continuous support for the
Group’s business development strategies!

BRI B % 45 81 4% % 45 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group achieved
outstanding growth in revenue and operating results. Total sales
for the year amounted to approximately RMB11,131,532,000,
representing an increase of 10.8% when compared to 2013. For
the year ended 31 December 2014, the profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB2,065,867,000,
representing an increase of 14.6% as compared to the
RMB1,802,989,000 reported for the year ended 31 December
2013. Earnings per share amounted to RMB1.48. As of 31
December 2014, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB1,428,074,000.

In view of the strong business performance and financial position of
the Group, the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$1.00 per share (including a special dividend of HK$0.35 per
share), equivalent to approximately RMBO0.79 per share.

According to the statistics compiled by China Customs, the total
export value of China’s textile and garment products (including textile
yarns, fabrics and related products, as well as garments and apparel
accessories, similarly hereinafter) in 2014 was US$298.43 billion,
representing an increase of approximately 5.1% over the previous
year. The growth rate has moderated by approximately 6 percentage
points as compared to 2013. Out of the total export value, the
export value of textile products amounted to US$112.14 billion,
representing a year-on-year gain of approximately 4.9%; the garment
export volume rose by approximately 5.2% to US$186.28 billion on
a year-on-year basis. Among the major textile and garment export
markets, the export volume to the EU and the US have increased
year-on-year by 13.6% and 7.5% respectively; the export volume to
Japan has dropped by 9.1%, mainly due to the increasing market
shares of import from Southeast Asian countries, such as Vietnam
and Bangladesh, in Japan. As observed from the data of the past
five years, the market shares of China’s garment products in the
major import markets, including the EU, the US and Japan, had
far exceeded other countries. However, the market shares are on a
downward trend year after year.

Annual Report 2014 £ ¥
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The operating environment for the Chinese textile and garment
enterprises is still full of headwinds. Since 1 January 2015, the
EU has terminated the Generalized System of Preferences (GSP)
treatment on Chinese textile and garment products; RMB has
appreciated significantly against the Euro and the Japanese yen;
and the labor costs in Mainland China have continued to rise.
Major garment importing markets have been gradually shifting their
procurement focus from China to developing countries situated
mainly in Southeast Asia and South Asia. Corporate restructuring
and advancement, coupled with cross-border industrial transfer,
are critical strategic options for the Chinese textile and garment
enterprises to strengthen their global competitiveness.

Supported by the comparative advantages in its labor force and
the relatively favorable trade environment, Vietnam’s garment
export growth is rising to the top of the world. The export value
of Vietnam’s textile industry was about US$23.49 billion in 2014,
representing an increase of 16.9% over the previous year. As
Vietnam encourages more foreign companies to invest in upstream
clothing industries, such as yarn and fabrics, its reliance on China’s
raw materials used for garment manufacturing will gradually diminish.
The garment products exported from Vietnam to the EU continue
to enjoy favorable GSP treatments and tariff incentives, and the tax
benefit may become available to Vietnam as one of the member
countries of the Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP). This
has resulted in Vietham becoming a major country for transfer of the
Chinese textile and garment industry.

From 1 January 2015 onwards, the Chinese government has
increased the export tax rebate rate for some textile and garment
products to 17%, thereby enhancing the export competitiveness
of China’s textile and apparel products; the cotton inventory level
in the world is currently at a historical high level, it is expected that
the cotton price will remain stable in the near term. However, since
the cotton cultivation area has contracted, which is caused by the
stretched cotton price, the shrinkage in supply will affect the mid-
to-long term cotton price movement; the US dollar is appreciating
against RMB, which is beneficial to the export enterprises that settle
their trades mainly in US dollar.

BRI B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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During the year, the Board has collaborated closely with all
professional committees to work on tasks conforming to the Group’s
overall strategies and goals. All of such tasks have led to fruitful
results. All members of the Company are committed to the highest
standard of corporate governance, and are determined to build a fair
and impartial decision-making process. By ensuring a high degree of
transparency, the Company will exert every effort to provide an open
communication channel for all shareholders and investors.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude towards my fellow
Directors for their valuable contributions over the past year. | would
also like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the management staff of
all levels, as well as all of the staff members for their devotion and
loyalty towards the Company. Your hard work is the best guarantee
for the Group’s sustainable development in the future. | hope that
all staff members will abide by the core values of being “honest,
responsible, willing to learn, efficient”, and work hard for the Group’s
future development with a renewed endeavor. | would like to thank
our shareholders, customers and suppliers for their long-lasting trust
in the Company. | hope that we will continue to gain your support in
our future development!

In the journey ahead, the Group will continue to strengthen its
production base in Mainland China, while expediting the construction
of the vertically-integrated production model overseas, so as to
gradually expand the scale of the production bases abroad. Building
on the R&D and management capabilities of its Chinese base, the
Group will heighten the competitiveness of its foreign production
bases, so as to introduce a new source of growth to the Group’s
sustainable development.

| deeply believe that only through innovation can one find
opportunities, only through exploration can one achieve growth. The
Group will strive to bring to its customers a more comprehensive

service mix, and to create considerable returns for its shareholders.

Ma Jianrong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis - Operating Environment, Business Review and Future Prospects and Strategies

BERS

—IFRE R EGRIRE (TR R
M iyl iriotote
g ARERTBEIBRAESHE

BRBEBRENET T CRIEREZE) M
BT HIRIBRENNE  BIRERKARRE L
FRHETRERE  RERERKIE LK
ARBEEBTMB T A ERE D RIE13%
%mm&%%?%ﬁ$ﬁ%ﬂ@%ﬁ%mﬁ
BRENTESBREEMRE S —AF
—ﬂ HAEEUH T LEH (GSP)FE  m¥
MR RER AeSREERREEERY
BHEZR EISBTHREREEMERETIS
BEERFE N RN BRIBERTEF
RITEERNEEZ AREHETHEXRH
BEAEEAEN K WHREMRED
B BRARUAETEEAETOEONE 18
EEREBERE BRIINTIEHERERRE
AN RBIBF K T SRR IT RN R
BE-Z—hAF—A—BARBEORFRERE
17%  BENWNGHRELCZEEINRER
W%WMME‘Mﬁé$EEﬁ2@%'EW
BHRHERFT—HOEERE

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In the year 2014, as in the previous years, challenges still prevailed
in the operating environment of the Chinese textile and garment
industry. During the year, as labor costs continued to rise,
companies needed to invest more resources to retain or recruit
talents; to step up efforts in environmental protection, the Chinese
government revised the “Environmental Protection Law”, which
has sharply pushed up the cost of environmental resources; the
prices of dyes rose remarkably due to shortage in supply; RMB
had appreciated against the Euro and the Japanese yen by 13%
and 12% respectively, impeding exports to the Japanese and the
EU markets; since 1 January 2015, the EU has terminated the
Generalized System of Preferences (GSP) treatment on Chinese
textile and garment products, while maintaining the GSP incentives
on Vietnam, Cambodia, Myanmar and other Southeast Asian
countries. This has weakened the price competitiveness of Chinese
garment products in the EU market. Amid these challenges, we have
witnessed catalysts conducive to the development of the industry.
The “one-sided” appreciation momentum of the RMB exchange
rate against the US dollar has turned into a two-way volatility with
signs of minor devaluation, this is beneficial to the export enterprises
whose trades are settled mainly in USD; as the cotton prices
continued to fall, the price discrepancy between the domestic and
foreign markets narrowed; the Chinese government has boosted its
support to the textile and garment industry. Beginning on 1 January
2015, the export tax rebate rate has increased to 17%. The strong
players in the textile and garment industry are reinforcing their global
allocation of resources, so as to consolidate the advantages from
different regions, and to search for growth opportunities in these
challenging times.
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According to the data announced by the Chinese customs, in 2014,
the total export volume of Chinese textile and garment products
(including textile yarns, fabrics and related products, as well as
garments and apparel accessories, similarly hereinafter) amounted
to US$298.43 billion, representing an increase of approximately
5.1% year-on-year, the growth rate has moderated by approximately
6 percentage points as compared to 2013. Out of the total export
volume, textile export amounted to US$112.14 billion, increased
by approximately 4.9% over the previous year; garment export
amounted to US$186.28 billion, up approximately 5.2% year-on-
year, out of which knitwear export accounted for US$81.73 billion,
decreased by approximately 6.0% as compared to the previous
year. In 2014, the three major importers, the EU, the US and Japan,
together accounted for 42.9% (2013: 42.3%) of China’s total
export value of textile and apparel products for that year. In the
export value, exports to the EU has increased by 13.6% year-on-
year to US$58.66 billion; exports to the US gained 7.5% over the
previous year to US$44.74 billion; and exports to Japan dropped
by 9.1% year-on-year to US$24.51 billion. Among the major export
markets, the export growth rates for the EU and the US are relatively
stable, while the export volume for Japan has been contracting
for the second consecutive year, mainly due to the diminishing
textile and clothing import demand in Japan, and the increasing
shares of import from Southeast Asian countries, such as Vietnam
and Bangladesh. Furthermore, export to Hong Kong has dropped
15.7% to US$16.48 billion; export to ASEAN climbed by 5.5% to
US$36.10 billion (out of which textile export amounted to US$22.22
billion, up 10.9% year-on-year). However, with the fast-growing
textile and garment industries in ASEAN countries, especially in
Vietnam, the reliance of ASEAN countries on Chinese textile raw
materials will decline gradually. As the largest textile and garment
export country in the world, China accounts for a market share
that is much higher than other textile and garment manufacturing
countries. Nevertheless, China’s market share in the world has
been shrinking continuously in recent years. The Chinese textile
and garment industry, through structural adjustments and industrial
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consolidations, is gradually eliminating the inferior players while
promoting the stronger ones, so as to reinforce and expand their
market shares in the international mid-to-high-end product markets.

In 2014, the top five coastal provinces in terms of textile and
garment export volume together accounted for 70.5% (2013: 70.6%)
of the total export value in China, the share remained stable over
the previous years. Export value of Zhejiang Province increased by
5.5% over the previous year to US$70.98 billion. Export value of
Guangdong Province increased by 7.7% over the previous year to
US$48.38 billion. Export value of Jiangsu Province amounted to
US$45.92 billion, up by 5.0% over the previous year. Export value
of Fujian Province and Shandong Province were US$22.87 billion
and US$22.18 billion respectively, down 0.4% and up 2.7% over the
previous year respectively. The average growth rate of the coastal
provinces’ textile and garment export volumes was close to the
national level, while the central and western provinces have failed to
win over the industrial transfer occurring in the textile and garment
industry. By shifting productions overseas as opposed to transferring
into the central and western provinces, the industry participants
can enjoy more favorable labor costs, tariff policies from importing
countries and corporate tax rates. Advancing the industrial structure
of the domestic production base, along with cross-border industrial
transfer, are the important strategic directions for the textile and
garment enterprises to remain competitive globally.

According to statistics released by the General Administration of
Customs of China, the total import and export value of China’s
foreign trade in 2014 was US$4,303.04 billion, increased by 3.4%
over 2013. The total export value and the total import value were
US$2,342.75 billion and US$1,960.29 billion respectively, edged
up by 6.1% and 0.4% respectively as compared to 2013. During
the year, China’s import and export trade surplus amounted to
US$382.46 billion, increased by US$123.44 billion as compared
to the US$259.02 billion reported in 2013, representing a growth
rate of 47.7%. According to statistics released by the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange, as of 31 December 2014, the
country’s foreign exchange reserves amounted to US$3,843 billion,
representing an increase of US$21.7 billion as compared to the
end of 2013, such increase was far below the gain in trade surplus
for that year. According to the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC,
in 2014, the non-financial foreign direct investment (FDI) of China
reached US$102.89 billion and as such, the size of FDI has, for the
first time, approached the amount of funds flowing into China.
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The unfavorable operating environment in the textile and garment
industry has raised concerns in the Chinese government, which has
then provided support for the industry. In 2014, the government
revised the cotton purchasing and storage policy, which had
been in force for years. The cotton price became market-driven,
instead of being guided by the government’s storage price in
the past. In addition, from 1 January 2015 onwards, the Chinese
government has increased the export tax rebate rate for some
textile and garment products to 17%, thereby enhancing the export
competitiveness of China’s textile and apparel products. Amid
the headwinds in the Chinese economy, the launch of supportive
measures targeting the textile and garment industry has evidenced
the government’s concern towards the development of this industry.
This has boosted confidence among textile and garment enterprises
in this difficult time.

According to statistics from the General Department of Vietnam
Customs, the export value of Vietnam’s textile industry was about
US$23.49 billion in 2014, representing an increase of 16.9% over the
previous year. In particular, the export value of textile and garment
was about US$20.95 billion,
over the previous year; while the export value of yarn has gained

representing an increase of 16.8%

18.3% year-on-year to about US$2.54 billion. Vietnam’s textiles
and garments were mainly exported to the US, Japan and South
Korea, with export values of US$9.82 billion, US$2.62 billion and
US$2.09 billion,
10.2% and 27.6% respectively over 2013; Vietnam’s yarns export

respectively, representing growth rates of 14.2%,

mainly went to China, with export value of approximately US$1.25
billion. According to the data compiled by the Chinese Customs,
the textile export from China to Vietnam increased by approximately
25.4% to approximately US$9.46 billion in 2014, out of which fabrics
export was approximately US$7.12 billion, representing a surge of
approximately 27.9% over the previous year, and accounted for
approximately 13% of China’s total fabrics export. Vietnam is the
largest importing country for China’s fabrics. Despite the rapidly-
growing garment export volume in Viethnam for the past consecutive
years, it still relies heavily on importing China’s raw materials for
garment manufacturing. However, as Vietnam encourages more
foreign companies to invest in upstream clothing industries, such
as yarn and fabrics, the fabrics used in Vietnam will be increasingly
domestically produced. The labor costs in Vietnam is lower than
that in China, and the quality of workers in Vietnam is closer to
that of China, as compared with other Southeast Asian countries.
The garment products exported from Vietnam to the EU continue
to enjoy favorable GSP treatments and tariff incentives, and the tax

Annual Report 2014 £ ¥

19



20

EEENRR DN —KERE - FEEERARRAT= KRR
Management Discussion and Analysis - Operating Environment, Business Review and Future Prospects and Strategies

FBMERES BERBARFEFEHEE
& (TPP)REBZ — BEEZARBHRE
BUAMSHEEKSTESBREEXR
BINEBNTERK -

ARBHETHERRBANEEZAE &
REMEDHEEZEUBRENTR -FR AR
M ETTHME R P BERMET #0.4% 8
RIRTTHIRES ABRIZET £2.5%  BRIF
RIS ARBEHETLHERARE AR
HETKEBERE BENRUETLEER
THHBREHOCE - MERNARBEHEK
TTMBTTHIEER D RIFE T 413%HM12% * B
TMBTHEENKTEREMBARF MK
BRA THRREMBEEA AT O -

ZENFE FREARENBEANEEBEL
BI6BRARBIL BLEFERT7.4% KE
IR IR/NREE - R B BRI E L RS
HmEEREEENE RS REERF
B —E—NFHNRFA AR —FT—NFF
KA KE165% 2595589 A 0 48 % 591,583
BABRZE—=ZFTRTINNEA BZZ
—ZHFR - ZFREROADBEEEE =
FETR - EFEANAODEERERBEAA
B2 S HOADBEN TREKABE
B NmENMERETESRIEESS
NRAEAMBIRSENE S BN E B¢
BRENERLROHAINKBERITER
PRERMONEEE-

benefit may become available to Vietnam as one of the member
countries of the Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP). This
has resulted in Vietnam becoming a major country for transfer of the
Chinese textile and garment industry.

The exchange rate of RMB against US dollar has ended its path
of unilateral appreciation, and was taken over by a period of two-
way volatility, or even trends of moderate depreciation. During the
year, the exchange rate of RMB against US dollar depreciated by
approximately 0.4%, as calculated by the middle rate, while the
foreign remittance buying rate in banks has pointed to a depreciation
of approximately 2.5%. According to the forward exchange rate of
RMB against US dollar in the financial market, RMB is expected to
continue its downward trend against US dollar, which is favorable
to the textile and garment exporting enterprises who mainly settle in
US dollar. During the year, RMB appreciated against the Euro and
the Japanese yen by approximately 13% and 12%, respectively. The
depreciation of the Euro and the Japanese yen has led to higher
procurement costs for customers in the EU and Japan, which is
detrimental to exports to the EU and Japan.

In 2014, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) of Mainland China
grew by 7.4% over the previous year to about RMB63.6 trillion.
The economic growth has moderated slightly. The aging population
will pose a tremendous threat to the sustainability of the Chinese
economic growth. According to the statistics bulletin for the year
2014 announced by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, at the
end of 2014, the population aged between 16 and 59 in Mainland
China was 915.83 million, reduced by 3.71 million as compared to
2013. The population within this age range has been contracting
consecutively for three years since 2012. While any significant
revisions in the Chinese birth policy is not yet in sight, the size of
labor force is showing a descending trend. The labor-intensive textile
and garment industry will be under prolonged pressure arising from
the hike in labor costs and difficulties in recruitment. To broaden the
use of automatic equipment and lessen the reliance on labor will be
critical steps for the industry’s future development in China.
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During the year, the Chinese government revised the “Environmental
Protection Law”. Under the new law effective from 1 January 2015,
an emission control system is implemented on major pollutants,
and enterprises’ environmental protection responsibilities are
highlighted. Major emission units are required to truthfully disclose
their emission details to the public and be monitored by the society.
The more stringent requirements on environmental protection
has added to the environmental costs of the companies, while at
the same time impacting the growth of the textile and garment
industry. The development of an enterprise depends not only on
the market demand for its products, but also its proper use of the
limited environmental resources. Emission reduction and energy
conservation will be the turning points for the domestic fabric
producers’ journey ahead.

According to the information released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, China’s cotton cultivation area in 2014 was 4.22
million hectares, decreased by 0.13 million hectares as compared
to the previous year. Cotton production output for the year was
6.16 million tons, representing a drop of 2.2% over the previous
year. The cultivation area for cotton in China has declined for three
consecutive years. According to the information released by the
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) in February 2015,
the world’s cotton production output in 2014/15 is estimated to
be about 25.99 million tons, representing a decrease of about
0.28 million tons, or about 0.9%, as compared to 2013/14. The
world’s cotton consumption in 2014/15 is about 24.22 million
tons, representing an increase of 0.47 million tons, or about 2%,
when compared to 23.75 million tons in 2013/14. The world’s
cotton carryover inventory stocks amounted to 23.91 million tons,
representing an increase of about 8% when compared to the
previous year. Inventory consumption ratio hit another all-time high of
about 99%. The cotton inventory in China is estimated to be about
14.03 million tons, accounting for about 59% of the global stock.
China’s cotton consumption accounts for about 32% of the world’s
total consumption and cotton import accounts for about 21% of
the world’s total import. It is expected that the share of China’s
cotton consumption and import volume in the world’s total volume
will continue to decline. Since the government has terminated its
purchasing and storage policy on cotton, the cotton price gap
between the domestic market and the foreign market has narrowed
notably. The cotton import volume is expected to shrink, which will
drive down the cotton inventory level in China. Meanwhile, as the
cotton price remained under pressure, the cotton cultivation area in
the world has contracted, impacting the global cotton inventory level.
According to a report by the China Cotton Association, in the 32nd
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National Cotton Council of America (NCC) Annual Meeting held in
Memphis, the results for the Early Season Planting Intentions Survey
for 2015 was announced. It is reported that US cotton producers
intend to plant 9.4 million acres (3.8 million hectares) of cotton
in 2015, down by 14.6% from 2014. According to the research
conducted by the Institute of Cotton Research of CAAS, the cotton
cultivation area in 2015 is expected to drop by 14.9% in Mainland
China. Because of the high inventory level, the current cotton
price prevails at a historical low level. As the market braces for the
shrinkage in cotton supply, as caused by the contraction in cotton
cultivation area, the mid-to-long-term cotton price movement will be
affected.

In 2014, the consumer price index rose by 2.0% as compared to
2013, the growth in consumer price narrowed. Given the alleviating
inflation pressure and the cooling Chinese economic growth, the
monetary policies in China were loosened. On 22 November 2014,
the People’s Bank of China has cut the one-year benchmark lending
rate in financial institutions by 0.4 percentage point to 5.6%; one-
year benchmark deposit rate was also reduced by 0.25 percentage
point to 2.75%; on 1 March 2015, the one-year benchmark rates for
lending and deposit in financial institutions were again reduced by
0.25 percentage point each.

The rising production costs and shrinking labor force in China are
the major reasons for the slowing export growth and the increase
in outbound investments in the textile and garment industry.
Relocating businesses overseas has become a strategic option
for the strong textile and garment enterprises. Although China will
remain the largest textile and garment exporting country in the world
for an extended period of time, China’s shares in key markets will
continue to fall. The impact of decreasing market shares around
the world is less obvious for the giants in the sector, as buffered by
their strengthened competitiveness and alleviated by the positive
impacts of industrial consolidation. On the other hand, Southeast
Asian countries, such as Vietnam, are swiftly taking over the lost
market shares of China, and are evolving into garment manufacturing
nations with rapidly-growing exports.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2014, the operating environment for the textile and garment
industry did not show remarkable improvement. The difficulties in
recruitment were an especially challenging problem, it heightened the
labor costs and inflicted considerable pressure on the enterprises.
To excel in the unfavorable operating environment, the Group has
exerted great effort in deepening its lean production management,
strengthening the R&D of new products, and optimizing its product
structure. As a result, the Group attained outstanding growth
In 2014, the
revenue and profit attributable to equity holders increased by 10.8%

in revenue and achieved decent operating results.

and 14.6% respectively over 2013, both reaching historical high
levels. Furthermore, the Group has carried on the construction of
its overseas production bases as scheduled, paving way for the
Group’s solid development in the long run.

Construction of overseas bases

The continuously rising labor costs in China, together with the
unfavorable tariff policies targeting Chinese garment products in
major import markets, have imposed considerable cost pressure on
the Group’s production in China. To cope with the adverse operating
environment in China, the Group has accelerated the construction
of a vertically-integrated production model abroad. After a year of
construction, the Phase | project in the fabric production base in
Tay Ninh Province, Vietnam, commenced production in November
2014. The Group has assigned a team of management and technical
experts to the factory in Vietnam. Trainings were completed by the
key employees in Vietham prior to the commencement of production.
The fabrics project is now progressing smoothly, with the Phrase |
production capacity gradually expanding to the designed target.
During the year, the Group also began the construction of the
garment factory in Vietnam, the investment license for which was
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granted by the Vietnam government in January 2015. The fabrics
production base in Viethnam will supply fabrics to garment factories
of the Group in Cambodia and Vietnam, which has increased the
ability of the garment factories overseas to react swiftly and reduced
transportation costs.

Lean production management

During the year, the Group had further reinforced its lean production
management, thereby efficiently minimizing the negative impacts
caused by the hike in labor costs. With the purpose to improve the
utilization rate of raw materials, special attention was paid to the
micro management of raw materials; in addition, the per product
unit energy consumption levels for electricity and steam etc. have
continued to decrease. The production levels in the factories in
China fell short of expectation in the second quarter of 2014 due to
unusual employee movement. In light of this, the Group responded
effectively by strengthening its lean production management and
increasing the stability of its employees. As a result, the productivity
of the employees had shown remarkable improvement in the second
half of the year, with an output level significantly surpassing the
corresponding period in the previous year, and the orders placed by
clients for the year were successfully completed.

Facilitate R&D and product innovations

To further enhance the Group’s competitive edges in the textile and
garment industry, the Group has placed stronger emphasis on R&D
and innovative activities during the year, encouraging R&D team
members to vigorously develop new products and explore new
technologies. Aside from the established Engineering Technology
Centre, the Group is constructing its Corporate Innovation Centre.
Through relentlessly promoting R&D and innovative activities, the
Group strives to provide garment products that are of high-quality
and environmental friendly to consumers. It also targets to enhance
the cost competitiveness of its products by improving production
techniques and optimizing procedures in the production process.

Optimize product structure

To prioritize the allocation of production resources to key customers,
the Group has further reduced the orders undertaken from small
and medium-sized customers. The sales to key customers has
maintained satisfactory growth, and the customer mix has improved.
During the year, the sport product segment had continued to grow
rapidly, contributing 61.4% of the total revenue, representing an
increase of 22.8% as compared to the previous year; the lingerie
product segment’s percentage of contribution to total revenue had
remained relatively stable. In the retail business, the Group had

BRI B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



BEEENmRER DN - KERE - FHOER AR R KR

Management Discussion and Analysis - Operating Environment, Business Review and Future Prospects and Strategles

WH-EEEEREBERTN £EHEREREEE  continued to control the pace of expansion in its store network.

BOBRP AEABRSRZER BAFES  There are currently 38 directly-managed stores in locations such as

FEBEEHER - Shanghai City, and cities in Zhejiang, Jiangsu and Anhui Province.
The Group has concentrated its resources in developing quality key
customers and produced products with reasonable returns under
limited capacity to achieve presentable performance for the year.

Bt % @ & FINANCIAL REVIEW

HEH Revenues

HEz-_Z-NME+-_A=+—HILEEHN Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to
HEFEH A AREK11,131,5682,0007T ' B  approximately RMB11,131,532,000, representing an increase
HEZZT—=F+ZA=+—HILFEHN of RMB1,084,315,000 or about 10.8% when compared to
AR #10,047,217,0007C - 07T AR % RMB10,047,217,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
1,084,315,0007C ' 118 A #110.8% - $5 558  increase in revenue was mainly due to: (1) satisfactory revenue
BEMEBRAR: )VEBHERE ZHEE  growth in sportswear; (2) the improvement in the efficiency of the
RIBAE: QR BMEIBEZ —HITHWERIE  Phase Il factories in Anhui and Cambodia has raised the Group’s
T T EBMEERD QTEEEETL  productivity; (3) the increase in employee stability in the second
BEMERSESEEWNRE AIEME  M(A)E  half of the year has lifted production efficiency, and (4) expansion in
B FTM R TR 2 EERE IS hD o production capacity in the new material factory in Ningbo.

WTEAREE _Z—UFER_ZF—=FF The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2014 and 2013 by
BEMERDITHHEEELER: product categories is as follows:

BLEt+-A=+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E-NF —T—= 28
2014 2013 Change

AREBT R % AREFIT % AREFIT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

RE M By products
BB Sportswear 6,830,432 61.4 5,561,070 55.4 1,269,362 22.8
NEE Casual wear 2,724,394 24.5 2,872,104 28.6 (147,710) (5.1)
AR Lingerie 1,452,274 13.0 1,378,932 13.7 73,342 5.3
H A&t 4% o Other knitwear 124,432 1.1 235,111 2.3 (110,679) (47.1)
THEAE Total revenue 11,131,582  100.0 10,047,217 100.0 1,084,315 10.8

HE_ZT—NF+_A=+—HBILFE & For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue from sale of
FEERNEEELN A ARKS,830,432,000 sportswear amounted to approximately RMB6,830,432,000,
T REE_ZE—=F+"A=+—HIF representing an increase of RMB1,269,362,000 or 22.8% from
EHEE RN ARKS,561,070,0007T  # 11 approximately RMB5,561,070,000 for the year ended 31 December
7 AR #1,269,362,0007T * # 18 £22.8% °  2013. The Group has built stable strategic partnerships with
NEEHFEERESHREEBENEKAER  international sportswear brands, which has continued to boost
B FESAEEMEIBEEFHMREMERE  the Group’s shares in the major customers’ procurement volumes.
FHFERNCHEANESHRMOEEE AL During the year, the revenue from sale of domestic sportswear
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brands was approximately RMB193,426,000, representing an
increase of RMB99,440,000 when compared to RMB93,986,000
in the previous year. While restructuring its customer mix, the
Group has enlarged the scale of business cooperation with existing
domestic customers.

Revenue from sale of casual wear dropped from RMB2,872,104,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB2,724,394,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2014, representing a decrease of
RMB147,710,000 or approximately 5.1%. The decrease in revenue
from sale of casual wear was mainly attributable to the diminishing
demand for casual wear in Japan, and the sales reduction of casual
wear applied to certain small and medium-sized clients, so as to
satisfy the growing orders from strategic clients.

Revenue from sale of lingerie products increased from
RMB1,378,932,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
RMB1,452,274,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014,
representing a gain of RMB73,342,000 or approximately 5.3%.
When compared to the remarkable growth in the previous two years,
the revenue growth in sales of lingerie has moderated during the
year, primarily due to the scale adjustment of customer demand.

The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2014 and 2013 by

EMISE o RHEERLE: market regions is as follows:
HIE+-A=1t—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-mEF —E-=F BE
2014 2013 Change
ARETT % ARETFT % AREFT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
% By market regions
S Japan 3,081,139 27.7 3,392,580 33.8 (311,441) (9.2)
BM Europe 1,929,613 17.3 1,744,070 17.4 185,543 10.6
EH us 1,300,040 11.7 900,013 8.9 400,027 44 .4
HEMER Other countries 2,333,311 21.0 2,101,090 20.9 232,221 11.1
B MR g4 & /N5t Sub-total for
international sales 8,644,103 77.7 8,137,753 81.0 506,350 6.2
A 4 Domestic sales 2,487,429 22.3 1,909,464 19.0 577,965 30.3
HE @aT Total revenue 11,131,532 100.0 10,047,217 100.0 1,084,315 10.8
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BE_Z-—-NE+_A=1+—RBILFE"
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenue from
the Japanese market was approximately RMB3,081,139,000,
representing a decrease of RMB311,441,000 or approximately
9.2% as compared to approximately RMB3,392,580,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2013. Import demand for garment in
Japan tumbled because of the steep depreciation of the Japanese
yen and the increase in sales tax. The Group’s revenue from
Japan decreased mainly due to: the decline in sales of casual
wear in Japan. Furthermore, to meet the growing demand from
its sportswear clients, the Group reduced orders from some of its
Japanese clients.

The Group’s revenue from the European market for the year ended
31 December 2014 amounted to approximately RMB1,929,613,000,
representing an increase of RMB185,543,000 or approximately
10.6% from approximately RMB1,744,070,000 for the year ended
31 December 2013. During the year, despite the sharp depreciation
of the Euro, the Group achieved excellent revenue growth in the
European market. The Group’s sale in the EU market was facilitated
by the relatively favorable tariff policies in the EU towards garment
products from Cambodia, and the increase in efficiency and garment
productivity in the Group’s Phase Il factory in Cambodia. The EU
has terminated the Generalized System of Preferences treatment
on Chinese garment products since 1 January 2015, the overseas
production bases are increasingly important for the Group’s sales in
the EU market.

The Group’s revenue from the US market for the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to approximately RMB1,300,040,000,
representing a significant increase of RMB400,027,000 or
approximately 44.4% from RMB900,013,000 for the year ended
31 December 2013. The remarkable growth of the Group’s sales
from the US market was mainly attributable to the rising demand for
sportswear. The exchange rate of RMB against US dollar remained
relatively stable with mild depreciation expectation, and the US
economic recovery will lead to stronger demand, both scenarios
are favorable for the Group’s sales in the US. The US market is
becoming a key market for the Group.

The Group maintained its satisfactory revenue growth in other
markets including Korea, Russia and Hong Kong. Revenue from
other markets for the year ended 31 December 2014 surged by
11.1% as compared with last year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the revenue of the Group
from domestic market significantly increased 30.3% as compared
with last year, with sales of apparels in the domestic market
amounted to approximately RMB2,372,946,000,
an increase of RMB655,459,000 or approximately 38.2% from
RMB1,717,487,000 last year. During the year, the Group’s sales from
core customers in the domestic market has maintained rapid growth.

representing

Furthermore, the demand from domestic sportswear brands has
increased notably as well.

Cost of sales and gross profit

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2014 amounted to approximately RMB7,904,911,000 (2013:
RMB7,208,534,000).
2014 was 29.0%, representing an increase of approximately 0.7

The Group’s gross profit margin of sales in

percentage point when compared to 28.3% in 2013. During the year,
major factors affecting the gross profit margin included: (1) the lean
production management resulted in improvement in efficiency and
savings in material usage; (2) the product structure of the Group
continued to optimize; (3) the exchange rate of RMB against US
dollar stabilized; and (4) the prices of raw materials stayed at a
relatively low level, and the hike in labor costs inflicted pressure on

costs.

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB11,795,569,000
(2013: RMB10,316,264,000),
current assets, non-current liabilities and equity attributable
to non-controlling interests amounted to RMB5,633,884,000
(2013: RMB4,324,581,000), RMB9,0483,967,000 (2013:
RMB6,007,076,000), RMB2,866,525,000(2013: nil) and
RMB15,757,000 (2013: RMB15,393,000), respectively. The increase
in equity attributable to equity holders of the Company was mainly

of which non-current assets, net

attributable to the increase in retained earnings during the year, and
the equity component of convertible bonds was credited to reserves.
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Liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2014, net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB1,918,441,000; in 2013, it was approximately
RMB1,709,301,000. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group
as at 31 December 2014 amounted to RMB1,428,074,000
(2013: RMB2,609,050,000). The balance of bank borrowings
was RMB46,737,000 (2013: nil), all being short-term bank
borrowings. The outstanding balance of the debt component of
convertible bonds was RMB2,864,675,000 (as at 31 December
20183: nil). Net borrowings (bank borrowings and the balance of
the debt component of convertible bonds less cash and cash
equivalents) of the Group as at 31 December 2014 amounted to
RMB1,483,338,000. Net cash (cash and cash equivalents less bank
borrowings and the balance of the debt component of convertible
bonds) decreased by RMB4,092,388,000 from RMB2,609,050,000
as at 31 December 2013, mainly due to the Group’s investment of
its idle cash in bank products with guarantee of principal and return
in order to increase its yield on idle cash, and the capital expenditure
for the overseas production bases increased during the year.

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted
to RMB11,795,569,000 (2013: RMB10,316,264,000).
was in a good cash flow position, with a debt to equity ratio
(total outstanding borrowings (including the balance of the debt

The Group

component of convertible bonds) as a percentage of equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company) was 24.7% (2013:
nil).
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The Company issued convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$3,900,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,097,380,000 if calculated at the exchange rate of
HK$1=RMBO0.7942 on 18 June 2014 (the “Issue Date”)), bearing
a coupon rate of 0.5% and payable semi-annually. The maturity
date of convertible bonds is on 18 June 2019 (the “Maturity Date”),
unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased, cancelled or
otherwise provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The
Company will redeem the convertible bonds at 103.86% of their
principal amounts on the Maturity Date. The initial conversion price
of the bonds is HK$38.56 per share (subject to adjustment). On the
Issue Date, the initial recognition amount of RMB2,846,450,000 for
the liability component of the bonds was calculated using a market
interest rate of 3.55% for a non-convertible bond of the same class.
Equity component amount of RMB197,140,000 was credited to
the reserves of shareholders’ equity. Net proceeds from the issue
of these bonds were approximately HK$3,832,271,000, which
was intended to be used for business expansion and for general
corporate purpose.

Pledge of the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2014, bank balances of US$144,854,052
(approximately RMB893,483,500) (2013: nil) were pledged until
certain foreign currency swaps held by the Group are settled. The
pledged deposits carry interest at fixed rates ranging from 1.2% to
2.5% per annum.

Finance costs and tax

For the year ended 31 December 2014, finance costs increased
from RMB10,010,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
RMB46,442,000, mainly due to the issuance of convertible bonds
by the Group during the year, the new finance cost incurred for the
issuance of convertible bonds was RMB44,834,000. During the
year, the Group’s US dollar annual borrowing rate ranged from 2.6%
to 2.8% (2013: the US dollar annual borrowing rate ranged from
1.1553% to 2.83%, and the RMB borrowing rate was 2.50%). And
the net gearing ratio of the Group was 12.6% in 2014 (2013: N/A).

For the year ended 31 December 2014, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB476,717,000, representing an increase
of RMB79,420,000 when compared to income tax expense of
RMB397,297,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
increase in income tax expense was mainly due to the increase in
taxable profit of the Group.
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SUBSCRIPTIONS OF WEALTH MANAGEMENT
PRODUCTS

The Group subscribed for Wealth Management Products (the
“Products”) at an aggregate amount of RMB2,131,160,000 pursuant
to twelve Wealth Management Agreements (the “Subscriptions”, and
each a “Subscription”). A summary of the key terms of the Wealth
Management Agreements is set out as follows.

The Terms of Subscriptions

(1) Dates:

Dates of the Wealth Management Agreements: 17 July 2014,
30 July 2014, 31 July 2014, 8 August 2014, 29 August 2014,
17 November 2014, 21 November 2014, 25 November 2014,
2 December 2014, 4 December 2014, 17 December 2014 and
24 December 2014

Dates of the Subscriptions: 18 July 2014, 30 July 2014, 31
July 2014, 11 August 2014, 1 September 2014, 18 November
2014, 24 November 2014, 26 November 2014, 3 December
2014, 5 December 2014, 17 December 2014 and 24
December 2014

(2) Parties:

(i) Beilun Sub-branch of Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank Limited (“SPDB”)

(i) Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Dagian”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
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SPDB is a licensed bank incorporated under the laws
of the PRC. To the best knowledge, information and
belief of the Directors, SPDB and its ultimate beneficial
owners are third parties independent from the Group and
its connected persons. The principal business of SPDB
includes the provision of corporate and retail banking
services, investment banking services, asset management
services, cash management services, mortgages and
trade finance, foreign exchange services as well as other
financial services.

Currency of RMB, the lawful currency of the PRC
investment and
returns:
Product type: Principal-preservation product with
fixed returns
Subscription An aggregate amount of
amount: RMB2,131,160,000. The subscription

price was determined by SPDB, while
the amount of each Subscription was
determined by Ningbo Dagian.

Term of investment:  Various periods between 18 July
2014 and 6 March 2015

Early termination: During the investment period for each
of the Products, SPDB had the right
of early termination. In case of early
termination, SPDB shall notify Ningbo
Dagian in writing two working days in
advance, and return the investment
principal and accrued returns to
Ningbo Dagian within one working
day after the date of early termination.
Such accrued returns shall be
calculated based on the actual term
of investment and the actual return
rate. Ningbo Dagian did not have
right of early termination.
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(8) Annual return rates:

(9) Principle for
calculation of
returns and
interest:

(10) Investment scope:

(11) The payment of
principal and
return upon
maturity:

Fixed return rates ranging from 4.00%
to 4.90% (with no deduction of
management fees)

Return on each of the Products was
calculated based on the relevant
investment principal, the relevant term
of investment, and the relevant fixed
annualized return rate.

Pursuant to the terms of the
Products, SPDB would invest in cash,
treasury bonds, local treasury bonds,
central bank bills, policy financial
bonds, credit bonds such as short-
term financing bonds, medium-term
notes, subordinated debt, enterprise
bonds, corporate bonds, private
placement notes which are rated
“AA” or above (rated “A-“ or above
in respect of credit bonds where
SPDB is the lead underwriter),
standardized debt assets which

non-

fulfil regulatory requirements such
as repurchases,
interbank deposits and credit assets.

interbank lending,

Ningbo Dagian held each of
the Products until its respective
maturity date, and the principal and
corresponding return of each of the
Products were paid by SPDB in a
lump sum to the account specified by
Ningbo Dagian on the first working
day after the maturity date. As at
the date of this annual report, the
principal and returns of all these
Products have been repaid to Ningbo
Dagian in full.
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Risk Control Measures

Giving top priority to risk control and based on the principle of
protecting the interest of all Shareholders and the Company, the
Group has implemented stringent risk control measures and would
only subscribe for low risk wealth management products offered
by licensed banks. The Products purchased by Ningbo Dagian
were of principal-preservation and return-guaranteed nature. During
the respective terms of the Products, the Group had kept in close
contact with SPDB, followed up on the investments made by SPDB,
strengthened risk control and supervision, and closely monitored the
safe management of the funds deposited by the Group.

Reasons for and Benefits of the Subscription

The subscriptions for the Products by Ningbo Dagian using part
of the Group’s temporary idle cash were conducted based on the
principle of principal preservation and return guarantee, and that
it would not have had impact on the cash flow of the Company,
investment projects of the Group or the operation of the Group’s
principal business. Furthermore, such application of idle cash would
improve the capital usage efficiency and enable the Company to
earn higher investment return. As such, the Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) believed that the terms of
the Subscriptions are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING OF
NEW SHARES AND ALTERNATIVE FUNDING OF
THE COMPANY

The placing of new shares in April 2012

The Company completed a placing of 85,000,000 new shares
on 26 April 2012 and raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$1,158,650,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB939,548,000
based on the exchange rate of HK dollar against RMB of
HK$1:RMBO0.8109) after related share issue expenses. The intended
use of the proceeds from the placing of new shares and the actual
use of those proceeds during the year are set out as follows:

° an amount of approximately RMB608,174,000 shall be used to
establish new textile production facilities in Mainland China and
to purchase and construct the relevant equipment and plants.
As of 31 December 2014, the amount had been fully utilized;

° an amount of approximately RMB121,635,000 shall be used to
set up new garment production facilities and to purchase the
relevant production equipment. As of 31 December 2014, the
amount had been fully utilized;

° an amount of approximately RMB81,090,000 shall be used to
expand the Group’s retail network. As of 31 December 2014,
approximately RMB59,083,000 in total had been used; and

° an amount of approximately RMB128,649,000 shall be used
to repay part of the Group’s short-term bank loans. As of 31
December 2014, the amount had been fully utilized.

As at 31 December 2014, the remaining net proceeds from the
placing amounting to approximately RMB22,007,000 was placed as
bank deposits in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the details of
such placing of new shares, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 16 April 2012 and 26 April 2012.
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The placing of new shares in June 2013

The Company completed a placing of 69,000,000 new shares
on 28 June 2013 and raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$1,527,464,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,216,626,000
based on the exchange rate of HK dollar against RMB of
HK$1:RMB0.7965) after related share issue expenses. The intended
use of the proceeds from such placing of new shares is set out as
follows:

° the proceeds will be used to build and construct a production
facility for the manufacture of fabrics in Vietnam (the “Vietnam
Project”) in phases, as to approximately HK$777,000,000 for
the building and construction of phase | of the Vietnam Project,
including long term leasehold land use right, construction of
buildings and staff quarters, construction of sewage system
and infrastructure, purchase of machinery and equipment, etc;
and

° the residual amount of the proceeds of approximately
HK$750,464,000 will be used to build and construct phase Il of
the Viethnam Project and as general working capital.

As of 31 December 2014, approximately HK$1,140,500,000 of the
proceeds from such placing had been utilized and the balance of
approximately HK$386,964,000 was placed in bank as deposits in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the details of such placing of
new shares, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 18 June 2013 and 28 June 2013. For details of the Vietham
Project, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28
May 20183.
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Issuance of convertible bonds in June 2014

The Company issued convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$3,900,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,097,380,000 when calculated with the exchange rate of
HK$1=RMBO0.7942 on the Issue Date) on the Issue Date, bearing
a coupon rate of 0.5% and payable semi-annually. The maturity
date of convertible bonds is on the Maturity Date, unless early
redeemed, converted, purchased, cancelled or otherwise provided
in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Company will redeem
the convertible bonds at 103.86% of their principal amounts on the
Maturity Date. The initial conversion price of the bonds is HK$38.56
per share (subject to adjustment). On the Issue Date, the initial
recognition amount of RMB2,846,450,000 for the liability component
of the bonds was calculated using a market interest rate of 3.55%
for a non-convertible bond of the same class. Equity component
amount of RMB197,140,000 was credited to the reserves of
shareholders’ equity. Net proceeds from the issue of those bonds
were approximately HK$3,832,271,000, which was intended to be
used for business expansion and for general corporate purpose.
As of 31 December 2014, approximately HK$1,049,250,000 of the
proceeds from such issue had been utilized as general working
capital. For details of the issuance of convertible bonds, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 22 May 2014, 18 June
2014 and 19 June 2014.

As of 31 December 2014, no convertible bonds have been
converted into shares of the Company pursuant to the relevant
terms.

Exposure to foreign exchange

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in US dollar, while its
purchases were mainly settled in RMB, the Group’s costs and
operating profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations
to a certain extent. The Group adopted a policy to hedge part
of its foreign exchange risks in light of the existing fluctuations
of exchange rate between US dollar and RMB. The amounts
to be hedged depend on the Group’s revenue, purchases and
capital expenditure in US dollar, as well as the market forecast of
fluctuations in the exchange rate of US dollars against RMB.
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To avoid the reduction in the value of future cash flows and the
volatility thereof arising from any exchange rate movement between
RMB and US dollar, the Group entered into forward contracts in
selling US dollar. As of 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of the outstanding US dollar forward contracts was approximately
US$260,000,000 (as at 31 December 2013: approximately
US$60,000,000). As the exchange rate of RMB against the US
dollar stabilized, the aforementioned forward contracts had already
been effectively offset by various Non-Deliverable Forward contracts
during the year. The expansion of the overseas production bases
of the Group will add to the cost expenditure in US dollar, and is
conducive to offsetting the volatility of the exchange rate between
RMB and US dollar. In addition, the Group will also consider the
arrangement of appropriate amount of loans in foreign currency
according to the bank interest rates and capital requirements.

Employment, training and development

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed approximately
62,000 employees in total. Total staff costs, including administrative
and management staff, accounted for approximately 25.7% (2013:
24.3%) of the Group’s sales during the year. The Group remunerated
its staff according to their performances, qualifications and industry
practices, and conducted regular reviews of its remuneration
policy. Employees may receive discretionary bonuses and monetary
rewards based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals.
The Company also offered rewards or other incentives to motivate
personal growth and career development of the employees, such
as ongoing opportunities for training to enhance their technical and
product knowledge as well as their knowledge of industry quality
standards. Each new employee of the Group is required to attend
an introductory course, while there are also various types of training
courses available to all employees of the Group.

Capital expenditure and commitments

During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land lease payments amounted to
approximately RMB1,183,343,000, of which approximately 43% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
54% for the construction and acquisition of new factory buildings
and land lease prepayments, and the remaining balance was used
for the purchase of other fixed assets.

ER ) B B 45 1 4% % 5 FR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



EEENWmE DN - LR

RIR - TS0 R N R SR AT = KRR

Management Discussion and Analysis - Operating Environment, Business Review and Future Prospects and Strategles

ZAREE
R-ZE—NF+_A=+—80 —MKBA
RIEARRABITIREER TEREFETHRE
AR #238,641,000C (=T —=ZF:Z) i
HEHREHHEFRHARL6,737,4137T
(ZZB—=%:%)-

BEMEBRER
BAARERBOMELK THER =
—HE—BEMBRAEERERRIL 8

~mE+=A=t+—-BEAQRAHA
b AEESETAHEEEEEATEY
BEHEER-

R IR AT = B R g

SRR B BREITENKERIED - PhE
WBY T SBHER  EREA LI RF
EREFANMENEZRCHBEHBERS
BEREAEEMRER & E B 5 8R
%ﬁ%%mﬁk%fﬁl% B A H A B
FEELBOED N TBNEXEKE B
BOITRAT E%%%“&m cEAEIR
BERABEREZEMUTESBRELEZ
AREREVER AEESESZERNT
B R B 2 A E 4t - I ARG St A — B8 (b
HERANER BLBBAEINEEREMLD
HitE o

BENRAN EFHARRRERWIES AKX
RTPBHBRELCEREZRNTI BB -

AEE/ZIRERENABCEE  FEE
ERRUSHNNKERRE  #ERERRLE
EEE RSRVANFNAEX WNRGEE

ZLAERAREREZ R SRR A - £ — N5k
HETWRER XEETWAERRENITHE
RE BRARSEIMNBEMHREELEENR

ERS  ARERSEERERRIENS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary subject to guarantees given to banks by the Company
were RMB238,641,000 (2013: nil), of which approximately
RMB46,737,413 (2013: nil) were utilised at the end of the reporting
period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save for the granting of investment license by the Vietnam
government in January 2015 in respect of the garment factory in
Vietnam as disclosed in this report. there were no other significant
subsequent events since 31 December 2014 up to the date of this
report which would have material effect to the Group.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Challenges and opportunities coexist in the operating environment
of the Chinese textile and garment industry. Factors such as the
shortage of labor, rising costs of resources, increasingly stringent
requirements on environmental protection, and the divergence in
the tariff policies of importing countries, all call for a higher pace
of restructuring in Chinese enterprises. Although the operating
environment of the Chinese textile and garment industry is full
of headwinds, it possesses advantages that are absent in other
countries. Examples of such advantages include comprehensive
industrial facilities, outstanding talents in the industry and superior
infrastructure etc. To excel in their future developments, it is essential
for Chinese textile and garment enterprises to consolidate their
global resources and to complement each other’s advantages.
The Group will continue to strengthen its production bases in the
Mainland China, while at the same time speed up the construction of
its vertically-integrated production model overseas, hence gradually

expanding the scale of production bases abroad.

The soar in labor costs and stringent requirements on environmental
protection will be major long-term challenges for Chinese textile
and garment enterprises. Through progressively enhancing the
automation of its equipment, the Group will reduce the reliance on
labor in production; it will continue to implement lean production
management, improve the utilization rate of raw materials, and
deepen its planning management to maximize productivity of
production lines; it will also further promote the welfare of employees
by improving their living amenities and working environment,
thus lifting production efficiency with increased job stabilities of
employees; the Group will continue to implement a clean production
model that meets environmental protection and energy conservation
renovate

principles, increase the recycle rate of water resources,
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part of the existing production lines with energy-conservative and
low emission high-tech equipment, emphasize control on the whole
production process to optimize environmental protection efforts,
satisfy the increasingly strict environmental protection regulations
set by the government, and meet customers’ and the public’s
expectation regarding corporations’ responsibilities to conserve the
environment.

The Group will continue to expedite the construction of its
production bases overseas, so as to build and optimize its vertically-
integrated production model. The Group will enlarge the pool of
management talents overseas by combining internal training and
recruitment. With the support of all of its divisions, the Group
will promptly raise the management capabilities of the factories
overseas to a satisfactory standard. It aims to be the first to seize
opportunities in the competitive industrial platform abroad, and
to efficiently sharpen its competitive edges. In 2014, the Phase |
fabric factory in Tay Ninh Province, Vietnam, already successfully
commenced production. The Group will complete the construction
of the Phase Il fabric factory. The garment factory in Vietnam, which
compliments the fabric factory, will also be constructed in full speed,
and is expected to commence operations in the third quarter of
2015. The Group is confident on the development of its foreign
production bases, which are built on the R&D and management
capabilities of its Chinese base.

Looking ahead, the Group will continuously improve its management
capabilities and consolidate its global value chain, which will enable
it to bolster the corporate’s integrated competitiveness, provide
environmental friendly and high-quality products to consumers,
and offer more comprehensive and speedy services to customers.
The Group will strive for growth opportunities in challenging times,
and exert every effort to achieve excellent operating performance.
The management is cautiously optimistic towards the business
performance of the Company in 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently
stable cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of the Company through the provision of continuous
training for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covers all of the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 9 October 2005. The
Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Terms of Reference of Board Committees

In order to comply with the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the
terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company were
revised accordingly based on amendments to the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Such terms of reference and the list of Directors
and their roles and functions are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Responsibilities of Directors

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 set out in the CG Code. The
Company arranged for continuous professional development on
the update of the Listing Rules and the related legal and regulatory
requirements for the Directors.

A summary of training received by the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

EINEB (MFEE)
Types of training (Note)

EERBE_TNOFE+T_A=T—HLLF
EREIHBIOBENT :
EEnA

Name of Directors
BITES

Executive Directors
BREEEE

Mr. Ma Jianrong
HEEAMEL

Mr. Huang Guanlin
B4

Mr. Ma Renhe

By g4+

Ms. Zheng Miaohui
ITHEREE

Mr. Wang Cunbo
REHmt

Ms. Chen Zhifen

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B
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Name of Directors
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Types of training (Note)

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
BRARFE £

Mr. Chen Genxiang

BR 1B 5% &

Mr. Chen Xu

BEmEE

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

EKEREE

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

M AT -

A HEBAAFRZHZHTE

@

Fﬁ BAMLETRAREMERERREER
ERHEROM &M REHRER

N2
V=]

anp
o

T-ZF=HAZTNERED
ﬁﬁ%@‘fﬁu IESCED.SE WA
RE o BESE YR T —Z—FMA

—BHREM - BBLEERBE 2 BERE
EEZSEARRRABRT R HEELAEE
TEEACHEREHR EZRaREREE
Z%m&ﬁ%%%%@&%ﬁ@ﬁ'%?%

LEEHRT BEREZEA 2B
&éﬁ?ﬁ(@ﬁ%$%ﬂh?ﬁ¥ﬁﬁ#
Alfe

my b
%ﬁbﬂﬂm

ESgﬁ

AlE
AP B

=

%%M&H
op

[g=]

BRI ZEA

REBEEEERTAME 2T RIEXEE.2
B ARBBFEARA I BZEE Z AR T
FBARRR-_ZT—RAFREA-_TN\BETZ
BRBFAEG MERRBNETZE AR
ZEE R E NREAND G B MR
B2 A -

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B

Note:
A: attending seminars organized by the Company

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements

Corporate governance functions

The Company adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions on 26 March 2012 in compliance with
the code provision D.3 set out in the CG Code, effective from 1
April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate
governance functions, the Board shall be responsible for developing
and reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group; training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management and
making recommendations; compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and the Group’s compliance
with the CG Code.

Communications with shareholders

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 set out in the CG Code, the
Company invited representatives of the external auditors of the
Company to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
be convened on 28 May 2015 to answer shareholders’ questions
relating to the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditors’

report, the accounting policies and auditor

independence.
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The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication policy and
procedures with effect from 26 March 2012 for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director. The policy and the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised six
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors,
whose biographical details and family relationships among certain
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Members of Senior Management” on pages 80
to 87. There are no other material financial, business or relevant
relationships among the Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities of
the Board include the formulation of the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, supervision of the management and
evaluation of the effectiveness of management strategies.

The day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Directors or officers in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Group. Independent professional
advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.
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Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of
this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the overall management of the Board and significant
operational decisions of the Group, while the Group General
Manager is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business. Mr. Ma Jianrong is the Chairman of the Board
and Mr. Huang Guanlin is the Group General Manager.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for 40% of the
members of the Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors
are outstanding executives or experts in the textile industry and
business sectors who bring with them expertise in different areas.
They provide adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of
the Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent
and objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and
decisions. All independent Non-executive Directors have submitted
annual written confirmation of their independence and compliance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to Directors to ensure timely access to the relevant information
for discharge of their duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are also sent to all Directors for
their comment and records, respectively.
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The Company held 4 full Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2014, with all the existing members of the Board
attended.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

BOARD DIVERSITY

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members of
the Board,
of factors when deciding on appointments to the Board and the

it is the policy of the Company to consider a number

continuation of those appointments. Such factors include gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been structured to include a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors as members in order to
reinforce independence, while the Audit Committee only comprises
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of the Committees are
governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com and the Stock
Exchange's website www.hkexnews.hk.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As of the
issuance of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr.
Ma Renhe, an Executive Director, Mr. Chen Genxiang, Mr. Chen Xu
and Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr.
Chen Genxiang is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. No Director
will take part in any discussion on his or her own remuneration. The
details of their fees are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to the members of the Board of Directors, market rates
and factors such as each Director’s workload, responsibility, and job
complexity are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meeting with full attendance in
2014. At the meetings, it reviewed the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9
October 2005. As of the issuance of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director, Mr.
Qiu Weiguo and Mr. Jiang Xianpin, both are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Ma Jianrong is Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as Directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board; regularly review the structure,
headcount and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
for any proposed changes.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance
in 2014. At the meetings, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case
of an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject
to reelection by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for specific terms of not more than three
years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As of
the issuance of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Mr.
Chen Genxiang, Mr. Chen Xu and Mr. Qiu Weiguo. Mr. Jiang Xianpin
is Chairman of the Audit Committee. His expertise in accounting,
auditing and finance enables him to provide leadership for the
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices and internal controls. These include determining of
the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual accounts and assessing the completeness and

effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings for the year ended 31
December 2014 with full attendance. At the meetings, it reviewed
the 2013 final results, financial report and auditing issues, with the
external auditors, and the 2014 interim results, the activities of the
Group’s internal audit functions, the internal audit report on business

operations and continuing connected transactions.
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TRERSESEN _Z—NFRNEERER Details of Director’'s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
FREg- ﬁ%’“éﬁ%&i%?i@@% #  Committee Meetings held in 2014 are set out in the following table.
B-BEECEHNERHFEEA100% ° The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board meetings was
100%.
HE/BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
Exgez ENZERS FHEEE REZEE RREFAS
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

HiTES
Executive Directors
SRREE 4/4 - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BEMEE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
BLCMEAE 4/4 - 2/2 - 11
Mr. Ma Renhe
BrpEL+ 4/4 - - - 1/1
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
FEREE 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Wang Cunbo
BREHat 4/4 - - - 1/1

Ms. Chen Zhifen

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BRARRE LA 4/4 2/2 2/2 - 1/1
Mr. Chen Genxiang

BRBLE 4/4 2/2 2/2 - 1/1
Mr. Chen Xu

BEmEE 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Jiang Xianpin

REBRE 4/4 2/2 - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Qiu Weiguo

S FINANCIAL REPORTING
EEeHAAGHEEARVUEEQAALNAZL  The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
AIRE WREBEEBSFTRMAEAMM jétf‘_ accounts which give a true and fair view and in accordance with the

WHEANBEB I EARREER - AQ accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published

BEAENSHERY ERRA 'Fﬁf’ﬁ#‘%ﬁ& by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting

EAHBERENARE - BEEWMHAEMBHRE  policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and

THAEBNRARIERAISEETR SRS  reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to

RIEEE AL - make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group's current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility to maintain an appropriate
internal control system and to ensure accurate reporting of the
Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the public in a timely
manner.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to enhance
operating effectiveness and efficiency, to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorized disposition, to maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reports that are
true and fair, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system aims at providing a reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing rather than eliminating operational risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014,
which covered controls over financial reporting, operations and
compliance, as well as risk management functions, and considered
that the system of internal controls in operation in the Group have
been in place and functioning effectively.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Auditor
reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted access
to information that allows it to review all aspects of the Company’s
risk management, control and governance processes. On a regular
basis, it conducts audits on major activities and process of the
Group’s business and support units. It also conducts special reviews
or investigations of areas of concern identified by the management
or the Audit Committee. All audit reports are communicated to the
Audit Committee, Directors and key senior management. Audit
issues are tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with
progress reported to the Audit Committee, Directors and senior
management periodically.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Audit Committee
will, prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The related remuneration for the audit services provided by Ernst
& Young to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to RMB2,600,000.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of the Securities
Trading Code is provided to all Directors upon their appointment.
Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days prior to the
Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results and 60
days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s annual
results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed to deal in
the Company’s securities prior to the announcement of its results
(the period during which the directors are prohibited from dealing
in shares) and that all transactions must comply with the Securities
Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed
their strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the Securities
Trading Code throughout the year.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information or inside information due to their positions
in the Company, and hence, are required to comply with dealing
restrictions under the Securities Trading Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji, is responsible for
facilitating the Board process, as well as communications among
Board members, with shareholders and management. Mr. Chan’s
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Members of Senior Management” section on pages 80 to 87 of this
annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders
and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.

The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press releases and presentations material can be retrieved through
our Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on
the website is updated in a timely manner to ensure the speed,
fairness and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not
all shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet.
For those who do not, hard copies of those website information
listed above are available free of charge upon request to the
Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a policy of open communication and fair
disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.

The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email at
2318ir@shenzhougroup.com or raising questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requesting
member(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requesting member(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the sustainability report, which outlines our major members’
approaches, commitment and strategies in four aspects of
sustainability — workplace quality, environmental protection,
operating practices and community involvement. The reporting
period of this report is from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014.
The data disclosed in this report are prepared and collected by the
respective human resources, administration, and finance and energy
departments.

VISION
“Striving to become the best global apparel manufacturer” —
Shenzhou is the largest integrated garment end-product enterprise in
Asia, possessing a comprehensive operational system that includes
research and development,

design, production, logistics and

branding.

MISSION

“Building a green enterprise and offering people a comfortable life” —
Environmental protection is Shenzhou’s primary social responsibility
as well as the basis of long-term viability for any enterprises.
The Company shall always remain devoted to environmental
commitments, from which sustainability can be realized; Comfort is
not merely a tactile sensation from the contact with our knitwear, but
also a state of living that we so fervently pursue. By facilitating a life
of comfort, we seek to make the enterprise one with nature.

WORKPLACE QUALITY

Working Conditions

Employees’ Basic Information

By 31 December 2014, there were about 62,000 employees working
in the Group. All of them are full-time employees, and the majority
are young and middle-aged employees. The tables below show the
employee details by age distribution, education level, job locations

and gender ratio.

0 % 5% 8147 % /5 PR /2 A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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HEEHAH
A Batt
Percentages
of total
EFiREES 2 By Age band Numbers employees
16E1873% 16-18 4,239 6.84%
18ZE405% 18-40 46,655 75.25%
40E555% 40-55 10,824 17.46%
5585 A £ above 55 282 0.45%
FEE Total 62,000 100.0%
EEFRD M

Employees Age Distribution
HEEEH
A Aotk
Percentages
of total
BHEE D By Education Numbers employees
E+ &AL Master degree and above 31 0.1%
N Undergraduate 2,193 3.5%
FERUAT Secondary technical school degree and below 59,776 96.4%
EEt Total 62,000 100.0%

EBEHBEKF

Employees Education Level
HEE#H
AE Aotk
Percentages
of total
4 Bl Gender Numbers employees
s Male 19,993 32.25%
z Female 42,007 67.75%
st Total 62,000 100.0%

4 Bl tb &
Gender Ratio
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HESHAE

A Bt

Percentages

of total

ZERE D By Country Numbers employees
BB K B Mainland China 50,263 81.07%
RIE Cambodia 9,457 15.25%
Ei Others 2,280 3.68%
4Gt Total 62,000 100.0%

BERBED M

Employees by Job Locations

ESREBFFZi T Statistical analysis of employee turnover rate
%Z:tf?—miﬂ—fﬂ@ » #£7562,000% 1 By the end of December 2014, there were 62,000 employees in
GEtEER AEE_Z—UFEHAFHYE total. According to the statistics, the Group's monthly average
ERBEAE538% R_Z—=F f0.2118 employee turnover rate in 2014 was 5.38%, representing a decrease
AR (T —=%F:559%)°  —Z—M4F of 0.21 percentage points when compared with 2013 (2013: 5.59%).

I]

\

BRI EE R ERG.9% ° The monthly average new employee turnover rate in 2014 was 6.9%,
EMNEBEARRERENEERSERAR  Shenzhou Group has successfully maintained a relatively low staff
AT B R i - turnover rate, thanks to the following effective measures:

1 BESTHEERBERR: FHEFHE 1. For five years in a row, chartered coaches were arranged
1,1948 7T | [M131E % » @& L2748 iR during Chinese New Year holidays for staff to go home: an
#B2h - 2768+ 0 13,387 A - BEE® average contribution of RMB11.94 million each year was made
BETEHXR -HFHBE HEMETILE for arranging 276 round-trip chartered coaches covering 274
[ o location in 13 provinces for 13,387 staff to go home, and to

return to work after the Chinese New
Year holidays safe and sound.

2 RABIMBEESZ
EERBTIBERESRM |
BT FLXHREIE |
201165H - ElkmE
FTERF L ERITE R R
M BRABHE

2. The Company is mindful of
educational causes and places great
emphasis on staff development and
education for the children of its staff. In
May 2011, the inauguration ceremony
of the Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,

BREESNIUEN Ltd. Education Development Fund was
BIFZpErE AAEFHETLS held at the administration centre in Beilun region. In the area
EARTUBRAEEREE L FRNER of schooling for the children of its staff, the Company liaises
MERH -FR - AQXFEHHEMNET with the staff union each year to resolve practical difficulties in
MBEBRBABMEEMA WEBHESESL schooling for children of management staff as far as possible.
AR #408,0007T ° This year, the Company sponsored approximately RMB408,000

for a total of 34 Shenzhou staff to study in university.
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BEBEN BRLE-

As a labour intensive corporation, Shenzhou Group places
exceptional emphasis on and pays special attention to
the wellbeing of its staff, both physically and mentally. The
Company established a mental health information centre,
“Joyful Community”, in October 2011. With specialists serving
as counsellors, “Joyful Community” is equipped with music
facilities for relaxation and punching facilities for venting
emotions. Through handling cases received, organising
group activities and holding seminars, the centre resolves
psychological distress and relieves emotional pressure of staff
and gives them peace of mind.

FAAKECEPELBEIRES @

During the year, the Group distributed emergency relief fund to

BRENE TR BB MZERK

around 31 staff who encountered financial difficulties or family

Bh&E & RE B problems and pulled them through.

4 ESFFHEEETIEKRIEA 4. An average rise in salary has been around 11.53% each year
11.583% ° for the past five years.

BEHEZZ Health and Safety

AEEsFRREENSRAMETAE 0
EE - FERFIR-

The Group distributes labor protection appliances and tools to
employees every year, such as masks, gloves and uniforms.

AEEBLERZSRBEE -EAEMER
RIUEBBRFER - BEBERZERARSE
S RRREBEFERBEHBER-

The Group cares about the physical health of employees. It sets
up employee health records for every employee. Besides regular
checkup on occupational diseases, the Company organizes annual
checkups to prevent occupational diseases.
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A total of 78 injuries were recorded in 2014. No significant injury was
recorded. Lost work days due to injuries were 4,669 days in total.
The Group will strengthen on-the-job trainings to raise awareness of
occupational safety.

The Group supplies free first-aid kits and medicines to employees,
which plays an important role in emergencies. The Group complies
with national labor laws and regulations and arranges the dayoff
and working timetables stringently in accordance with national
requirements. Employees are also entitled to annual leave.

Development and training

The Group gives very serious attention to the internal and external
studies and trainings to improve employees’ education level and
capabilities, and trains talents properly that are needed in the
Group’s development. The Group established The Shenzhou
Management Institute and it has become the cradle of developing
the Group’s management talents. By the end of 2014, 23,632
man-times had been recorded in the training.

Shenzhou School of Management was established on 21
September, 2012. The preliminary training target was the
management staff of garment manufacturing department. The school
formulates the curriculum according to the training requirements
of the Company and devotes to enhancing the management level
of management staff above the position of group leader, so as to
enhance the quality and efficiency of the products in the production

site.

In addition to training opportunities, certain managerial staffs
are offered with promotions to higher positions so that they can
demonstrate and further hone their management skills.

BRI B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Career prospects for employees

Our employees have fair access to adequate learning and
trainings as well as ample promotion opportunities. Shenzhou’s
Performance Committee has set up branches in every department
of the Company, establishing a standardized system whereby the
development of employees and the enterprise can be mutually
integrated. Our employees are encouraged to engage freely in
trainings with regard to their own specialized duties and other
industrial technologies, accordingly, we provide such learning
opportunities as well as the possibilities of promotions and
adjustments to our employees.

Labour Standards

In 20183, the Group formulated some requirements like the “Strict
Prohibition of Engaging Child Labor Administrative Provisions”,
“Underage Worker Administrative Provisions” and “Strict Prohibition
of Forced Labor Administrative Provisions” in order to completely
eradicate child labor, underage workers and forced labor.

Strict forbiddance of forced labour and child labour

Over the past 20 years of Shenzhou’s operation, there has not been
a single case of forced labour or child labour. For the purpose of
compliance with the relevant laws of China, Vietham and Cambodia,
Shenzhou has laid out comprehensive provisions and accountability
procedures in respect to the recruitment, labor use and dismissal.

The above administrative provisions are implemented seriously in
all departments. The following measures reveal how the Group can
eradicate effectively child labor during the recruitment process:

New employee must provide his/her identity card when commencing
employment, so as to verify his/her actual age.

In the recruitment interview, interviewers will observe very carefully
the differences between the photograph on the identity card and the
genuine face. If there is much difference, or the actual age seems
obvious to be younger, then it shall be verified by identity card
identification system or otherwise.

Employee care commences from the grass-roots teams. Employees

participate actively in the interaction with management at all levels to
eradicate forced labor effectively.
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Zero discrimination

We have established anti-discrimination policy and comply with the

requirements of relevant laws. There has been no occurrence of

discrimination in Shenzhou against race, region, gender, nationality,

age, pregnancy or disability in respect to employee recruitment,

training, salary and promotion.

i
=
._.fﬁ,ﬁmﬂ!:ﬂsm

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.

The Profile of Shenzhou’s Environmental Protection:
Environmental protection is one of the core policy of the
government. Since 1 January 2015, the Chinese government
implemented the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC which was being amended during the year. The new
environmental law focuses on the control of total emission of
major pollutants and emphasizes the corporate responsibilities
on environmental protection.

The main resources and energy used in the process of the
Group’s production include water, electricity, coal, biomass fuel
and steam. Fabric production is the main process of energy
consumption. The main wastes generated from production
are wastewater and waste gas etc., the former of which is
generated from dyeing process. Through clean water and
sewage split-flow in the production process, lightly polluted
water for dyeing and cleaning is recycled after treatment, and
dyed polluted water is discharged after strict treatment.

BRI B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Currently, the Group has recycled facilities in China, with
capacity of 15,000 tons of reclaimed water per day, which
effectively lower water consumption and sewage direct
discharge. The waste gases generated from production
process are mainly carbon dioxide and sulphur dioxide.

In 2014, the Group’s fabric production output increased by
2%, with consumption of electricity, one of major energy
increasing by approximately 2.9% and consumption of
electricity per unit production decreased slightly. As a result of
using cleaner biomass fuel to substitute coal as basic energy,
total consumption of coal decreased by 40.23% for the year,
substantially reducing total volume of sulphur dioxide discharge
and effectively reducing adverse impacts on environment.
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Indirect energy consumption-Gas
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Indirect energy consumption-Electricity
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Energy consumption in 2014
Our main energy consumption in the last two years was as
follows:

The date include the Group’s total energy consumption in the
entire knitting, dyeing and finishing and garment manufacturing
processes and all its operational regions.

BEEEREEE - &R

Indirect energy consumption-Steam
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e P.S: Steam used for part of dyeing machine heating up
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Direct energy consumption
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3.

Consumption in 2013~ Consumption in 2014

Consumption in 2013 Consumption in 2014

o BHEE B AEMVENRRL A VESRIE D ZA R AL
e P.S: Coal and bio-mass are used as fuel for boiler heating

—E-NFRRRESNFEKE 3. Water consumption in 2014 by source
BRRRE 7 WFEKE
Water consumption by source
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4. HN-ZS-—NEBKERRERHEHRE 4. Shenzhou’s wastewater discharge and smoke emission

in 2014
—FtRmBENE Bk HERRE
Volume of sulphur dioxide discharged Volume of waste water discharged
2r 106 19000000 ) 043 077 12,023,082
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0 0
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Volume of smoke and dust discharged Volume of nitrogen dioxide discharged
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0 0
—E-=FHRE ZE-EHRE —E-FHWE —E-FHNRE
Volume of discharge Volume of discharge Volume of discharge Volume of discharge
in 2013 in 2014 in 2013 in 2014
BiBE R HEFE e - Measures in energy conservation and emission
reduction:
FZF—OF - A5 B EEUHT R &0 88 R In 2014, the Group adopted new measures in energy
BEREME - Plan - KB BRE  EHNE conservation and emission reduction, such as improvement
S FEAEEEEERMEE RN works on steam network and motors, with a view to enhance
B E - production efficiency and reduce emission.
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In order to expand the globalization layout of Shenzhou,
we launch product research & development, and process
improvement of manufacture technology in the innovation
center which is extremely crucial to our strategic planning.

The strengths of the innovation centres

The vision to be achieved by Shenzhou through its innovation
centres is to increase the added-value and profitability of
products, while developing the Company into a sustainable
operator through introducing our ideology of environmental
design when working products with our customers in the
innovation centres, reducing the use of fabrics and the
pressure to the environment caused by production emission.

° Design for Manufacturing and Assembly (DFMA) and
design production-friendly products as well as increasing
productivity

° Product diversification

o Shortening the cycle of product development and
saving the labor and cost deployed by Shenzhou and its

customers in R&D

° Integrating green elements in the design, reducing the
materials usage and cut chemicals using

o Increasing the product quality

° Ensuring a health and safety production environment for
the staff

BRI B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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BEHK

G2 Ozone Wash ' B1IEE %K RAE
A LE  BBG2ARN R A HARE
BITHK EXRYWEABREMKEER
BB E—HRERBLEBEBEIRE
PR MG2EEHEKR TIEERWE A T H
KegME T EHERERENES -

AEB-BEHESBEaLE [Eml
A mERKES BEEBREOR
mEETFNEXRBERNERDAT
HE-BRETEXZEISHRE BIE
ITHFEERER RELEERE2-3% -

Ozone Wash

G2 Ozone Wash means ozone washing. Ozone is a strong
oxidant which causes the clothes to discolour naturally
and forms vintage style by washing the clothes with ozone
composing of G2. Generally this effect needs to be completed
by chemical agents, however, G2 production replaces the use
of chemicals and reduces water consumption, which minimizes
the pressure to environment caused by this type of products.

The Group has always upheld lean manufacture. The
“intelligent hanging system” is controlled by computers and is a
transmission and logistic tool which is responsible for allocating
tasks to operators in each workstation. The system lowers the
heavy workload of operating staff and reduces the transmission

time of each working process as well as increasing the
production efficiency by 2 to 3%.

BT
ERBBOEERERENEENEE
& WG T E AT ENTE B R IR FEAR A K
HOBRE BRI T ERIRMER
B — AT ENFERE RTINS 71 A] 2
RIREmM °

Digital Print

Through digital print, more accurate and vivid colors can be
achieved and get rid of consumption from film and water in
traditional print way. The consumption of power and resources
can be effectively reduced, therefore, a T-shirt with beautifully-
designed printing can also be an environmental-friendly
product.
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N

sewage treatment and smoke emissions testing

The Group has set up integrated sewage treatment in
Ningbo factories since the plants built up to comply with the
emission standards before discharging. It carries out regular
inspections according to the Environmental Protection Bureau’s
requirements. The respective environmental protection
authorities have installed online detection devices at the
sewage outfalls.

The frequency of inspection on wastewater discharge is:
realtime monitoring for on-sale inspection; once every three
months for sample inspection.

The Group also conducts online monitoring on smoke
emission to ensure compliance with the emission standards
before discharging. The respective environmental protection
authorities have also installed online monitoring devices at our
smoke outfalls. The frequency of inspection on smoke and gas
emission is: real-time monitoring for on-site inspection; once

every three months for sample inspection.
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Solid waste separation and treatment

We conduct a separation and treatment process for all solid
waste, part of which will be recycled and reused to minimize
its pollution to the environment. Our Group classifies all
solid waste into four categories according to the relevant

BEYoRNE - RESEREEFLR Regulations for Waste Classification and Management. Please
TEke refer to the following table for the specific classification and
weight.
—Z2-=F% —E-QmE
] Bhl B IR EE(TR) EE(TR)
Weight in Weight in
Category Particulars Source of waste 2013 (Kg) 2014 (kg)
AR AR ARA AR S ERE BAR BT EK HE AEREXER 7,601,240 12,636,200
Reusable or recyclable Waste paper boxes, waste Knitting, Dyeing and Garment
paperboards and papers paper cones, waste paper cores, making process
waste papers
A BRI A AR R E @ ER HE - REREXRR 17,074,026 16,854,033
Reusable or recyclable waste fabric Waste fabric, pied hair Knitting, Dyeing and Garment
making process
BRARERZFEREY BRI EHR HE - REREXRR 261,335 426,512
Reusing or recycling of Plastic wire cores, plastic bags Knitting, Dyeing and Garment
non-hazardous waste making process
WEBEMARE Y2 FEEREY H &R EERPDLE 1,650,000 2,352,000

No reusing or recycling of

Household garbage

Canteen and office

non-hazardous waste

. bt B BRI B E R R AR
[EE e

AEBERBENFBERRZOE &
BXBUHEEFEFRREREEZA
&2 ZHREEANCREZR BER
BORERBESE AEEREH
FEIRR 7 B 2 A e S P 23 RN 22 0
BRI SIEAEEERARRSEAK
We TEIRTAAARNEEE RIS N
MEFZEE -

“E--ERERREBREEEERE
BRE-R-_ZF_FTFHHERRTER

RHE

o All above mentioned waste are collected by different local service
providers.

As an enterprise keen on sustainable development, the
Group vigorously supports and maintains its role as a proper
environmental protector, proactively deepens and internalizes
environmental awareness, and has the low-carbon concept
deeply indoctrinated in the whole Group. We firmly believe that
our commitment to environmental protection will become a
part of Shenzhou’s core competitiveness, leading the Group to
greater success in the future. The following pictures show the
certificate granted to the Group in recognition of energy saving
and emission reduction.

Selected by World Famous Brand Association to be the world’s

first pilot unit for the 2020 environmental standards for the
textile industry in 2013
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MERXIRERTIRE BEE&E The process of the garment factory in Vietnam, from design
TR BERE R A LEEDAIZ AR and construction to completion, fulfils the standard of LEED
& - KRR TR 4% 57 & B 122 LEEDIR GREEN GOAL. The future target ranking of the factory is LEED
hg SILVER GOAL.

EEESR OPERATING PRACTICES
HEEEE Supply Chain Management
TEEEHE: Major Operating Regions:

RNEBEBEMEEMROTNEN R :4®A Shenzhou Group currently has operations in the regions shown in

BN RER 2@ BeaENEEHE  the following Chart: the green color represents the headquarter of

B B ARIMNBI AN EERE- Shenzhou in Ningbo; the orange color represents the sales offices
of Shenzhou; the yellow color represents the production bases other
than the headquarter of Shenzhou.

B B
Shenzhou-Shanghai

China

MR E
Shenzhou-Anging

Shenzhou-Japan

M A
Shenzhou-Quzhou
= ' Shenzhol bo Headquarter
BN R HMEE
Shenzhou-Vietnam - Shenzhou-Hong Kong

g South
China
Sea

Shenzhou-Cambodia

RINEEEE R
Operating Regions of Shenzhou Group
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BEEE

Topic Concerned

The working system of the main subsidiary of the Group, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (2% R MET 4B 2 5), manages
the implementation of critical working processes, and controls and
affects the horizontal linking up of the working processes at the
same time, and all working processes from an organic integrity.

To ensure the smooth operation of the critical processes, the Group
adopts systematic management measures and formulates a series
of management systems to fulfill the requirements of the processes
and provide tactical execution. At the same time, we utilize
various measures such as management by objectives to stipulate
key performance indicators to control and improve the working
processes.

Topics concerned by our suppliers and the channels we used to
communicate with our suppliers are shown in the following charts:

BEARX

Communication Channel

REeEm

Green products

HERE
Supplier

EmEE

Product quality

EHRIRE(

Response to climate changes

AIREER
Sustainability

[ B
AEEEIHEERBE A HBRIZR
LEmETERE BREEBREMERZR
KA R BAREREEIFE - REH
ALRBEZLERTERRNEE AAEE
IERR S BRAR Z 3Bl BB MR8 &%

e 7 T BOR

Supplier policies and requirements

TR

Regular meetings

HEBAS

Supplier summit

A ERITIE B
Cooperative technology projects

& Mimig
Workshops and forums

Risk management

The Group has established a list of chemicals and conducts
management and control on dangerous or restricted chemicals to
ensure that the dyes, agents and detergent used during production
will strictly follow the management and control list. Non-tested and
uncertified chemicals and not allowed to be used in production and a
stringent identification and tracking system is being established.
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The Group has developed a chemical management and control
process which covers dyes supplier management, incoming
materials inspection, product testing and wastewater discharge
inspection, ensuring a comprehensive management and control of

chemicals applications.

Procurement process

Dedicated staff of the designated departments is responsible
for the procurement of all materials of the Group. The materials
procured mainly include cotton yarn, dyestuffs, trims, office supplies,
fixed assets, equipment and spare parts, and canteen supplies.
Procurement cost control is an important measure to enhance profit
on products. The quality of cotton yarn, dyestuffs and trims procured
will directly affect the quality of products of the Group and the
corporate image. Procurement is one of the most important aspects
affecting product competitiveness.

To ensure the effectiveness of the procurement process, the Group
formulates management documents such as “Procurement Control
Procedures”. The Group segregates the procurement process into
two flows, namely procurement plan formulation and procurement

implementation, see the following chart.

PRIEER

F izt &l Demand Plan

h

s
)
. Purchase Requisiton

%51 &l Purchasing Plan

h

B i% 1% Selection of Suppliers

4

EESIEER
Determination of purchase price

hadd

FERTHEZE i KRR & 4
Entering into Framework Agreement
or Purchase Contract

4

E IR E 712 Management of Supply Process

had

| @

A&
|| Warehousmg -~ || Claims etc.

E1 Inspection for Acceptance

El—uﬁ f'x g
ass or Fail Return of Goods-

= g* e

|| Claims etc.

= |

=R

75k Payment

70

> 2

MBER  BiF
Financial Control, Accounting etc.

-~
g
BREBEETS 15 HATAL
Post Assessment of Procurement Business
FERIRRET

Procurement Process Design
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Principal products:

EmEE

FTEEM:

AEEBE-KREER EPHER KERK
AR -FENABERBEXRR Bl &
e RAES FIRCTHL - BERARE -

The Group has three principal categories of products, namely are
sports product, casual wear and lingerie. The Main Specific products
include jackets, vests, pants, trousers, tops, T-shirts, dresses and
lingerie etc.

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Group’s major subsidiaries have adopted the ISO 14001, ISO
9001 and OHSAS 18001 management systems to strengthen the
safety and environmental protection, after considering facts such as

ZERRREERE

KEEEEBMEXN SERERZRERE
BEEASHBEFER AEENZZEME
ABIEEAISO 14001 +1SO 9001 & OHSAS
18001 E B X LIER{E LT 2 RIRIR - a large number of employees, plenty of production equipment and

considerable management span.

TE%Z!S;%@E’WSO 14001 ~1SO 9001 K%

OHSASHIE & :

R F WAk fAAEE H
HAEY LA
auw
THPEGETROE
RN TR AR RO T
R TR A L e
lznnliluii;ﬁ‘u.
GIT 240011004

" lH.I-I.II!ﬁF
e HEEE. SREWE. BY. SELFANLEESE

NG SENSAEN SENERE mobai i G e
SR ke A R ERRER AR B —

. P
s@?’% =)

IIIE!ll.lllIlJIl

The Group’s ISO 14001,
shown below:

@.
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ISO 9001 and OHSAS certificates are
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In terms of safety and environmental protection, the Group
strengthens the safety education, establishes safety operation
specifications for related job posts and enhances equipment
maintenance. On the other hand, considering a large number of
employees, the Group emphasizes on food safety and occupational
health administration.

With safety, health and environmental protection in mind, the Group
has established a safety department, an emergency response team
and a professional Three Wastes Treatment System to reduce the
use of toxic and hazardous substances to meet the standards of
Three Wastes treatment, thus ensuring the occupational health of
employees, maintaining clean production, energy conservation and
carbon reduction, and responding to and dealing with emergencies.
For the major focus areas, see the following chart.

ZEPhE
Security
Protection

ZEHERR
Safety and
Environmental
Protection

EERE
Employee
Health

BREE
Clean
Production

ZERIRRTIFEH

Focuses of Safety and Environmental Protection Work

EEREE

AEEZINBBEREREFSEEZNR.
HFF LT - BB i AEECEEY
MEBRPZEREHF LHESHEEH 2T
SRR MRS SCE - UL BERP R A&
BHENSORERABMARERERA
2MEHE  AEE2EERES Z 5 - B
FKERTH &% HERRKREER BT

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

The Group aims to understand all kinds of customer requirements,
expectations and concerns by listening to them. Through these
methods, the Group has transformed and satisfied customer
requirements and expectations and promoted its market expansion
and service improvement. Furthermore, when customers visit the
Group, the sales department will gather directly relevant department
heads and the person-in-charge to attend meetings to have a
comprehensive understanding of customers’ expectations. The
relevant departments will convene special meetings to seek specific
solutions to those aspects that fail to meet customers’ expectations

BRI B B 45 @1 4% % 45 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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for the time being. The direct person-in-charge from the sales,
research and development and production departments will attend
regular Sales and Operations meetings every week to discuss the
current problems and customers’ requirements, analyze the causes
and find solutions to meet customers’ requirements.

To protect the security of specific customers’ information from
leaking out, the Company entered into confidential agreements
with specific customers and also protected the patents of specific
customers.

In 2014, the Group was awarded “The Best Supplier” and
“Sustainability” by Nike. Meanwhile, the Group was also award
“2014 Performance Award — Availability” and “2014 Performance
Award — Sustainability” by ADIDAS. The following pictures are the
trophies awarded to our Group by Nike and ADIDAS.
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The Group vigorously encourages patents filings by research and
development staff, introduces rewarding policies for the authorization
of patents for inventions, steadily promotes patent commercialization
and endeavors to create its own brand products. In recent years,
the Group’s 71 independent and joint research and development
results have been put into production or applied in the current
production process with an annual average of 10 patents turning into
products. The Group has over 368 new products, 19 patents of new
utility models, 6 new inventions, 10 corporate standards and has
carried out improvements, and upgrades on its existing equipment
for example, the stowing ductility of garment factory. The Group
introduced encouragement policies on technological innovation,
including the Rewarding Methods on Scientific and Technological
Achievements and established a scientific and comprehensive

incentive mechanism on technological innovation.
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WTEXRREFHINSEMEREFEEE  Topics concerned by our suppliers and the channels we used to

R communicate with our suppliers are shown in the following charts:
BrEE BEAR
Topic Concerned Communication Channel
- AREERE SERFETE R
’ . Sustainability Regular meetings with senior and
mid-manager
BEIRELZE
Employees’ health and safety EEmMBEERET
HER Client satisfaction survey
Supplier ftEaf
Social responsibility 28T
Factory visits
FFERREm
Comfortable eco-products ERPIEE R
Visits to clients’ operation
R headquarters

Operating performance

HEPHEA ER L

HrEmEE® Co-establishing cooperative centres
Supply chain development with clients
EETERE Quality management process
$EIEEDD%E§&%L¢@€EE’1\E 2% The Group conducts a full range of monitoring measures in the
HEXEMmIEENEE - EEHEESEIE  purchase and manufacture of products based on a comprehensive
miE F2RTHE- quality management system, refer to the following chart for its quality

management process.

ﬁa—
F HE

I Quallty Objectives I

v

HEEE “Quali
Quality Management I I el I

V

. E%iﬁi il %TE}‘*%I 1l "a’f%ﬁéfﬁ 1K %TE'EAUE "
Quality Quality Quality Quality
planning Control Assurance Improvement

EEEERE
Quality Management Process

EERHTEEEER %%EF'E:-:FEJEKZ*B Quality control is a very important segment in the quality

Do ETBDAFEEREEEET BB &AIG - management process. It mainly embodies the supervision, inspection
REBRIESES 2N 7( Zoho and testing of product quality. The Group has established six focuses

of quality control.
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< BAIH

Quality Innovation
TEEERERRR
Metrological Control and
Model Inspection

P R AR ER

Finished Products Inspection

—B{tEEER
Integrated quality management

Incoming Inspection

RERR

Process Inspection

N

LEERB
Focuses of Quality Control

& : Anti-Corruption:

REBANWAFRAMEIFESERRLENLESE  In the over two decades of the Shenzhou Group’s history, the

ANEESHEMNEBKRYL —+ZFUK —&3xR founder and former chairman of the Group, Mr. Ma Baoxing, and

BIHE] TEERADSEL-HIERA each senior management have always been focusing on “integrity”

SETAETR TRHEBEEE in establishing the corporate culture. Integrity is the code of conduct
and moral standard of the Group.

BE_ZZFEY) FEAEESZH[HE] = Back in early 2000, Mr. Ma wrote the two Chinese characters “F {5

FoWBBHRAEPR ZESMEEITIZA  (integrity)” and hung them in the centre of the lobby hall, reminding

EERANESK - BUEE NAEBST KRE  every employee that it is the principle and requirement of the Group.

BB BB TP ERIREE - Every employee must abide by this and the Group also welcomes
closely monitoring by related authorities and customers.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Community Investment

Participation in community activities

The Group considers that supporting the community is one of the
driving forces for corporate development, as well as an important
motivation for building a “Harmonious Shenzhou”. The Group places
great emphasis on cultivating social responsibility awareness in its
staff and encourages them to participate in charitable community
activities. The Group contributed RMB16,947,000 in 2014 towards
participating in community activities and making various donations

for charitable causes.

With regard to education, the Group has made donations to
charitable funds not only as subsidies for around 34 university
students to pay their tuition fees, but also as subsidies for
kindergartens to renovate their premises.

With regard to healthcare, the Group has sponsored for and donated
around 200 quilts to care and attention homes for the aged. Apart
from this, the Group has also made contributions to the traditional
Chinese medicine association in Shanghai to support medical
research and innovation in order to give hands to more patients in
need. In addition, the Group also encourages its staff to donate

blood voluntarily and participate in more volunteer services.
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AEERAS

BE-_Z——F+TAR RNKRTHERS M
(Textile Exchange)Z & B ° #7432 5 F (Textile
Exchange)& — M R ER 2 IERBF AL K
RE RIREEME ZJﬁ%FE%ZTH*%*JEO
BN —EREGELETEER He kA
EE BAEAATRERERE  WARSHH
FZARRER-

BT _FR EREZEET AEEH
TEWMBRAR BRBMIBEBER B MA
J{?%CZC (BENEE)FRERRRE R

HMRABGEBENEAM B BRI EBE - Z
iﬁﬁuuﬁ C2CRREmEZK - WilMiBC2CE
MR BHC2C BB F2HC2CH

Ik www.c2c-world.com °

BE-ZT—=F# XEECD MABCIHL-
BCI' & fbetter cotton initiative - B35 B #1143
EEHR HXEENERRBIENEEESR
FMRBR EEFREERE  FEMRZE
ERRRERE - BN E BRI 5o B s E A
B ABCIHARMAK B gtk MR FBCI
HBEARA]: EIR KER  iREEE LT ENR
BR-iRicEE AR ERRENRE 18
EMEENMEESE EHEANFEHEER
T BESREENESTEME  BAREH
SERMNERENGIHES-

PARTICIPATION IN NON-PROFIT
ORGANIZATIONS

Shenzhou has become a member of Textile Exchange since October
2011. Textile Exchange is a non-profit organization based in USA,
the mission of which is to promote the sustainable development of
the entire textile value chain. Shenzhou has all along been actively
participating in industry conferences, seminars and other activities,
sharing best practices with relevant parties and discussing the future
development of the textile industry.

Up to 2012, guided by PUMA, our Group’s major subsidiary,
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. participated in the development
of PUMA C2C (Cradle to Cradle) closed-loop ecological
environmentally-friendly products. From its selection of original yarns
to dyeing materials, printing material and agents, this category
had complied with the C2C environmentally-friendly products
requirements and passed the C2C products certification. For more
relevant C2C information, please refer to C2C website: www.c2c-
world.com.

The Group has been a member of BCI (in full “better cotton
initiative”) since 2013. The keynote of BCI (in full “better cotton
initiative”) is to ensure the cultivation of cotton to be more beneficial
to cotton farmers, the cultivation environment and the future
development of the industry. Nike and Adidas, being the major
customers of Shenzhou, are both members of BCI Organization. The
six major principles (quality assurance, water resources, the health
of soil for cotton cultivation, protection of the ecological environment
of the surrounding areas of cotton cultivation, quality of cotton and
decent work) of BCI are increasingly recognized by the community.
These are in line with Shenzhou’s rationale of emphasizing social
responsibilities and promoting business with a conscience, which are
therefore well-received by the management of Shenzhou.

ER ) B B 45 1 4% % 5 FR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BCI

AEENRERTFLESMORELE-AEE  The Group also concerns on the protection of the wild animal. The
BT =FRAAERENEELEZMIR  Group became a silver member of WWF since 2013.

TERARETRAAESEEELAE The following pictures are the trophies awarded to our
B4k o Group by WWF.

FAAREENMATERTIERREZMLE . During the year, the Group joined Ning bo (Beilun) Charity
Association.

TEREKTIERRESESRLEAEEN  The following pictures are the certificates of merit awarded to our
HER Group by Ningbo (Beilun) Charity Association:
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ma Jianrong (52 #%8), aged 51,
and the Chairman of the Group. He is a senior economist. He is

is an Executive Director

responsible for the overall business development strategy of the
Group and has over 34 years of experience in the textile industry.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton
Mill (4R B 484588 ) and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant
(AN B T ST A AR R )

as the manager of the knitting and weaving department, a deputy

After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served

general manager and the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou
Weaving Group Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating
entity of the Group. He has been the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou
Knitting Co., Ltd.
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April

(“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was

2012. Mr. Ma is a deputy to the People’s Congress of Zhejiang
Province. He was awarded “Charity Model of Ningbo ( 22 17 % 2 #
)7, “Charity Prize of Zhejiang — Individual” (#7)L & = 85 — {& A %)
and “Prize for OQutstanding Charity Contribution in China”( Bl & &
RN EREE) .

Mr. Huang Guanlin (@)
and the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily

aged 50, is an Executive Director

operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 27 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#75T T %
KE) , majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005. Mr.
Huang was the chairman of the Nomination Committee during the
period from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Ma Jianrong.
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Mr. Ma Renhe (5{=f1), aged 55,
a deputy general manager of the Group. He is responsible for

is an Executive Director and

administration, dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has
over 38 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou
Linping Knitting and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr.
Ma worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been
a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002.
From October 2005 to March 2012, Mr. Ma was also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and subsequently redesignated as
a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma
Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Ms. Zheng Miaohui (51 1&) |
and a deputy general manager of the Group. She is responsible

aged 60, is an Executive Director

for the financial management of the Group and has over 30 years
of experience in financial management, and she obtained an
accountant qualification certificate. After joining the Group in 1988,
Ms. Zheng served as the manager and an assistant to the general
manager of the finance department of Ningbo Weaving. She has
been a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April
2005.

Mr. Wang Cunbo (EEFK) ,
department head of the finance department of the Group and the

aged 43, joined the Group as the

financial controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004. He was
appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011. He graduated from
Zhejiang University of Technology (7T T K &),
biology and chemical engineering, with a bachelor’s degree in

majoring in

engineering in 1995. In the same year, Mr. Wang studied at Zhejiang
University of Technology where he obtained a master’s degree in
management in 1998. In addition, he obtained the certificates of
the PRC certified public accountant, the PRC registered tax agent
and the PRC certified public valuer and senior accountant and the
operating permit of the PRC public certified accountant engaged in
securities and futures-related business. Prior to joining the Group, he
was a partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde United Accounting Firm (
R ER A 2 ETAIESFT) |, a deputy general manager of Ningbo
Yongde Corporate Management and Consulting Firm ( 2 i sk @ (> %
EBBRAEHM),

accountant.

and has over 6 years of experience as certified
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Ms. Chen Zhifen (FRZ %), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Group on 1 December 2013. She is a
deputy general manager of the Group, responsible for all garment
manufacturing departments, and has over 25 years of experience in
the textile industry. After joining the Group in April 1990, she worked
as the section chief, the manager of the garment manufacturing
department, the manager of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment
manufacturing departments, an assistant to the general manager
of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general manager of the
Group. During the period from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms.
Chen studied at Naval University of Engineering (/8% T K&)
majoring in management engineering. She also graduated from TBM
LeanSigma Institute with a certificate for completion of the Kaizen
Promotion Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing Excellence in
2007 and the College of Economics of Zhejiang University ( #7/T A £
£ 2B ) with a certificate for the senior seminar class for modern
entrepreneur managers in 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (¥ 8 @), aged 50, studied accounting in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the PRC (74
m BT & K E) from 1982 to 1986 and obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in Economics majoring in accounting. Mr. Jiang started teaching
at Zhejiang University of Technology (H/T T# X&) in 1986 and
is currently a professor in the School of Economics, Trade and
Management (4 & & 2 8% ) of Zhejiang University of Technology.
Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in the University’s MBA
Education Centre and has been engaged by the Science Technology
Department of Zhejiang Province (C#T)T & &) as its special
finance expert. Mr. Jiang is the vice president of the Association of
Credit Assessment and Management of Hangzhou, PRC (41 T {5
& &), adirector of Institute of Finance Engineering, Zhejiang
Province, PRC U/ T & £ & Ti22 &), and the chief financial
adviser to FM BEE IR EHAF]. Mr. Jiang was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012.
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Mr. Chen Genxiang (FR#E %), aged 66, has over 45 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Chen obtained a certificate
of dyeing and finishing engineer from /& &4A 78T K. Mr.
Chen joined the Company’s subsidiary, Shenzhou Knitting, in 1993
up to his retirement. Mr. Chen worked for the Group until he retired
in 2007 and before his retirement, he was a deputy general manager
of Shenzhou Khnitting responsible for the product development of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. Chen served as
an assistant to the factory manager of Shanghai Knitting No. 20
Plant and a deputy general manager of Shanghai Baoye Knitting
Company Limited. Mr. Chen joined the Group in August 2011 as
an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. He was promoted
to the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee in April 2012.

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (3/&H) , aged 63, joined the Group on 1 April
2013 as an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Qiu
graduated from Party School of Ningbo Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China, holding a bachelor’s degree and the
qualification of practicing as an economist in Ningbo (Intermediate
level). He served as a factory manager of Ningbo Chemical Fibre
Plant (Z &L 28 #F) , the chairman and chief executive of Z
HEFIEL B, a manager of ER W44 T 3% 2 7], the chairman
and chief executive of R 47 4% 5 B 15 %2 7], the party secretary
of the Communist Party Committee of the city of Fenghua. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Qiu served as the chief of Ningbo Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision (ZF T E 2 FHIITEEH) and the
secretary to the Party Committee. He retired in April 2012.
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Mr. Chen Xu (BRfB) , aged 66, joined the Group on 1 December
2013 as an independent non-executive Director and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Chen graduated from Hangzhou Chemistry and Industry Institute
(ML E T 24 ) with a diploma in chemical machinery and the
Leadership Training Class of the Party School of Zhejiang Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party (H/T & Z ER B EBEHTT) .
Between July 1970 and September 1983, Mr. Chen held various
positions at Zhenhai Fertiliser Plant ($8)8 8t JE® ) including
coordinator, deputy section chief of production and technology,
workshop director, deputy secretary of the party committee as well
as factory director. Mr. Chen also served as deputy head of the
organisation department of Zhenhai County Party Committee (38§
S EZAALEEL) from June 1985 to October 1985. He was a member
of the standing committee and the secretary of the Commission
for Discipline Inspection of Binhai (Beilun) District of Ningbo (&
WTHEE (4% )[R ) between October 1985 and March 1992. He
was also a member of the standing committee of the Commission
for Discipline Inspection of Ningbo (Z ) T 40 % ) between August
1989 and March 1992, the vice secretary and the secretary of the
commission and the chairman of the standing committee of the
Local People’s Congress of Binhai (Beilun) District (27 Tt @ & A
K#HZEE) between March 1992 and January 2003. From February
2002 to March 2011, Mr. Chen served as the vice chairman of the
standing committee of the Local People’s Congress of Ningbo ( 2
EHMAAXNEZE). He was appointed as the deputy director of the
advisory committee to the People’s Government of Ningbo ( Z )&
ARBF#HHZEE ) in August 2011 and retired from this position in
September 2013.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (FR#E ) , aged 44, joined the Group
in September 2008. He is currently the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 19 years of
experience in auditing, financial controlling, company secretarial
and accounting. Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in China Business
Management. Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax Adviser
in Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Hu Jijun (B&E)
the Group. He is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group

aged 46, is a deputy general manager of

and has 25 years of sales and marketing experience in the Japanese
knitwear market. After joining the Group in September 1989, Mr.
Hu worked at the production and operation department of Ningbo
Weaving as the deputy manager and an assistant to the general
manager, responsible for export sales. He has been a deputy general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Chen Lan (BR/E) , aged 49,
the Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such

is a deputy general manager of

as cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 26 years
of experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (B #i#) , aged 53, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the production planning of the Group,
and has over 27 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department (& 7K
—#B) , assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.

Mr. Yan Delin (S&#), aged 60,
of the Group, in charge of the operations of the Group’s garment

is a deputy general manager

factory in Cambodia and has over 27 years of experience in textile
industry. He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as the head of the equipment
division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant, the
head of its office, and a deputy general manager of joint venture
companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (RMBIEPR A E) ,
during which, he served as the general manager of a Cambodian
company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After joining the
Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy head of the
office of Ningbo Weaving and has been an assistant to the general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2005. He graduated from
the Correspondence College at the Party School of the Central
Committee of CCP, majoring in economic management.
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Mr. Jiang Tao (JI7), aged 48, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the Uniglo Business Department of
the Group. He has 19 years of experience in knitting and weaving
industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Faculty of English at Shanghai
University (_E/8KXE) | majoring in English for international trade.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai Dongfang Rimian
Company Limited ( L8375 BA&2 B R A F]) . After joining the Group
in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for the sales to
Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (E#2# ), aged 51, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for the Group’s technology
and quantity affairs, and has over 26 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy
factory manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant ( 22 1k iy fR 2
%) , in charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager
of the production and operation department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (# k), aged 49, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of fabric
technology, and has over 26 years of experience in textile industry.
He obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu graduated
from Zhejiang Industrial University (/T T % X2 ) with a bachelor’s
degree in industrial management engineering. He joined the Group
immediately after graduation and worked as an assistant manager,
deputy manager of the production and operation department and an
assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving, responsible for
the affairs of fabrics and technology.

Mr. Ma Bin (B #) , aged 44, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
NIKE Business Department of the Group. He is fully in charge of
the operation and project management and customer relationship
maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma has 15
years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the Group,
he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department of
European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University and later obtained
his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Ma served as the business development manager of the Sealand
Securities.
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Mr. Song Qing (RE), aged 45,
manager and the manager of the ADIDAS Business Department

is an assistant to the general

of the Group. He is fully in charge of the general management
and system construction of the ADIDAS Business Department of
the Group. He assists the general manager with other aspects of
operations and has 17 years of experience in the textile industry.
In 1994, Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer
Science and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical
University. He obtained a Master of Technology from the National
University of Singapore in 2005 and graduated from the NTU-SJTU
Joint Executive MBA (EMBA) Programme in 2008. Having joined the
Group in January 2007, Mr. Song has 10 years of work experience
in Singapore. Beginning in 1997, he worked as a senior software
development engineer for a software development firm for a year.
In 1998, he joined KZET M ABRAF of the textile industry
and served as its IT Manager and Chief Information Officer CIO
successively.

Mr. Xu Huiguo (%2 El) , aged 62, joined the Group in 2011. He
is currently a deputy general manager of the Group in charge of
the administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 43 years
of experience in administration and management. Mr. Xu obtained
an undergraduate qualification in economic management from the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. and is a qualified
engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he was the team leader of the
wiring team (488X ) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau (EXEER) | a
manager and the secretary of the party branch of 2K ERRIE L
25 N 7], the general manager of %) & % /A 7], the chief of Beilun
District Electricity Bureau (b # % /&) and the general manager of
Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
primary activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 102 to 219.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$1.00 (including a special dividend of HK$0.35) (equivalent to
approximately RMBO0.79) per share for the year ended 31 December
2014 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 8 June 2015. However, the proposed
payment of the dividend shall be subject to approval by shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on
28 May 2015.

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June
2014.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB16,947,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

BRI B B 45 142 % 5 PR /2 @ Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2014,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB3,114,621,000, of which RMB1,103,671,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 220.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company issued convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$3,900,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,097,380,000 if calculated at an exchange rate of
HK$1=RMBO0.7942 on the Issue Date), bearing a coupon rate of
0.5% and payable semi-annually. The maturity date of convertible
bonds is on the Maturity Date, unless previously redeemed,
converted, purchased, cancelled or otherwise provided in the
terms and conditions of the bonds. The Company will redeem the
convertible bonds at 103.86% of their principal amounts on the
Maturity Date. The initial conversion price of the bonds is HK$38.56
per share (subject to adjustment). On the Issue Date, the initial
recognition amount of RMB2,846,450,000 for the liability component
of the bonds was calculated using a market interest rate of 3.55%
for a non-convertible bond of the same class. Equity component
amount of RMB197,140,000 was credited to the reserves of
shareholders’ equity. For relevant details, please refer to note 32 to
the financial statements and the announcements of the Company
dated 22 May 2014, 18 June 2014 and 19 June 2014, respectively.

Save for the issuing of convertible bonds of the Company mentioned
above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2014.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of the report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Genxiang

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo
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In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Ma Renhe,
Ms. Zheng Miaohui and Mr. Qiu Weiguo shall retire by rotation at

Articles of Association, Mr. Huang Guanlin, Mr.
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations
of independence from Mr. Chen Genxiang, Mr. Chen Xu, Mr. Jiang
Xianpin and Mr. Qiu Weiguo pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and has considered that they are all independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which will be automatically
renewed for another term of three years subject to compliance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules
until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the respective service
contract. According to the respective service contract, it may be
terminated at any time by either party giving the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
will be automatically renewed for another term of three years subject
to compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract, it may be terminated at any time by the Independent Non-
executive Director giving not less than three months’ prior written
notice.

Under the respective service contracts, each of the Executive
Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus
as the Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided
that the aggregate amount of the discretionary management
bonuses payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial
year of the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the
Group after taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate
amount of the discretionary management bonuses but before non-
recurring items for the relevant financial year.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
below and “Related party transactions” in note 42 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND MEMBER OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
members of the Senior Management of the Group are set out on
pages 80 to 87.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Securities Trading Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

RAERATEBERPZEFR Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company
HERRABEBIT
£ Mz SORERER RHEHE RAEH 2 L (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BREREE 1 NGIL 3 750,332,500 53.63%
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interests 750,332,500 53.63%
BEMEE 2 NGIL 3 89,217,500 6.37%
Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Corporate interests 89,217,500 6.37%
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Note:

1. As at 31 December 2014, 750,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
80.08% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
13.92% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 6.00% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 750,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2014, 89,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 70.17% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 29.83% by certain senior management
of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui, Mr. Wang Cunbo and
Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are executive Directors). MCC, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin of Mr.
Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be
interested in the 89,217,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Securities Trading Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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BT ARS % A E 2 RSN ¢ required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO:

RAEARATNEBERDPZHE Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
AR BT
£ e SOREZER R4 & A BRAH 2 Lt (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
ISES 1 BEmEAA 750,332,500 53.63%
Keep Glory 1 Beneficial owner 750,332,500 53.63%
TEF 1 NEIR £ 750,332,500 53.63%
Splendid Steed 1 Corporate interests 750,332,500 53.63%
2= 2 BEmEAA 89,217,500 6.37%
Fairco 2 Beneficial owner 89,217,500 6.37%
MCC 2 NalEm 89,217,500 6.37%
MCC 2 Corporate interests 89,217,500 6.37%

B 5 - Notes:
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As at 31 December 2014, 750,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is owned as to 80.08% by Splendid Steed, 13.92%
by BMX and 6.00% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is deemed to
be interested in the 750,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.
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2 As at 31 December 2014, 89,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is owned as to 70.17% by MCC and 29.83% by certain senior
management of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui, Mr. Wang
Cunbo and Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are executive Directors). MCC, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin
of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, MCC is deemed to be
interested in the 89,217,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2014 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

hEBEE hiEEEZ

B 7t (%) B2 (%)

Percentage of Percentage of

Purchases (%) Sales (%)

BAEERFF The largest supplier/customer 11.2 23.45
AARHER, EF A5  Five largest suppliers/customers combined 28.0 85.39

BOAEF ZFBAI 25 mRMES -
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T

For further information about the top four customers, please refer to
note 4 to the financial statements.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers at all times during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 42 to
the financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered
into and/or are ongoing for which relevant disclosure had been
made by the Company in announcements in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
a. Lease of certain production premises and facilities
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Ningbo
Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”) entered
into a lease agreement on 18 December 2013, pursuant to
which Shenzhou Properties leased to Shenzhou Knitting the
apparel production properties for a period commencing on 1
January 2014 and expiring on 31 December 2016, with a right
of renewal exercisable by Shenzhou Knitting for a further term
of three years at or below the prevailing market rate (the “Lease
Agreement”). The Lease Agreement is terminable by Shenzhou
Knitting giving no less than three months’ notice to Shenzhou
Properties. The rental so charged by Shenzhou Properties is
determined by reference to the market rates for leasing similar
properties and production facilities from independent third
parties under normal commercial terms during the course of
ordinary business in Ningbo, China. Shenzhou Properties,
which is owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive
Director, and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong Industrial
Investment Company Limited (“Rongrong Industrial”), an
associate of Mr. Ma Jianrong, is therefore a connected person
by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year,
rentals paid to Shenzhou Properties by the Group amounted to
RMB9,851,000.

Annual Report 2014 £ ¥

97



EEERE
Report of the Directors

RERTIREHRFE

BN SR —E—=F+_F+/\BE&E
TEREBEMNEBIHEBR DA (TR
BB —OMIRERZE (TINIR
Bl B AN BEREA
T—NE—A—HBE-_ZT—~Ft+=A
—t+—HIEHHARRAEERHEETH
HRE REEENFEHEARKELO
TEAREA 27T BT ke m
F-BHEALSEBLHEMREEN
RN H RO ERTEER - F
N8 - fh B R B 80% M 2 I R
EREEEMA20%Em - BIE MR A
FIAAONEBABA L - ANFEN &K
EEMEMNtBEETAHEIMIEBEAR
#13,995,0007T °

HEgE

BN SN - E—=F+_-_F+/\B &
MEBRERLEMARAR([EAE
EomAr D& —HEERZ (2%
MEHERZE]) Bt - ZEEaERA
AIE R B R TR A R R
B—BREEERAAEETEHRER
RME-BREMEBEERZERARE
T—MFE-A—HRAK EZF—~F
TZA=tT—Hil-ERBEMAF"
RRTESEEMEE WP HERBARE
EREAMNEE 2R BERELED I
B87.5% K 12.5% Kz o IR #5 = 5 Al
E14A07(4) & - ETH B A A B R
AT AREERN AEEBREABERD
NARTRNBEMBRBEBEAARE
43,516,0007T

AL R 5 0 A - T BB
ARAR=B-ZF+=A+N\AZA

‘ﬁ:l:o

Provision of cutting and sewing services

Shenzhou Knitting and % BNt @ ET 4B BR 2 & (Ningbo
Shenzhou Shitong Knitwear Co. Ltd.*) (“Shenzhou Shitong”)
entered into a processing services agreement (the “Processing
Services Agreement”) dated 18 December 2013, pursuant to
which, Shenzhou Shitong agreed to provide the Group with
certain cutting services for a period commencing on 1 January
2014 and expiring on 31 December 2016 at a rate of service
charges ranging from RMB1.0 per piece to RMB1.2 per piece,
depending on the technology involved. The related charges are
determined with reference to the current market prices charged
by independent suppliers for the provision of cutting services
of knitted garments. Shenzhou Shitong, which is indirectly
owned by Worldon as to 80% interest and owned by Rongrong
Industrial as to the remaining 20% interest, is a connected
person by virtue of Rule 14A.0(4) of the Listing Rules. During
the year, the processing services fees paid to Shenzhou
Shitong by the Group amounted to RMB13,995,000.

Supply of packaging materials

Shenzhou Knitting and Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)
entered into a supply agreement (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”) dated 18 December 2013, pursuant to
which, Huaxi Packaging Company agreed to supply packaging
materials to the Group from time to time on normal commercial
terms which are no less favorable than those available from
independent third parties. The Packaging Material Supply
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016. Huaxi Packaging Company is owned as to
87.5% by Mr. Huang Guanquan, who is the younger brother of
Mr. Huang Guanlin, an Executive Director, and as to 12.5% by
Mr. Huang Fuchang, who is the father of Mr. Huang Guanlin.
Huaxi Packaging Company is a connected person by virtue of
Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rule. During the year, the amount
paid to Huaxi Packaging Company by the Group for the
purchases of packaging materials totalled to RMB43,516,000.

For further details of the above continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the announcement dated 18
December 2013 made by the Company.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the aforesaid transactions had been entered into (1) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (2) either
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have provided the Company a letter, confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that cause them to believe that
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions (1) have not
been approved by the board of directors of the Company;
(2) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group; (3) have not been entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and (4) have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual values disclosed in
the previous announcement dated 18 December 2013 made by
the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Ma Jianrong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 102 to 219,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HIFE VYear ended 31 December 2014

—F-nmF ZT=F
2014 2013
B 5 AR®B T ARBEF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WA REVENUE 5 11,131,532 10,047,217
55 K AR Cost of sales (7,904,911) (7,208,534)
E7 Gross profit 3,226,621 2,838,683
= NS & Other income and gains 5 420,167 295,633
HE Lo AR Selling and distribution expenses (247,957) (164,449)
THAX Administrative expenses (792,868) (696,653)
HabR % Other expenses (15,328) (61,995)
LR YN Finance costs 7 (46,442) (10,010)
JEAE—MB % A R)4#8%  Share of profits and losses of an associate 19 (846) =
RR B4 51 R 8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 2,543,347 2,201,209
FTSBiF X Income tax expense 11 (476,717) (397,297)
FEFE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,066,630 1,803,912
AT AT Eh#EL: Attributable to:
KRREER A Owners of the Company 12 2,065,867 1,802,989
FE 7 I 14 2= Non-controlling interests 763 923
2,066,630 1,803,912
AN B EE R R EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
BEANELEERER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 14
R Basic AR¥1.48t ARK¥1.327T
—FEFH — For profit for the year RMB1.48 RMB1.32
e Diluted AR#¥1.455t AR#1.327T
—FERE — For profit for the year RMB1.45 RMB1.32

FREEMMBRRE ZFBENAFEHRERN Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
FE13H# 5 o disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HEZZ—NMF+=ZA=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2014

—E-IF —T-=%F
2014 2013
s AR TR ARBTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,066,630 1,808,912
Hit 2 HE k= OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RemEE P : Cash flow hedges:
FEESHHITHE Effective portion of changes in
DREER fair value of hedging instruments
BRE D arising during the year 25 14,679 14,860
HRiReaBEm & Reclassification adjustments for gains
BRI 2 recognised in the consolidated
B ORAR statement of profit or loss 25 (7,908) (9,427)
6,771 5,433
BMERINEE 2 Exchange differences on translation of
b 5 =& foreign operations 34,447 (41,372)
FEHM2EmKE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(BRBiE) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 41,218 (35,939)
FE2EWEAR TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 2,107,848 1,767,973
AT ALEE#ES: Attributable to:
RARER A Owners of the Company 2,107,085 1,767,050
FE 72 ) 14 2 Non-controlling interests 763 923
2,107,848 1,767,973
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“ZE—NME+=-H=+—H8 31 December 2014

—E—NF —E—=F
2014 2013
B & AR T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y BB KRR Property, plant and equipment 15 4,183,860 3,518,230
TE T H & FIE Prepaid land lease payments 16 773,854 696,871
mEE Intangible assets 17 102,846 101,909
ZER Entrusted loans 23 555,000 -
R—EBE AR 2%  Investment in an associate 19 5,634 -
RERIBEE Deferred tax assets 33 12,690 7,571
HBIERBEE Total non-current assets 5,633,884 4,324,581
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 20 2,607,210 2,424,899
ERER R EE Trade and bills receivables 21 1,642,917 1,374,991
FEAFIE - EHER Prepayments, deposits and
H b fE W FR IR other receivables 22 1,112,694 352,872
EZHER Entrusted loans 23 60,000 =
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 24 320,000 200,000
PTEem I A Derivative financial instruments 25 11,214 3,456
HEBER Structured deposits 26 2,211,160 -
BEBER Pledged deposits 27 893,483 =
VR EZHE=M@A 2  Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITER over three months 22,392 27,425
HeMIBEeZED Cash and cash equivalents 28 1,428,074 2,609,050
BB EE Total current assets 10,309,144 6,992,693
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB EERE Trade and bills payables 29 467,624 391,749
T8 Y BR X Advances from customers 7,793 14,095
E 4th & {5 0B & FEET R Other payables and accruals 30 610,308 531,168
FFRRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 31 46,737 -
FEAS R & A T FRI8 Amounts due to related parties 42 1,860 =
JE < B 3R Tax payable 130,855 48,605
mmE A E Total current liabilities 1,265,177 985,617
BREBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 9,043,967 6,007,076
BEERREBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 14,677,851 10,331,657
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Al E 5 Convertible bonds 32 2,864,675 =
FEEFIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 33 1,850 =
BIERBAEE Total non-current liabilities 2,866,525 =
FEE Net assets 11,811,326 10,331,657
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—F-DF —F—=F
2014 2013
s AR TR ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EQUITY
ANTEEAE(E#EZE  Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
% S Share capital 34 142,105 142,105
fEiE Reserves 35 10,549,793 9,349,239
F R R HARR B Proposed final dividend 13 1,103,671 824,920
11,795,569 10,316,264
M ER Non-controlling interests 15,757 15,393
MERE e Total equity 11,811,326 10,331,657
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
*E HITEE
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HIFE VYear ended 31 December 2014

ALAREARS
Attributable to owners of the Company
TERESZ EERH EX EaRE Rk
R RHEER &% HhER Py F REHE RARE RBEA RERE @i FEHHER BER
Equity Employee
Share  component Statutory Exchange equity Proposed Non-
Share premium of convertible Hedging surplus  fluctuation benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
(i3 ARBTL  ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Hfi3e) (Hf3t32) (Wiskes)  (RfaE3s(al))  (M3E3s(ali)
(note 34) (note 32) (note 25)  (note 35(alfi)  (note 35(a))
At 1 January 2013 136,609 1,143,000 - (2.841) 962,023 (19.862) 48,191 5,045,395 754,855 8,087,370 34,764 8,122,134
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 5,433 - (11,372) - 1,802,989 - 1,767,050 923 1767973
Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (589) (589)
Transfer of non-controling
interests - - - - - - - - - - (19,711) (19,711)
Issue of shares 5496 1,205,574 - - - - - - - 1,231,070 - 1,231,070
Share issue expenses - (14,371) - - - - - - - (14.371) - (14,371)
Equity component of convertible
bonds 32 S S S S S = = = = = = =
Final 2012 dividend declared - - - - - - - - (754,855) (754,855) - (754,855)
(—% g Proposed final 2013 dividend 13 - (322,342 - - - - - (602,578) 824,920 - - -
SRERBER Transfer from retaingd profits = = = = 69,986 = = 69,986) = = = =
At 31 December 2013
142,105 2,031,861 - 259 1,062,000 (61,234 48191" 6275820 824920 10,316,264 15,303 10,331,657
* REMBRRARERFRZEEHEBARE -~ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
9,349,2839,000c (ZE—=F: AR® RMB9,349,239,000 (2012: RMB7,195,906,000) in the consolidated
7,195,906,0007T ) & EHEHERAMK statement of financial position.
ARFAREAESE
Attributable to owners of the Company
TRERS2 EERH EL RARE i
k& BRHEER EE3% byl 4 AHE RDER bl RERH RERE gt FEstER 8
Equity Employee
Share  component Statutory Exchange equity Proposed Non-
Share premium of convertible Hedging surplus  fluctuation benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
i3 ARBTR  ARMTZ  ARMTz ARWTR ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTr  AR®Tr  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETZ  ARMTz
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
[GERD) (Kis2) (Wzi2s)  (Wa3s(a)l) (HizE3s(a)i))
(note 34) (note 32) (note 25)  (note 35(a)(i)) (note 35(a)(ii))
RZZ2-ME-F-B  At1Janvary 2014 142,105 2,031,861 - 2,502 1,052,009 (61,234) 48,191 6,275,820 824920 10,316,264 15,393 10,331,657
FR2ENERE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 6,171 - 34,447 - 2,065,867 - 2,107,085 763 2,107,848
3R ERRRRE  Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - (399) (399)
SRERHIER Transfer of non-controling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - -
EIRA Issue of shares - - - - - - - - - - - -
BHZAER Share issue expenses - - - - - - - - - - - -
NARES BRSPS Convertible bonds equity
component 2 - - 197,140 - - - - - - 197,140 - 197,140
Final 2013 dividend declared - - - - - - - - (824,920) (824,920) - (824,920)
Proposed final 2014 dividend 13 - (560,119) - - - - - (543,552) 1,103,671 - - -
Transfer from retained profits - - - - 86,117 - - (86,117) - - - -
At 31 December 2014
142,105 1,411,142 197,140 9,363 1,138,126 (26,787)° 48101 7,712018"  1,103671 11,795,569 15,757 11,811,326

* REMBRARFZEABHEARE
10,549,793,000c (ZZE—=F: AR¥
9,349,239,0007T ) FA & E A EHRAMK

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB10,549,793,000 (2013: RMB9,349,239,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ—NMF+=ZA=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2014

—E-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
B 5 ARE T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
KEXEFEBRELAE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B 25t A1 ) Profit before tax 2,543,347 2,201,209
FE Adjustments for:
& KA Finance costs 7 46,442 10,010
JE{H — Bt 2 A RIIEZE  Share of profits and losses of
an associate 19 846 -
B A Interest income 5 (125,435) (33,501)
HEME - KE R Loss on disposal of items of property,
REEE ZEE plant and equipment 6 2,838 4,320
NaEWKESFE Fair value gains, net:
PMETE-TFE Derivative instruments — transactions
HAHPER RS not qualifying as hedges 6 - (929)
M- BB R Depreciation of items of property,
RBEETE plant and equipment 6 415,749 385,769
JEAT A EFKIEE Y  Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 6 18,928 13,693
E A = Amortisation of intangible assets 6 7,966 7,356
2,910,681 2,587,927
HFEIL M Increase in inventories (182,311) (500,464)
JE U BR TR N AR (Increase)/decrease in trade and
(Em),/md bills receivables (267,926) 22,768
ENFIE EZE R Increase in prepayments, deposits and
H b U SR I8 38 N other receivables (230,056) (9,162)
FERTBR IR R ZE iR Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills
#n Od) payables 75,875 (5,350)
TR O ) /11 (Decrease)/increase in advances
from customers (6,302) 9,156
HEap e sEm & Increase in other payables and accruals
J& 5T FRIE 1 AN 16,950 106,804
FEST BAE A 5B Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to
S CRd) related parties 1,860 (3,288)
KEEKFSES Cash generated from operations 2,318,771 2,208,391
B RS Interest paid (1,608) (10,010)
ENBEENGEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (28,319) (68,549)
BB EMGH PRC corporate income tax paid (370,403) (420,531)
KB TS Net cash flows from operating activities
e mEFA 1,918,441 1,709,301
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-Z-—NF+=-A=+—HIFE VYear ended 31 December 2014

—E-NF —E—=%F
2014 2013
AR®BT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REXKFABRESRE  CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
SR @Y Interest received 96,911 34,259
EEME BER Purchases of items of property,
HiEIEE plant and equipment (1,036,478) (620,877)
HEME - BE K Proceeds from disposal of items of
HEBE 2B IAE property, plant and equipment 4,452 3,202
TEMEWEERIE  Payments of prepaid land lease payments (95,910) (171,289)
Wi E M & Purchases of other intangible assets (8,903) (4,191)
Ik g — B A A Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary
B FRIE (20,000) =
U B — R B & A RIA%#E  Purchases of a shareholding in an associate (6,480) -
SFAEMERFIEZ £/ Increase in financial products included
EE o 38 N in other receivables (470,000) =
B E HFFIG M Increase in pledged time deposits (893,483) =
ZREE L Increase in entrusted loans (615,000) -
R TF LN Increase in structured deposits (2,211,160) =
IR HHERE Purchases of available-for-sale investments (120,000) (200,000)
TSR T BB Maturity of derivative financial instruments - (5,163)
MeERBAB =18z  Decrease in bank deposits with an initial
RITFE R A term of over three months 5,033 103,443
& EE AT A Net cash flows used in investing activities
HEREFE (5,371,018) (860,616)
BMEEEFRE, CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN)
(FTRA)BERE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
AT D BT 1S K08 Proceeds from issue of shares - 1,216,699
HERITER New bank loans 46,737 548,609
EERITERK Repayment of bank loans - (1,334,835)
EITA R IRE S TS B  Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 3,043,590 =
AT B I 42 I 1 2 Acquisition of non-controlling interests - (19,711)
MARR#A ARSI E Dividends paid to owners of the Company (824,920) (754,855)
) FE 428 I 14 4 25K 5 B% 8. Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (399) (583)
AR Interest paid (7,692) =
BB EEE, (FTA)  Net cash flows from/(used in)
RemEFHE financing activities 2,257,316 (344,676)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ—NMF+=-A=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2014

—E-NF =%
2014 2013
B 5 ARE T AREET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ReRESEEY NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE
(R2) EmEE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,195,261) 504,009
FHMHREeREELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 2,609,050 2,144,405
EXEH 22 FH Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 14,285 (39,364)
FRESRBEESSEEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 1,428,074 2,609,050
ReRESEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
EER DT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re RIRTTHE S Cash and bank balances 1,000,264 1,653,455
RERERE DR Non-pledged time deposits with
=& A 2 54 original maturity of less than
2 B AR BAAE 3R three months when acquired 427,810 955,595
B R NI & iEK Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
Frolz 3R e & the statement of financial position and
ReEEY the statement of cash flows 28 1,428,074 2,609,050
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Statement of Financial Position

HE-ZT-—NF+=-A=+—HIFE VYear ended 31 December 2014

—ZE-mF —T—=%F
2014 2013
By 2 ARE TR ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M- HFE K& Property, plant and equipment 30 43
KRB RRIZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 8(a) 648,422 648,422
BTIHMBRARIZER Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 3,452,732 404,183
IEREBEELE Total non-current assets 4,101,184 1,052,648
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JE U BR 3R Trade receivables 21 120,146 79,154
E 4th pE W 5008 Other receivables 22 1,834,849 1,379,159
LTHBATZER Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 851,882 927,482
JE LB BB A R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 18(c) 289,642 215,085
MESBIE Derivative financial instruments 25 11,214 =
HeRIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 166,976 492,052
BRBEE Total current assets 3,274,709 3,092,932
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
H b fE A F0IE K JE 5T FXIE  Other payables and accruals 30 1,222 26
& 1~ BT B A B FRIB Amounts due to subsidiaries 18(c) 1,248,234 815,379
FE BT 1R Tax payable 3,186 6,304
BnEaE Total current liabilities 1,252,642 821,709
FRABEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,022,067 2,271,223
HWEEBRRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 6,123,251 3,323,871
kERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Al E Convertible bonds 32 2,864,675 =
FEEFIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 33 1,850 =
BIERBAE Total non-current liabilities 2,866,525 =
FEE Net assets 3,256,726 3,323,871
R EQUITY
% 2 Share capital 34 142,105 142,105
& Reserves 35(b) 2,010,950 2,356,846
R R H R B Proposed final dividend 13 1,103,671 824,920
1B a Total equity 3,256,726 3,323,871
=¥ =Bk
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
*E HITEE

Chairman Executive Director
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”). Details of
the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 18.

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation
of financial statements, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”,
which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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W BRI B EBEE A R
B AAREKEATERSMEELD
FAEERARMAER AR Bk
WA IR RRSRELRA RN
i3 o

HEEERBRERTXHBAANR
ST AL = B R TTE S A —
B\ EHRE D AIAEE G &
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised standards and
new interpretation for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

Amendment to HKFRS 2 included Definition of Vesting Condition’

in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Amendment to HKFRS 3 included Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a
in Annual Improvements Business Combination’
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 13 included Short-term Receivables and Payables
in Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to HKFRS 1 included Meaning of Effective HKFRSs
in Annual Improvements
2011-2018 Cycle

! Effective from 1 July 2014

Except for the amendment to HKFRS 1 which is only relevant
to an entity’s first HKFRS financial statements, the adoption
of the above revised standards and interpretation has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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2.3 EARRMNFTREIETER
MEREED AREBDLF
B THIRBERE

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

AEEWEN L ETBREFER T The Group has not applied the following new and revised

2R B 1 R AR T R] RASERT B

B mE AR

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

114

BEERBREENESR LHT R HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

ERUBREENEI0% R REZREHEL 7] Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
BRI ERNEFMES] GAEPERCE HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
(Z2——%) EHELTA

BEMBREER WL ERBEmR Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
E1HRMER] B EEE Operations®

ERMBRSENEI0% KREERE: Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
EERBRELNE12RR JEAE B HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (2011)  Exception?

BRGHERE85 B9 E?
ol

BRMBREENE14R EERTEP® HKFRS 14 Reguiatory Deferral Accounts®

BRMBRELENEISR BEE AN HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

BB g R 1RME Vit Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?

EREERNE16H K HABZHTER Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
BRI EEISHEMET B mtnEa HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation?

BERGHENE16% R BE . EEMEY Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
BRGEANFNTNET HKAS 41

BAGHERF19RNELT

RE®EFTE - ER

Amendments to HKAS 19

Defined Benefit Plans. Employee Contributions'

@t

BRI ER ST B BREH Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
(ZB——F) HE 25 (2011) Statements?

—E-FEF-F——F LEABMBRE Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'
HH . FRAE LR Z BT 2010-2012 Cycle

—E——FRF_F—=fF LREANBRS Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'
BHZ FRH#E LR Z BT 2011-2013 Cycle

ZE——CF-FQHF LEEBTBRE Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?
Bz FRY#E LB 2 E3]2 2012-2014 Cycle

! MR-Z-—MFELR-—Hk 2 &R

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

FEHREER

2 RZZE—A"F—A—Hxkz®&RABZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
FEHEER

8 RZZE—tF—A—Hxkz®&RABZ 8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
FEHEER

L RZZE—NF—-—A—Hxkz®E&RABZ g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

FEHBEER

° BRARERERE-Z—XRF—H—H
F2 &R 2 FEMBHRIRATE
MM EERNZERE  Ritd NERR

REE

BEoh - BE R REH CEFIE622F ) 1
HEE-_ZT—RAF+t-_A=+—HIEF
EWNGEMBREAETERNNZI R
BRENTE - AEBETHZEEEH

=
- X

2 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
therefore is not applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information

in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2015. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these changes.
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2.3 HARMWFTREESTEHRE 2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

MEREEDN UAREBLF
RBTHBEERE (2)
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R-Z—HFAR BEGHAMAER
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RERTERE BT A BATIR M -
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ERMBRELEAE10RNELGAE
A28 (T ——F)REREER
H2NARAEEERMzEELEX
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REEREBERRNAGLELEBNE
ELEFIEABR —BEBE (EHE
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BARARERZER AEEBEHE-F
—RNFE—A-BERAZFER -

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continuead)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. Further
information about the impact will be available nearer the
implementation date of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016.
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2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continuead)
The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in HKFRS 3.
The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in
a joint operation is not remeasured on the acquisition of an
additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control
is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to
HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply when
the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of
the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply
to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED (continuead)
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating business
(of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016
as the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued
in January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
Except for those described in note 2.2, the Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2015. None of the
amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the amendment most applicable to the
Group are as follows:

BB mELERNES AL 55 HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must
AN —EHEBNAREEEENE disclose the judgements made by management in applying the
BB 5 S A B8R M = & (R 1 aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief description
s BT (0 B 2 B BIERSILE (B S HF Y of operating segments that have been aggregated and the

REDE URFEZEDBEEEMU
Hvﬁfrﬁ}ﬂﬂ’]%“iﬂ—ir!ﬁ % SER] AR
HARFTECDMEIZLERRARED
BREEHREEMAENYHER HERE

economic characteristics used to assess whether the segments
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of
segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision
maker.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

e R BEER: level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
— — ERBEREESEBERER Level 1 -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
M52 mE (REFHE) markets for identical assets or liabilities
FH - ARNHERN - EAER 2 Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
HANBHEMEBERZ lowest level input that is significant to the
REEBRHGABE I AER fair value measurement is observable, either
S HEEBRME directly or indirectly
E=H — ERHERMN HEAERZ Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

HBAREAENEBERZ
RIKE R BB A B

-
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lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



PR ERAR BT RE

Notes to Financial Statements

—“E-NE+=-F=+—H 31 December 2014

24 FEESHBERE &) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)
AEAL Related parties
THATHWREBEAREE G BE: A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@ MWEBIATAL BIZALHZAL (@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
2T R BN [E B e family and that person

(i) o8 i Bk Rl 4E HI AN E (i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) HEAEEBEEATE I (i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) BAKSEIASEETRAN (i) is a member of the key management personnel of
FTEEERERKE: the Group or of a parent of the Group;

= or
(o) fHFFE THMEMEH BN E B EAR (b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

SEE@EE: applies:

iy ZEREAEEBR %8 ()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
ZHRBERA]: group;

(i) —HEBR> —EREMEE (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
RAElFEELE (XS —F other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
m?%ﬁfc BRRIZEBETK subsidiary of the other entity);

NRAIZHBERNTRREED
%)

(i) ZEBEAEESHRR—F (i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
=HMEERE: same third party;

vy —HEBAE-FEBNEG (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
EhE ME—EBRZSE other entity is an associate of the third entity;
= HEBHEE QR

v) EREAASENEAEES (v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
MEERBREBMERL benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
B BER AR R 5T & 5 related to the Group;

(vi) ?iﬁigiﬁ(a)ﬁfru&ﬁ”}\i? il =k (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
= H R person identified in (a); and

(vii) R (@))FT# B A ¥ E 2 (vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
BEATEBNNEZER (EJZ over the entity or is a member of the key
ZEBNHRR)EEET management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

[ER 8 ° of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment used for this
purpose are as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowing funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible
assets are as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Software 3-5 years
Water Use Right 20 years

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continueq)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to
use certain land and the considerations paid for such right are
recorded as prepaid land lease payments, which are amortised
over the lease terms of 30 to 50 years using the straight-line
method.

RERHMERMEE Investments and other financial assets
WL ERRGE Initial recognition and measurement
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by
HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.
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POLICIES (continuea)

REREMEBMEE (&2) Investments and other financial assets (continued)
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the
market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other gains
or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

THRERE Financial liabilities

WL ERRGE Initial recognition and measurement
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and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, an amount due to the ultimate holding
company, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

HBARBEAREI A B LM E Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

-

EBEAREFABZ A EBRERE Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
BEESRAERNYHEERARIEERIE financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
ARBEFEEEFHFTABZ 2 EME designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
f& o or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference

o between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
KiFSmIT A Offsetting of financial instruments
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B AFABEREEREEAE 8
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow
hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

o fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or

° cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continueq)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continued)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk
management objective and its strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually
have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in the hedging reserve, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as other expenses.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when
hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised
or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is
the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or
liability assumed affects the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continueq)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the
hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income
until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm
commitment is met.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(o) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are
initially recorded using the functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”). The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
located outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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MATERR  BEAMEST GIERE
ME-NEEHZHYEEHE RTE
RERBHNEAREERTESEEYE
Y TAFEREMENELR -

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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. EESHE A (2) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

HEFZTRERR

TXBREEBRZTERR LN ERE
HARAEMEIZEMA I RERRKR A
ARE M TEERAZABEHRT —ERM

AND ESTIMATES (continueq)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

BEEzEEHGERMEEAENER adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
PR BRER - within the next financial year, are described below.

WFE BERREZTHFH
AEEEEBET A AFHEE
MTEEM A DIREBEEEHEE R
WEBUZME BFE RSB 2ERA
PR HIVE I - B A A0 IR 81 ¥ e 8 5
HBFRTEBHRELERTY ARG
AHATHIRAEES - WA BEHIRE
RIfAET < RFEH EEERRSNE
B MM E WA E 2
M BB A EE -

HEMEE (BELFI) BE
AEERBEREPRFEAEIFERE
ERBBERIRENR - I &7 (£ A 5
ReBEEESF MAIRETREE
TTRERIE - H Al IF & B & & AR B B
KRBT REE A 2T A U= R TTRUE
AR BEEEFRCELEMZREE
HEEAKEEeE (EAREREE
RABEERBEEMEZRE)RK
Bl HERE - AR EREEXARTIR
BREBUBEZAFRZPANRS
ZHERSHEGZBEXABEME
HWHEEZEEZEERANE - RERA
EREEEE BEEELAMGTRE
ZEESRECELENU 2 BHRARAKES
ME WEEBEE MR E U EZK
FHeEREZHRE

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
the industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continueq)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. There were no deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2014 (2013: Nil). The amount of unrecognised tax losses
at 31 December 2014 was RMB143,408,000 (2013:
RMB182,073,000). Further details are contained in note 33 to
the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and there is one
reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale
of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers by location of
goods delivery

—E-NF —T—=%F

2014 2013

ARE T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

=[N Japan 3,081,139 3,392,580
AR B K Mainland China 2,487,429 1,909,464
(28:4) European Union 1,929,613 1,744,070
=351 United States of America 1,300,040 900,013
H b B R Other countries 2,333,311 2,101,090
11,131,532 10,047,217

PR B EEE 2 MAB R THRE M
R BB D o

The revenue information of continuing operations above is
based on the goods delivery destinations of the products.
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HWEER (F)
(b) HREBEE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information (continued)

(b) Non-current assets

—E-mF —E—=F

2014 2013

ARE TR AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

=N Mainland China 4,053,915 3,969,826
fiidET] Vietham 902,972 225,293
R Cambodia 96,851 114,522
EMEIX Other countries 6,822 7,369
5,060,560 4,317,010

PRFERLEXRBZIERPDEE
BMTREEMES D X HE
BEFEEF R—RHBERAR K
BREEBRAEE -

FEREFzER
KA TEBEE ZWAD B AEE
W A10%8k A L

The non-current asset information of continuing
operations above is based on the locations of the assets
and excludes entrusted loans, investment in an associate
and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers which individually accounts for
10% or more of the Group’s revenue are as follows:

—E-QmE —E-=F

2014 2013

AR¥Tx ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

=P R Customer A 2,610,476 1,841,726
2R Customer B 2,367,393 2,109,537
EFR Customer C 2,331,925 2,368,357
XET Customer D 1,204,197 1,164,292
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5, WA -HKWARKZE 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WARABRER Sxm e HeEs
MINBIRE R ST MBEL S BHE%

B trade discounts.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and

WA~ Bt A RIS ST T

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

154

rE
Group
—E-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Revenue
HEBED Sale of goods 11,131,532 10,047,217
Hib A Other income
BT B Government grants 273,801 241,675
HRITH S WA Bank interest income 90,710 33,501
H s F B ULA Other interest income 34,725 =
He WA Rental income 20,931 19,528
420,167 294,704
U &5 Gains
N EW S FEE Fair value gains, net:
PTETE TS Derivative instruments-transactions not
BRI RD qualifying as hedges - 929
420,167 295,633
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6. FR% AT E

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

REBZBRBATFED IR (FTA) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
rEE
Group
—F-HmE —T=F
2014 2013
Bt 5 AR TR ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEFERA Cost of inventories sold 7,132,905 7,155,938
e Depreciation 15 415,749 385,769
ARt b A EFRIE#EEE  Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments 16 18,928 13,693
B EEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 17 7,966 7,356
BIBFEEHE fﬁZ Minimum lease payments under
&K & HIEB operating leases:
Bgx Buildings 82,660 57,123
2% S AN B & Auditors’ remuneration 2,600 2,474
BERAMAZ (B Employee benefit expense
EERESTTH (including directors’ and
AEME) : chief executive’s remuneration):
T8RS Wages and salaries 2,648,458 2,247,883
RIREH B Pension scheme contributions 126,157 101,784
HAto 18 A Other benefits 83,572 94,443
2,858,187 2,444,110
PE 3 = RE 55> Foreign exchange differences, net* 2,375 47,781
WREEZREIRFEE Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 10,522 4,147
N EWEFRE: Fair value gains, net:
PMETE-TFE Derivative instruments — transactions
HPEE 2R G not qualifying as hedges** - (929)
RITH) BUA Bank interest income (90,710) (33,501)
H A S WA Other interest income (34,725) -
HEME  HE R Loss on disposal of items of property,
RiEIEE 2 K8 plant and equipment 2,838 4,320
* HE-_Z—NE+-_A=+t—HBEZ= * The foreign exchange differences, net for the years ended 31

*k

E—=Ft+t_A=t—HLEFEZIE
REBFBRENAFARGRERLZ
[EMR] A -

BE_Z—=Ht+t_A=+—BL#F
B2 2Bl E‘Jr)\i SEmRP
[ E W A 2 U 2

*k

December 2014 and 31 December 2013 are included in “Other
expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The fair value gains for the year ended 31 December 2013

are included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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7. BERAK 7. FINANCE COSTS
BEEKA DT : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
AEE
Group
—F-mE —T=F
2014 2013
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERAFANBEEEL Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable
RITBEZF S within five years 1,608 10,010
AR & 5 ) B Interest on convertible bonds 44,834 -
46,442 10,010

8. EERESTHAEZME 8.

BIE EMRAREERBEN (FEE
Bl 5622F ) Mt RI1FE78IEL BN E S
NAMEDI (BB EHISE32F ) F16115M
RE RNFEESERERITTHRAE ZM
k43 UNNE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

3 S
Group
—F-HmE —T-=F
2014 2013
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 284 276
e R REYNZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,030 3,392
RAIRETE KR Pension scheme contributions 43 37
7,073 3,429
7,357 3,705
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8. EERBSTTHRARZHME 8.

(#&)
(a)

REMUNERATION (continued)
HITES(BERSITHRAE) - (a)
— BB TEERBILFHTE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

Executive directors (including the chief executive),

a non-executive director and independent non-

= executive directors
e 2R RGHE
e BNA & sk MemE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTRA ARMTR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-MmF 2014
WITES: Executive directors:
BERkE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 1,389 11 1,400
mRAMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(7TB A% ) (Chief executive) - 1,186 8 1,194
BIMmEAE Mr. Ma Renhe - 940 8 948
B yE 7 &+ Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 1,131 - 1,131
FEREE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 1,138 8 1,146
PR S+ Ms. Chen Zhifen - 1,134 8 1,142
- 6,918 43 6,961
B IEHITES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BEREE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 28 - 124
BRAR#E 5 & Mr. Chen Genxiang 60 28 - 88
RIFEE 4 Mr. Qiu Weiguo 64 28 - 92
BRB ST & Mr. Chen Xu 64 28 - 92
284 112 - 396
284 7,030 43 7,357
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8. EENESTHAEZME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(#&) REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) BITEE (BERSTHRAER) - (a) Executive directors (including the chief executive),
—BHPTESERBILFEHTE a non-executive director and independent non-
E(£E) executive directors (continued)

e 2k RIRETE
we EMF R R HWemes
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration

ARBTT  ARETT ARBTR ARETRL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

—E-=F 2013
HITESE: Executive directors:
BrRELE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 744 9 753
BEEMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(7THA#EZ) (Chief executive) = 582 7 589
BLmEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 450 7 457
HyEit Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 443 = 443
TEREE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 440 7 447
BZ54+ (R=Z—=% Ms. Chen Zhifen (appointed
+-A—HEZ) on 1 December 2013) - 607 7 614
- 3,266 37 3,303
EHTES: Non-executive director:
BRELE (R-B—=% Mnr Chen Zhongjing (resigned
NATRBEE) on 16 September 2013) = = = =
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BEMELE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 36 - 132
BRIRFE LA Mr. Chen Genxiang 60 36 = 9
RERELE (RZZ—=F Mr. QiuWeiguo (appointed
MA—BEZME) on 1 April 2013) 72 36 - 108
FEERE (RZF—=% M Zong Pingsheng
M A—HEE) (resigned on 1 April 2013) 40 8 - 48
BRBELE (R=-Z—=F M. Chen Xu (appointed
+-A—HEZT) on 1 December 2013) 8 10 = 18
276 126 - 402
276 3,392 37 3,705
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EERBETHARZHE

()

(a) BTEE (REBBITHAR) -
—EFUTEERBUKUITE
E(4)

FR BMEFRRBITRARM
ERATHEEAHE 2 ZH -

IEREHHNES
FRAEERSFMNEEY T EREAE
FXABERTHRAB(ZT—=F 8) -
MEZHEFBEN LXK E8 - FR
HBRAR(ZT—=F 1%)FAQF
EXISRTRARRHHES 2B
EFEMT:

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Executive directors (including the chief executive),
a non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year did not
include any director or chief executive (2013: none), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the five (2013: the five) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

K
Group
—F-mF —T-=F
2014 2013
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
e REREY = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,481 7,726
IRRET B3R Pension scheme contributions 13 13
8,494 7,739

MENFATEBZ FEFERERTTR
ABBEHHES AH:

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

BEAH

Number of employees

—E-mF ===
2014 2013
= 71,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 - -

1,000,001 L& HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000

2,000,000/ 7T 5 5
5 5
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10. RIKEF

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

—F-HmE —F—=
2014 2013
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
iz & BmE RNk Charged in consolidated statement of
profit or loss
R 18 I 3R — Retirement benefit contributions 126,157 101,784

AEBRHPBEARE 2z 2BEEB 2 RIKE
M2 ZIEABTE B ZRIKEF IR
[F RERZEFE AKEAFLZRF
RERENEFZEEFCEBIET

BOLFE YREET ERAAE:
YA ERTE BB -

AEETRBE S M A TE R FT SR
ié;‘%#/*“éﬁ%%éﬁi?ﬁaiafiwwﬁ/%%
—IHAEHRFOEH AR R RET
:JrilJ(Hﬁaiﬁi‘JJ) HRTEEEE
Aoz EEED LI WRIEETE
SRFERAEASNERGEEBaR
broiBRF B EEFRABYERZ
EeN BASENEEIRBBE K
S E B EEHFRMRE ST EIE L ¢
NETEENES -

» %

DRI R RIERT R R/ ez
ZEENMBARERMN(RFE)BR
NE(TERMREE]) KTHE (R
HWE)ARAA([RAFTRHEE]) &
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. ([ Gain
Lucky Vietnam |) ZE1R ¥5 B8 & #0423
2R ERIE B FH S RRIRERF S
(REHR) o

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salary of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”),
Dagian Textile (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Dagian Cambodia”) and
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. (“Gain Lucky Vietnam”), wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia
and Vietnam respectively, are required to contribute amounts
based on employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the
retirement benefit schemes as stipulated by the relevant local
authorities.

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



PR ERAR BT RE

Notes to Financial Statements

—“E-NE+=-F=+—H 31 December 2014

10. EKER (2)

11.

RRFEMRZIZ 2 EMBARIAEE
(CRFMFRERB)ERAR(TEE
R - AR E AR EPIRE AR
KM EELE TR Z K-

B bRtz RN - AN SR B R R A
HitRREENXEEAEE 2EE-

FriE®s
HE_Z—UFE_FT—=F+=_A
—t+—BLFEZMEHAYEERS

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continuea)

11.

Buddies (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Buddies
Macao”), a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Macao,
is required to contribute a certain amount to the retirement
benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are:

rE

Group
—E-NF —T-=F
2014 2013
ARE TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB ZEBNEN Current Hong Kong profits tax 23,497 31,028

B KRE 2 B B Current Mainland China corporate

FE® ([EMEHI) income tax (“CIT”) 457,475 366,263
RIERIE Deferred taxation (4,255) 6
476,717 397,297

REFSEEVNHFERE(—ALANEF
EETR)ENGK ARAREEREHS
BESRTRRAR FAESHSTEZL
S RYNEIE R NNCTE 33 R C R PE
WA BB SBEBH - BRARER
BEREER WEREBEE 2
FERT A BHAKR16.5% (—ZF—=%F:
16.5% ) Z MR M BB TG -

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an
undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law enacted
in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits,
income, gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its
operations. As the Company carries on business in Hong Kong,
it is subject to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong.
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11.

E® &)
REBRZHESTEMX LB AR H
EHMTEH RRAZEWMBEL AR
NBRIHEESWESEMIE (REEM
WER) TEAREBEZHSETE
AEB B REABEZESFMA
VMBRABEKREERBR AR (K
Z]) BEEREBRRAFR(IBEFE
®E]) SEEBVI)VERAR ([HEH
BVI]) BEESEBERAF ([BHE
SEDEENEAERRAA ([EF])HH
BT AR KERNEBNEYERE
K MERBBELEZGFTERTF
HEL16.5% (ZE—=%:16.5%) 2
HEHNBEENGH -

BRERBRIEHRBE RRBRIE
AR AR 2 2 M B 2 ) R SR 2 I
R T 3R 3 - ZE 220 %1 R BN PR H
BRARTRIBERE OEERNFEER R
B PTS © BR M SR 28 B oK T 3R 58
RERILERRTEAE

REBEEEIMAZZMBARRMNESE
RAB ([BMER]) KT (FB)K
BAERAR (KFHEEEFE (F
BI)ERRE ([FEEE])AR16.5%
—E-=F:16.5%) FIEHBHERR
FRELZ AT ERBABHMATIE -

RBEAEMAZZZEMBARRMA
AR g ([HMNA R RERBGE
RIRFT IS R30%E 0N B AR E £ 2 8
RN BHEATIE AR FEABMNB AR
I SR B A EE A A ] SRR A -
B A AFEHA R

1. INCOME TAX (continued)

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject to
income tax as these subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the BVI. Accordingly, Top Always Investments
Ltd. (“Top Always”), Buddies Investments Limited (“Buddies
Investments”), Maxwin (B.V.l.) Limited (“Maxwin BVI”), Buddies
Group Limited (“Buddies Group”), and Gain Lucky Co., Ltd.
(“Gain Lucky”), subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI, are not
subject to tax. As Top Always was engaged in the property
leasing business in Hong Kong, it is subject to Hong Kong
profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Shenzhou Cambodia and Dagian Cambodia, wholly-owned
subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia, under
the Law on Taxation, are subject to income tax at rate of 20%,
and Dagian Cambodia is entitled to be exempted from income
tax for the first four profit-making years. Shenzhou Cambodia
and Dagian Cambodia had no assessable profits during the
year.

Shenzhou Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhou Trading”), Top
Always (Hong Kong) Investment Limited (“Top Always HK”)
and Maxwin (Hong Kong) Limited (“Maxwin HK”), subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject to profits tax at a rate
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong.

Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Japan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of Taxation, is
subject to income tax at a rate of 30% of the assessable profits
arising in Japan. No provision for Japan income tax has been
made as Shenzhou Japan had no assessable profits arising in
Japan during the year.

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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11.

FRE®L (#)

R E A S 2 2 & B8 A FGain
Lucky VietnamZE 1 B Z20% % #% T 15
T > Gain Lucky Vietnam» & iR & 7& 7
FEERPBMNMESH URE=F=
BNRFIESEREA0%BHMATER - F
BESHASEERAENFERAEK
VHBFTEEF (UREE AE) B -
AN BIBEEERE MR T —~
F 5 AREMZE 260,000 E (4
3MEETL) AR E K K (b)Gain Lucky
VietnamBE EE £ WA Z B =ZF KA
REFEFRASEETL REEERA
Z BER=FAN{EMABMA3008E8T K
ARSI R10%BM N AT 58 - W o] &
BealuF  REERNFE AR R50%
1380 0

BB BORPIAARETE - ORI RE MK
YZE2EMBRARAEE CRFIRR
ER%)BERAR ([AFERP ) EEH
CHMBRPINGEY Y ERE FER
PIVE B P FIS BE Bk 45

RIBFEARIMBEEEMGSTL ([F
TEMRFIE])  ERBEMNBRRNSF
7R 5h FE FR B A 1R25% 2 B K B i
(REBEHELEMBREEE)

R-F—=F RPBEAREFEMAL
2EMBARERATHBRBERAR
(TRTHE DEERERNIEZR
Mt ([S#sez]) - Bt
ARTHBAERR_T—=F—H—H2
A=A HEEHREIE% -

1. INCOME TAX (continued)

Gain Lucky Vietnam, a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated
in Vietnam, is subject to income tax at a rate of 20%. Gain
Lucky Vietnam is entitled to be exempted from income tax for
the first two profit-making years and subject to a lower tax rate
of 10% from the third year to the sixth year. The period of tax
privilege will start from the earlier of the first profit-making year
and the fourth year since its establishment. Furthermore, under
the laws of Viethnam, provided that (a) the total investment
of at least VND6,000 billion (approximately US$300 million)
is paid by June 2016 and (b) Gain Lucky Vietham maintains
a minimum annual revenue of US$500 million within 3 years
from the date of generating revenue, or it employs more than
3,000 staff members within 3 years from the date of generating
revenue, it will be subject to a lower profits tax rate of 10%,
and the profits tax will be waived for the first 4 years and 50%
of its profits tax will be waived for 9 years thereafter.

No provision for Macao Complementary Tax has been made
for Buddies (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Buddies
Macao”), a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Macao, as
Buddies Macao is exempted from Macao Complementary Tax
pursuant to Macao’s relevant tax legislations.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the PRC subsidiaries
for the year as determined in accordance with the New CIT
Law is subject to a tax rate of 25% on assessable income.

During 2013, Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Dagian
Knitting”), a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Mainland
China, was qualified as a High-New Technology Enterprise
(“HNTE”) of Zhejiang Province. As a result, Dagian Knitting had
been entitled to a concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for
three years commencing 1 January 2013.
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12.

iR A D)

BEMX AR FAREABE —F 0
ER-T—ZF+-A=+—HILRH
FEZBEANGE L HEMT

11. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of

follows:

accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as

&
Group
—ZE-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 758 B A B Profit before tax 2,543,347 2,201,209
LAE FE L 2 25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of
—E—ZF:25%) 25% (2013: 25%)
B ZHIA 635,837 550,302
BERERER M T EBPT  Lower tax rates for specific jurisdictions or
B BRIEB = enacted by local authorities (194,790) (184,058)
DA RTHAfE B B Adjustments in respect of current tax of
HIER AR previous periods (3,900) (4,846)
JEAGEEE A RliB s Profits and losses attributable to associates 212 =
BRI A Income not subject to tax (210) =
AR 2 Expenses not deductible for tax 8,383 2,280
FARRERZHIEEE Tax losses not recognised during the year 35,852 39,960
FIFALART AR RER A AT HKF0  Utilisation of previously unrecognised
TIE & e deductible tax losses (4,667) (6,341)
476,717 397,297

RARERABMGERRE

BHE-Z-—NE+-A=1+—HItEE
ZARRNEHE NEGEE N EEENE
AR#95,117,000c (ZZF —=F : A
R 108,259,000t ) ' B RA R 7B 7%

MR ANERIE o

THE COMPANY

164 ER M B B 4% @142 % 5 PR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a profit of
RMB95,117,000 (2013: RMB108,259,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS
KAT
Company
—E-NF —E—=
2014 2013
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B R AR B B AR Proposed final dividend of HK$1.00
TBAR1.008 T (B (including a Special dividend of HK$0.35)
R IR 2.0.35% 7T ) (2013: HK$0.75 (including a special
ZE—=F:0.75%8T dividend of HK$0.20)) per ordinary share
(B ¥ Bl AL 2.0.20
ABIT) ) 1,103,671 824,920
AEFEZEERPREBHRAAFRKRE The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
REERRBEFRE L4 approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

14. KR RIEBERKREFESAE{ 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

BRER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
a) EXK a) Basic
ERERBNTIRERNR G L@ Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
RE RS HEZE A AR FDEBR AER profit attributable to owners of the company by the
BETTBRMEFEEGE - weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

rE
Group
—F-HmE —T=F
2014 2013
AR¥ T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RNRAFHEE AL FIE Profit attributable to owners of the Company 2,065,867 1,802,989
BEITEBRINEFHIE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(F8%) in issue (thousands) 1,399,000 1,365,351

Annual Report 2014 £ ¥ 165



/\

166

B S 2R B
Notes to Financial Statements

== I F=H=F"F 3Si-December206i4

14. X RFEERRESE AEWN
BRER &)

b)

Bg

FREFERNBERAE AEETE
HH) BB D R AT E B
IR R BUE L R B E - AR
AIRB—BAEEE LA :
AMBES - B RER A BERES
B TR - R B IRMER
BB EN SRR RIATE

14.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

b)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The company has only one category of dilutive
potential ordinary shares: convertible bonds. The
convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted
into ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to
eliminate the interest expense less the tax effect.

KE
Group
—E-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
ARE T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN/NETE ¥ =N bE Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 2,065,867 1,802,989
AMRESTERX Interest expense on convertible bonds
(BrFi18) (net of tax) 37,437 =
RAREESRES Profit used to determine diluted
B2 FH earnings per share 2,103,304 1,802,989
BT R METFHE Weighted average number of ordinary
(Fh%) shares in issue (thousands) 1,399,000 1,365,351
MATSBEFHE: Adjustments for:
R AR ES Assumed conversion of convertible
(F8) bonds (thousands) 54,953 =
AR ESREE Weighted average number of
B 2 E AR e ordinary shares for diluted earnings
FH g (FR’) per share (thousands) 1,453,953 1,365,351

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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15. % -BERRE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

S ]
Group
B R
BF BEREE RE EEkE ERIR @t
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
ARETR AR¥TR AR%TR ARETr ARMTR ARET#R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFE: Net book value:
RZT-Z£+-F=+-H  At31 December 2013 1,552,518 1,586,699 44,692 61,874 272,447 3,518,230
A Cost :
R-E-mE-F—H At 1 January 2014 2,087,118 3,172,507 96,134 179,359 272,447 5,807,565
NE Additions 33,824 230,257 11,393 16,613 795,345 1,087,432
a5 Transfers 612,714 278,246 = 1,003  (892,863) -
e Disposals (24398  (30211) (5,121) (226) - (59,956)
R A% Exchange realignment 39 508 23 7 865 1,442
W-ZE-ME+-A=+—H  At31 December 2014 2,709,297 3,651,307 102,429 197,656 175,794 6,836,483
ZEHAE: Accumulated depreciation:
RZE-EHFE-A—A At 1 January 2014 534,600 1,585,808 51,442 117,485 - 2,289,335
EENERE Depreciation provided during the year 133,413 247,835 12,636 21,865 - 415,749
e Disposals (24398  (25200) (2,841) (136) - (52,665)
5 % Exchange realignment 14 178 8 4 - 204
W-ZE-WE+-A=+—H  At31 December 2014 643,629 1,808,531 61,245 139,218 - 2,652,623
RHFE: Net book value:
RZE-MF+-A=+—H  At31 December 2014 2,065,668 1,842,776 41,184 58,438 175,794 4,183,860
REFE: Net book value:
WZZE——#+-F=+—H  At31 December 2012 1,562,961 1,518,391 38,794 68,731 125,223 3,314,100
A Cost :
R-E—=%—F—H At 1 January 2013 1,990,818 2,901,155 80,764 164,904 125,223 5,262,864
HE Additions 3,318 300,244 18,684 16,029 261,154 599,429
ELE S Transfers 101,900 11,676 218 136 (113,930) -
HE Disposals (8,571) (37,881) (3,401) (1,669) - (51,522)
bk Exchange realignment (347) (2,687) (131) (1) - (3,206)
RZE—=%+-A=+—H  At31 December 2013 2,087,118 3,172,507 96,134 179,359 272,447 5,807,565
REHE: Accumulated depreciation:
RW-_FE—=%—Hf—H At 1 January 2013 427,857 1,382,764 41,970 96,173 - 1,948,764
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year 115,425 235,440 11,973 22,931 - 385,769
HE Disposals (8,571) (31,379 (2,457) (1,593) - (44,000)
S Exchange realignment (111) (1,017) (44) (26) - (1,198)
WZE—=F#+-A=+—H  At31 December 2013 534,600 1,585,808 51,442 117,485 - 2,289,335
REFE: Net book value:
W-ZE—=#+-F=+—H  At31 December 2013 1,562,518 1,586,699 44,692 61,874 272,447 3,518,230
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16. FE{T L HE K\
AEE N HEER
mF

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
HREE DT The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments are analysed as follows:

KEE
Group
—E-NF —E-=F
2014 2013
ARE T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
| NE Cost:
w—A—H At 1 January 754,040 582,751
NE Additions 95,911 171,289
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 849,951 754,040
RETEESH Accumulated amortisation:
n—H—H At 1 January 57,169 43,476
FNEH Amortisation during the year 18,928 13,693
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 76,097 57,169
R FE - Net book value:
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 773,854 696,871
n—HA—H At 1 January 696,871 539,275
R B A AP B K B 2 A 3 T BA AR B AR The land of the Group situated in Mainland China is held under
KERFER o medium term leases.

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR /A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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17. B &EE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
—E—mWE+=-A=+—H 31 December 2014
rEE
Group
B4 K Mst
Water Use
Software Right* Total
AR¥ETR AR¥T R AR¥ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MZZ—PF—H—HZ Costat 1 January 2014, net of
7R B0 2 5T 58 accumulated amortisation 8,921 92,988 101,909
NE Additions 8,903 - 8,903
FREEHEBEE Amortisation provided during the year (1,516) (6,450) (7,966)
RZZE—HF At 31 December 2014
+=-A=+—H 16,308 86,538 102,846
MZZE—HF At 31 December 2014:
+=ZA=+—8:
Bk 7R Cost 20,804 129,001 149,805
ESIE §1 Accumulated amortisation (4,496) (42,463) (46,959)
REFE Net carrying amount 16,308 86,538 102,846
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17. B EE (#)
—E—=%#+=-A=+-—H

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continuead)
31 December 2013

AEHE
Group
;i Rk st
Water Use
Software Right* Total
ARBTT  ARETRZ  ARETE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZE—=F—H—Hz Costat 1 January 2013, net of
B BB B 5T # 3 accumulated amortisation 5,636 99,438 105,074
NE Additions 4,191 - 4,191
FEBHER Amortisation provided during the year (906) (6,450) (7,356)
RZE—=% At 31 December 2013
+-—A=+—H 8,921 92,988 101,909
RZE—=F At 31 December 2013:
+=-A=+—8:
AR Cost 11,901 129,001 140,902
ZETE 5 Accumulated amortisation (2,980) (36,013) (38,993)
REFE Net carrying amount 8,921 92,988 101,909

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

RIS B HE = E M E BN =
SEXRFOATLZ A RAEE
B T3t @ B KA B ER K i 8 R K
BRARRZZEENFTLZ =MD
e AEEERERE BT A
R #129,000,0007T * MAIRFE A B EE
RERFSKERMEE  BE20F ([A
KE]) RZZE—WMEFE+_A=+—
H AEEE X AR¥53,000,000
T (ZZT—=4: AR%53,000,000
J0) ¢ M EREE A R #76,000,00070 2 5t
N EL A FRIE

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the
Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,
Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
Supply General Company in 2008, the Group has agreed to pay
the local government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable price
for a period of 20 years (“Water Use Right”). As at 31 December
2014, the Group has paid an amount of RMB53,000,000 (2013:
RMB53,000,000), and the remaining amount of RMB76,000,000
was included in other payables.
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18. RMIB AR ZKRE - TFHEB
N ZERKEW ENHB

DN ERE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES

(a) RMBARZERE (a) Investments in subsidiaries
PN
Company
—ZE-mF —E—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥ T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE MR KA Unlisted shares, at cost 648,422 648,422

TEMBARZFBNOT:

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ARTEER
EMAL/ EMEHR e NER TEEBR
Z% EABRZETR ERITRA EE M KEHH
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and kind of Issued attributable to the Company  Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
KT RERLES. 30,002% 7T 100% - REBRREBREREER
BREFEAAF EREARERSE
Top Always BVI, US$30,002 100% - Investment holding
limited liability company in the BVI and property
leasing in Hong Kong
EREMHEERAR hEOIEBELR 116,000,000% T - 100%  RPBEAESERHESBR
(reMstal) REM
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting ~ PRC, US$116,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
(“Shenzhou Knitting”) enterprise Mainland China
ERtEHBNEERAE RE NEBELE 2,100,000% T - 100%  RREAREDRRHESER
(MR A]) REM
Ningbo Shixing Knitwear PRC, US$2,100,000 - 100%  Print and sale of knitwear
Printing Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned products in Mainland China
(“Shixing Printing”) enterprise
BERBRHEARAR hEIERELE 10,000,000% 7T - 91% MR EAESEREE AR
(TAskEx]) REM
Ningbo Yongmian Fashion  PRC, US$10,000,000 - 91%  Manufacture and sale of

Garment Co., Ltd.
(*Yongmian Fashion”)

foreign equity joint venture

knitwear products in
Mainland China

171
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18. RHMB AR ZKRE WA TFHE
NEAZERKEW ENHEB
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RMBRRZRE (&)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

ARTEER
ERMAL/ EREHR e NER TEEBR
2% EAERZER ERTRA EE M KEHH
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and kind of Issued attributable to the Company  Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ERAGREERAA HESNERELE 5,000,000 T - 9% RRERERERESHER
(TR%kEx]) REmM
Ningbo Shendie Fashion PRC, US$5,000,000 - 91%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. foreign equity joint venture knitwear products in
(“Shendie Fashion”) Mainland China
BMREE RERTH HNEBECE  30,000,000% 7T - 100% RREFPERBEEHERE
Em
Shenzhou Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia, US$30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
A5 hEOIEBELE 78,000,000% 7T - 100%  RPBEAESERHESER
REmM
Dagjian Knitting PRC, US$78,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERAMHEERAF hEIEBELE 1,050,000% 70 - 100%  RPREIAREZER NI R
([##hst ) REM
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Co., ~ PRC, US$1,050,000 = 100%  Manufacture and processing
Ltd. (“Linlin Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERERRHERAR hEIEBELE 4,000,000% - 100%  RPEIAREEER NI R
(I=RERE]) REM
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Co.,  PRC, US$4,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
Ltd. (“Ningbo Tuton”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
M (2R BRAR B SEBELE 10,000,000 7 - 100%  RREIAREZER NI ER
(ref=@l) REM
Shenzhou Knitting PRC, US$10,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing

(Anhui) Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Anhui”)

wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Mainland China
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE

FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a RMBLARZERE (£Z) (a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
ARTEER
ERMAL/ EREHR e NER TEEBR
£8 EAERZESR ERTRA EE M KEHH
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and kind of Issued attributable to the Company  Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
mMEE (BN ARAT B SEBELE 8,000,000% T - 100%  RREIAREEE RIS R
(TeRMEM]) REmM
Shenzhou Knitting PRC, US$8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
(Quzhou) Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
(“Shenzhou Quzhou”) enterprise Mainland China
LESERHBERAR e BELERT AR 2,000,0007T - 100% RPBEAEETESES
(TEBSR])
Shanghai Maxwin PRC, RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Trading in Mainland China
Garments Co., Ltd. sole proprietorship
(“Shanghai Maxwin”) company
ERATHLEOBREE HE FREFLT AR 10,000,000 - 100%  RAPBEAEELOEG
RA([RFELAT)
Ningbo Dagian Import & PRC, RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Import and export of
Export Co., Ltd limited liability company commodities in Mainland
(“Dagian Import & Export”) China
BNE S AR BREARA 1007 - 100%  mEH
Shenzhou Trading Hong Kong, HK$100 - 100%  Dormant
limited liability company
XEEE BE BREART 100 7T - 100% REBREZRRELOER
Top Always HK Hong Kong, HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding and
limited liability company import and export of
commodities in Hong Kong
EREERERAGRAR HE FREELA AR 8,000,0007T - 100% R BEIARBEETRRR
(MEE])
Ningbo Hengzhi Clothing PRC, RMB8,000,000 = 100%  Clothing detection in Mainland
Detection Co., Ltd. limited liability company China
(‘Hengzhi”)
ERBEHBERLA hEIEBELE 3,060,000% T - 100%  RAEAERERNISHER
(TB&E]) REM
Ningbo Yongyi Knitting Co.,  PRC, US$3,060,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
Ltd. (“Yongyi Knitting”) wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

KRR ES
ERMAL/ EREHR e NER TEEER
£8 EAERZESR BETRA Ei B Keud
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and kind of Issued attributable to the Company  Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
BNAR AR BREERA 5,000,0008 - 100% RAXETEHER
Shenzhou Japan Japan, JPY5,000,000 - 100%  Trading in Japan
limited liability company
ERSARHERAT hE BREERA AR 80,000,0007C - 100% RPEAEETTEER
(I=&RER])
Ningbo Maxwin PRC, RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Retail in Mainland China
Fashion Co., Ltd. limited liability company
(“Ningbo Maxwin”)
RERNELEOARDRE BB AREALHA AR 5,000,0007C - 100% RPEAEENOER
(FalzEl)
Anging Shenzhou Import PRC, RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Import and export of
& Export Co., Ltd. limited liability company commodities in Mainland
(“Shenzhou Anging”) China
LBEREXARAR hE BREERA AR 10,000,0007C - 100% RAEREETNEEEEK
(ISHEX])
Shanghai Maxwin PRC, RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Property management in
Industry Co., Ltd. limited liability company Mainland China
(*Maxwin Industry”)
BEERE ERELEE BREAAA 10,000% 7 100% - REBRRESHIREZR
Buddies Investments BVI, US$10,000 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
limited liability company
SRl BVI ERELEE AREAAA 10,000% 7 100% - REBRIESHSRELR
Maxwin BVI BVI, US$10,000 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
limited liability company
SBAEE BE BREERT 10,000/ 7 - 100% REBRERELR
Maxwin HK Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding in Hong
limited liability company Kong
BB (hE)ERAT hEIEBELE 18,000,000 7 - 100% RPBEREETEH%H
(ISETE])
Maxwin (China) Limited PRC, US$18,000,000 - 100%  Trading in Mainland China

(*Maxwin China”)

wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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18. R B AR 2RE L TFHE

DR ZERREY PR

NERIRIE (&)

(a) RMBRRZERE (&)

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

ARTEER
HMAY/ EMBER e NER TEEBR
2% EAERZER ERTRA EE M KEHH
Place of incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration and kind of Issued attributable to the Company  Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ERGBARAT hEIEBELE 60,000,000% 7 - 100%  RAPBEAESERHEEHER
(r#2]) REM
Huayao Textile Limited PRC, US$60,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(*Huayao”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
BEERM B BREERR 100,000% % - 100% RRAMETZHER
Buddies Macao Macao, MOP100,000 - 100%  Trading in Macao
limited liability company
ATREE RERTE IEBEERLE  40,000,000% 7T - 100% RRERRERFEHBRE
Em
Dagian Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia, US$40,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
BEELE ERALEE BAREAAA E3 - 100% HREBEXHSETRERER
Buddies Group BVI, limited liability company US$1 - 100% Investment holding in the BVI
ATHE (RB)ERRA  HE IEBECLE 8,000,000% T - 100%  REPBEARERER
HEHARRER
Dagjan Textile (Anhui) PRC, US$8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
Gain Lucky ERALEE AREAAA 3 100% - REBRIESETRELR
Gain Lucky BVI, US$1 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
limited liability company
Gain Lucky Vietnam B BREAERR 50,000,000% 7 - 100% ABEZER
HEHAEREER
Gain Lucky Vietnam Vietnam, US$50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of

limited liability company

knitwear products in
Vietnam

Annual Report 2014 £ ¥ 175



/A

B S 2R B
Notes to Financial Statements

“ZE—WFE+=—A=+—H8 81 December 2014

18. RMIB AT ZRE - 45 FH B 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS

176

NFZERREWR ESHE TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE
YNCIES-RE ) FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
b) HTFHEBLAREZER (b) Loans to subsidiaries
FFARRBIERBEEFRLHS TH The loans to subsidiaries included in the Company’s
BARcERBELF  2ERE non-current assets are unsecured and interest-free and
TEEENENBG AL R B RE for which the settlement is neither planned nor likely to
T ARRRIREBEEFRL T M occur in the foreseeable future. The loans to subsidiaries
BARcERABELR 28 RA included in the Company’s current assets are unsecured,
BERFN—FARNEE- interest-free and repayable on demand or within one year.
(c) FEW EFAKHBATRE () Amounts due from/to subsidiaries
FARRRIGBEE, BEZEK The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the
S TER B AR E AR ¢ Company’s current assets/liabilities are unsecured,
BERBRERIN—FRERE- interest-free and repayable on demand or within one year.
19. R—EBERATAZRE 19. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
rEH
Group
—E-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIhEEFRE Share of net assets 5,634 =
B R EME A ENTEER AT ([ Ningbo Avery Dennison Shenzhou Knitting and Printing Co.,
XA AAREE—EHE AR WHIR Ltd (“Ningbo Avery”) is an associate of the Group and is
EREE &R - considered to be a related party of the Group.
BREZBERARFBUOT Particulars of the associate are as follows:
28 S %R A AEEM/BERA  FEER RZEEL  BEEN  FEEER
Authorised Percentage of
Place and date registered/  Ownership Voting Profit
Name of registration paid-in capital interest power sharing  Principal activities
B SR BT ARE 30% 30% 30% HHEREEHBREER
21,600,0007C
Ningbo Avery* Zhejiang, the PRC RMB21,600,000 30% 30% 30%  Print and sale of knitwear

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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19. RA—BEHEATZRE (#2) 19. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
* ZHENFIREEBL KGRI ES * Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
Frsk 2ok BB A48 K B A B A% firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
AEERZBE AR HEREL I HE The Group's shareholdings in the associate all comprise
BARNF—FHE2EWNBARSE 2R equity shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
B A0 4B AK © Company.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

TREFMASEE R RS W IEE R 25 information of the Group’s associate that is not individually
ERAIZEFTIHBER: material:
TEE
Group
—E-MmF —T—=F
2014 2013
AR® T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEMGEE S A RIFEEIE KL Share of the associate’s loss for the year and

His2mE M= other comprehensive income (846) =
KEBREZ RNEIE 2  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's
IR EER investment in the associate 6,480 —
5,634 -
20. #& 20. INVENTORIES

RE

Group
—®-mfF —E-=F
2014 2013
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R & Raw materials 350,888 260,954
ER S Work in progress 1,209,252 1,289,150
UK Finished goods 1,047,070 874,795
2,607,210 2,424,899
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21. EWERR R EE

178

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

x&E AN
Group Company
“F-mE -—T-=-F | ZF-EOF -—T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTRE ARBTL @ ARBTR ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

W R EE Trade and bills receivables

A Impairment

1,642,917 1,374,991 120,146 79,154

1,642,917 1,374,991 120,146 79,154

AEBETFPZEHERTIBEUEET
RET EEHANFAREAUR- SR
BEEESTE R AR ER-

RBEHMR REZFZAMAE 2R
PR R RBRE DT -

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit with credit terms of within six months. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:
A% KD
Group Company
—E-mE —T-=F “E-Nmf —E-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTRE ARWTL = AR®TR ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—EAR Within three months 1,542,666 1,341,794 120,146 79,154
=EAKE Over three months 100,251 33,197 - =
1,642,917 1,374,991 120,146 79,154

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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21. BRRRREE (&) 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
WE BB AR A D RE 2 EWER The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
RNEEZERETIT not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:
bS] ¥ N
Group Company
—E-mE —E-=% —E2-ME —ZT-=
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTRE ARBTL @ ARBTR ARETL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR E Neither past due nor impaired 1,571,146 1,368,472 120,146 79,154
BEAOR={EA Less than three months

past due 13,582 339 - -
BE=EANE Over three months past due 58,189 6,180 - =

1,642,917 1,374,991 120,146 79,154
R 380 HA oY (B 2 FE MRk I8 B3 HA NP 4R e Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
Rz EFB#- customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
B EERBE B KIBEE TEL Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
EFAHE ZEBEFPRAASENRZE number of independent customers that have a good track
BRI -BREBERAFTRLR ARAESER record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
A AR EEERTEEANEE Bz of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
SERMWER AR 2 EWE - BEAR impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
ZEEBBITIRAER G AEENE has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
ZEERPFEEMERDIHITE AR balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
FAlEEEELHE- not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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21. EWERR KR EE (&) 21.
R-ZZTE—MNMEFE+-_A=+—H" EWE
BB EE AT HE s -

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
At 31 December 2014, the trade and bills receivables were
denominated in the following currencies:

180

X5E
Group
“E-mf —T-=F
2014 2013
% HEARE &  HEARE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
T AR%®Tr Fr  ARBTR
in thousand RMB’000 in thousand RMB’000
e us$ 173,463 1,061,418 156,305 952,976
AR RMB 581,499 581,499 422,015 422,015
1,642,917 1,374,991
NN
Company
“Z-lmE —T-=F
2014 2013
F¥%  HEAR% R&  HEARE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
T AR®Tx Tr ARETL
in thousand RMB’000 in thousand RMB’000
e USs$ 19,635 120,146 12,983 79,154

RUEREREZREEEEARER

o

g

+
T

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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22, EIIRE -REREMERR
15

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

b N
Group Company
—®-mE —F-=F —R-OF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARETR ARETT ARBT T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ENFERES Prepayments and deposits
~-BERME - Purchase of raw materials 169,819 56,898 - -
-BEWE -BER - Purchase of items of property,
B plant and equipment 34,267 23,025 o -
-ERHsRiE: - Prepaid rental and deposits 114,256 111,221 - =
- BB - Acquisition of a subsidiary 20,000 = - =
—Hith - Others 8,199 2,456 - =
U T T W ] S (A B 3R X VAT refund receivable and recoverable 216,247 100,055 = =
H-HeRgERTL Financial products issued by
cERER (M) a financial institution (Note) 470,000 = - =
MRS Interest receivable 33,795 5,271 = =
EYETFHBARRE Dividends receivable from certain
subsidiaries - - 1,834,849 1,379,159
H th fEW IR Other receivables 46,111 53,946 - -
1,112,694 352,872 1,834,849 1,379,159

Mizk: R —WFE - KTF4HERBME
BERRYFLERERBNEERES
RAR(DRINIFLZ]FTLEEEE
% - LABE B A R #270,000,0007T
K A R #200,000,0007C Z & Bl E @
(Z2—=F8) ZEcREMAD
FHMHE—FUAR - BRBFFEEFER
#5.85%  IRIEE B H 2SS/
EMEREHARRA-REHIZH
RN T 22 7 F 4R IR IE T A AR B
REEH IR ERTE o

Note: In 2014, Dagian Knitting and Shenzhou Knitting entered into
asset management agreements with Shenzhen Ping An-UOB
Huitong Wealth Management Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Ping An”) to buy financial products of RMB270,000,000 and
RMB200,000,000 (2013: Nil). These financial products have
terms of less than one year and have a guaranteed annual return
rate of 5.856%. Pursuant to the underlying agreements, these
financial products are capital guaranteed upon the maturity
date. The investment targets are selected by the fund manager
of Shenzhen Ping An and the Group has no right to make
investment decisions.

Annual Report 2014 £ ¥

181



A

B S 2R B
Notes to Financial Statements

== I F=H=F"F 3Si-December206i4

22 ERRE -REREMERR 22
8 (%)

S E S SR o AR T
BEreMEERTITERKBH
FEdR R TE AR -

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continueq)

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

BNFIR - Be RE M ERRIAZ RE
BEEARAERE-

The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximate to their fair values.

182

23. ZEER 23. ENTRUSTED LOANS
158
Group
ZZ-QmF %z
2014 2013
b.% %3] K248
RI%(%) HEA AEETR % (%) EEE ARETTR
Principal Principal
& Interest amount Interest amount
Borrower rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ki
Current
EEH-RER AT IREREERDA f) 6.15 2015 20,000 - - -
(THhTikE])
Entrusted loans - secured  Yuyao Yacjiang Tourism Development i) 6.15 2015 20,000 - - =
Co., Ltd. (*Yaojiang Tourism’)
ZEER-FER EREARNZEERAA ) 5.85 2015 40,000 - - -
([EA%E])
Entrusted loans - secured  Ningbo Fubang & Glen Furniture Co., 0] 5.85 2015 40,000 = = =
Ltd. (‘Fubang Furniture”)
)
Non-current
e -HER SRMABEERAA ((WABE) () 6.40 2017 105,000 - - -
Entrusted loans - secured  Ningbo A'LA Rice Wine Co., Ltd. (i) 6.40 2017 105,000 - - =
(‘A'LA Rice Wine')
ZHER-HER MLARBEIRARAR (] 6.40 2017 50,000 - - -
([Fxak])
Entrusted loans - secured  Zhejiang Zhetian Gommunication (] 6.40 2017 50,000 = = =
Enginegring Co., Ltd. (‘Zhetian
Communication”)
ZEH-HER DREERTREENRRAERRA () 6.21 2017 400,000 - - -
([ERFEEMRER])
Entrusted loans - secured  Ningbo Economic Development Area (i) 6.21 2017 400,000 = = =

Municipal Construction Co., Ltd.
(‘Ningbo EDA Construction’)

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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23. EXER (&)
M5 -

(i)

RZT—WNF KT (ERER)
BT (TR EE - =R EA - f iz
f@&ﬁﬁ%Lﬁ)&qﬂﬂﬂpﬁﬁiﬁiﬁd‘\‘\/\

11 (TEREFEH RIEFRIRIT)FI L ERT
,JATM CRIEZFTERBE 157551#
BEEEEMNELAIHE —RMEE
BA® RBIFRIFRITE) ||77ﬁr517(
FashZt B R R E AN R 2R HE
100% 1R °

R (ERET)BET (B
BEHBRR) R EHRERRITIL
W17 ((EREFEH RIEFKRIT)FTL
*Iﬁém’b%m‘m REBEEFEERWG

faﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁifﬁﬁﬂgjﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ

RIEEEAS BERILREMBRE
ﬁﬁ*%%&a‘f%ﬁ%ﬁm& S A R FB
RAHI100% R

teRERYEAMIRE - RETE
RET Y EIEA TSR BT B/

24, A4

23. ENTRUSTED LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(i) In 2014, Dagian Knitting entered into entrusted loan agreements
as the lender with the borrowers (Yaojiang Tourism, Fubang
Furniture, A’LA Rice Wine and Zhetian Communication) and
China CITIC Bank, Yinzhou Branch (as the entrusted party and
the lending bank). Pursuant to the entrusted loan agreements,
the borrowers shall repay the interest on a quarterly basis and
the principal amount in one lump sum on the maturity date.
China CITIC Bank, Yinzhou Branch has provided a guarantee to
Dagian Knitting for 100% of the entrusted loan, as well as the
applicable interest.

(if) Dagian Knitting entered into an entrusted loan agreement as
the lender with the borrower (Ningbo EDA Construction) and
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beilun Branch (as the
entrusted party and the lending bank). Pursuant to the entrusted
loan agreements, the borrower shall repay the interest on a
quarterly basis and the principal amount in one lump sum on
the maturity date. Finance Bureau of Beilun District of Ningbo
has provided a guarantee to Dagian Knitting for 100% of the
entrusted loan, as well as the applicable interest.

None of the above financial assets is either past due or
impaired. The entrusted loans relate to borrowers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

e 4 24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
r5E NN
Group Company
—2-mE -T-=-F Z-B-NmFE -—T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
AREBTRE AR%ETn @ AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B — & AR 21T € B E MFinancial products issued
by a financial institution 320,000 200,000 - -
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24, HEHERE (®) 24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)
RZE—NF+-_A=+—H #H—H As at 31 December 2014, certain financial products
TREEMETETREEERARE issued by a financial institution with a carrying amount of
320,000,000t (ZE—=F: AR¥ RMB320,000,000 (2013: RMB200,000,000) were stated at
200,000,0007T ) K & B & G JY §% A AR cost less impairment. The directors are of the opinion that their
BBREAR - BEFRAEREZAALET fair value cannot be measured reliably. The financial products
AR E-eREMCFHALIR—F have terms of less than one year and have expected annual
BT SRERRES2% (ZE—= rates of return up to 5.2% (2013: 5.3%). Pursuant to the
F:53%) - IREBEAEBESOIBA ZF underlying contracts or notices, these financial products are
CRUE MBI H AR RA o RE BT capital guaranteed upon the maturity date. The Group does not
PRI EZES/MER- intend to dispose of them in the near future.
25. fTE€mIT A 25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
“E-WF
2014
rEE NG|
Group Company
BE =L BE 2
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETR AR®Tn AR%Tx AR%¥Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R EEAY Forward currency contracts 11,214 - 11,214 -
—T-=F
2013
KEE VNG
Group Company
BE B BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBEAN Forward currency contracts 3,456 - = =
RHAEEASYHZRMESRE QAR EMN The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the
[ ° same as their fair values.
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25.

TTE€MI A (%)

BHESEH-RLREY
EHEEA ORERESENES 2T
BB E 2 EH TR ABEEA K
SRR BRTERT SN B 8 2 KT RSN IR S
F% 2 BB -

REEBSANFHETBARKEE
FHEF - AEBEEFH_ZE—TF
BEIERARIKRHEMRER SR E 2 EH
BE RETHPER -BmFEARK
6,771,000 (ZZE—=F : EFEA
R #5,433,0007T ) &2 T 51 75 L 5T A $ 8
8 -

25.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges

Forward currency contracts are designated as hedging
instruments in respect of forecast future sales to overseas
customers. The forward currency contract balances vary with
the levels of expected foreign currency sales and changes in
foreign exchange forward rates.

The terms of the forward currency contracts match the terms
of the forecast future sales. The cash flow hedges relating to
forecast future sales in the year 2014 were assessed to be
highly effective. Net gains of RMB6,771,000 (2013: Net gains
of RMB5,433,000) were included in the hedging reserve as
follows:

—E-mF T —=
2014 2013
AR®B T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR REE 2 Total fair value gains included in
NREREER the hedging reserve 16,272 19,244
ARERE 2 EERIE Deferred tax on fair value gains (1,593) (4,384)
HEreBmRPERZ Reclassified from other comprehensive
Hih 2K EEF DR income recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (8,515) (12,330)
BENoBEEEE BT Deferred tax on reclassification to
I8 profit or loss 607 2,903
ReRELE P 2 Wz FE  Net gains on cash flow hedges 6,771 5,433

R-F—NF  REBWHEFT LI I
EEHHRENZINEEHN - R_F—=
FOORMMERITATAZ AR ERS
BARY929,0007T ' Bt ARRFEZ

FEBR@mK-

In 2014, the Group has not entered into foreign currency
contracts which are not designated for hedge purposes. In
2013, fair value gain on non-hedging currency derivatives of
RMB929,000 were charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year.
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26. EBER 26. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS
AEE AAT
Group Company
—E-F —E-=F —E-NfF —E-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTRE ARBTL = ARBTR ARETL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TR BB RITH Structured deposits in

BEEER licensed banks in the PRC,

TR SRR at amortised cost 2,211,160 - = -
ERTRHRR —FUR - EBEF B R These structured deposits have terms of less than one year
ENFTA40EEL4QE - RIBBEBHE LK and have fixed annual rates of return from 4.0% to 4.9%.
BE ZEHEBEFREN A ER Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices, these
X WA AR B B AT ATRE [ o structured deposits are capital and return guaranteed upon

the maturity date. No redemption ahead of the maturity date is
allowed.
27. EEHER 27. PLEDGED DEPOSITS
bS] NG
Group Company
“ET-QmE T ZB-NF _—T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTT ARETT AR®TR AR®T:n
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
oM I B 4R Pledged for foreign currency swaps 893,483 = - =
R—_ZE—WMFE+_-_F=+—8" As at 31 December 2014, bank balances of US$144,854,052
144,854,062 L (B AR (approximately RMB893,483,500) (2013: Nil) were pledged until
898,483,5007L) (ZE—=9F &) certain foreign currency swaps held by the Group are settled.
RITAMRTDEERR  BEERNEEFIHF The pledged deposits carry interest at fixed rates ranging from
BETIHBIEHEER I BB 1.2% to 2.5% per annum.

RIRETEFR R 2B E25ET 8 -
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28. RE RIS ZEEY 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AEH ARF
Group Company
—Z-MF —E-=F —E-MmF —E-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTRE AR%Tr  AR®TR ARETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BeRRTEH Cash and bank balances 1,000,264 1,653,455 166,976 492,052
MBI R=@AZ Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITHER less than three months 427,810 955,595 = -
BehBeZEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,428,074 2,609,050 166,976 492,052

RBEEHER AEEBUAAREG
BEREEBRTEBHBODABEARK
985,854,739.04T (ZE —=5F: A K
#1,449,776,545.7670) - AREEARTAI B
BABRAHMEE A BEFBEKX
B 2 HNEE B IR AR R AL TE - B[ R AT IE
EERATE AEEEI E S RERER
NETELEBZRITBARBKLRE
HiEH-

R RIT 2 BB LIRIT 28 BFHA
T ULF B R EREUA B, o 58 B 77 KA —
REZlAATEFZTRAYREFE &TF
AEBEZEREHRME  LIREE
1T A R ERERA B - RITEBRETF
ARAW MR ZEBRIFRIT
RekReFEBYREEEEQARE
HE -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB985,845,739.04 (2013: RMB1,449,776,545.76). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.
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2. ENERERREE

30.

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

RMERR BNEREREERRE ST An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
N of the reporting period is as follows:

x&E AN
Group Company
—Z-mF —E-ZF “E-mE —T-=%
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTRE ARBTT | ARBTRE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

NMEAR Within six months 454,016 377,273 - -
NERE—F Six months to one year 1,781 5,136 = -
—FEMF One year to two years 5,032 943 - -
FES Over two years 6,795 8,397 - -
467,624 391,749 - -
MR REETER - BNERREERE The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The
BZREEEEAABEMES carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate
to their fair values.
Hi EA FIE R ESTFIE 30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

A% A207
Group Company
“E-mE  —E--F ZEBE-mF —T—-%
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTR ARBTI | ARBTR ARETL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

JERTF S Accrued expenses 213,106 200,635 - 26
FAKREFEST A (HIE17)  Payable for Water Use Right (note 17) 76,000 76,000 - =
BENE BER Payables for purchase of
Rt B FIE property, plant and equipment 81,838 19,648 - =
BRREIR RER Guarantee deposits related
to construction projects 9,781 9,770 - -
B HIE Advance from customers 85,535 114,414 = -
Hit AT Other taxes payable 101,020 61,864 - -
R Emm S 2 RE Dividends payable
to non-controlling interests 587 587 - -
Hit Others 42,441 48,250 1,222 =
610,308 531,168 1,222 26
A FE A SRIE R BT ROIA < BREE B H The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals
NAERSE - EMENAFIETR R - approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing.
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31. st ERITEBE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
F5@
Group
—E-mE F-=%
2014 2013
ik ERFI%
(E) A ARETR (E) HEE  ARETR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ik} Current
RITEN-EEA Bank loans - unsecured 2,6 2015 1,865 - - -
ROER-BER Bank loans - unsecured
(REKER) (due for repayment - on demand) 28 2016 44,872 = = =
46,737 -
* ZERTEEFARDEERN REA * These bank borrowings are included in current liabilities as the
RITHEREENAIBERERLURSE banks have an overriding right to call for cash repayment on
BRMBAEE-—SEEAEEER demand at any time without further reference to the Group and
MEXAEEBEERNBRITZEMNE to demand settlement of any balance owing by the Group to the
fho banks.
rEE
Group
—E-mF —T—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MR- Analysed into:
/,\3AT§|JHHFEHE5&Z Bank loans and overdrafts repayable:
RITERRBES :
—F R IHFERK Within one year or on demand 46,737 =
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31. 5T ERITEE (&)

@ W-—ZZTE—WN&F+=-—_A=+—H"
AREBEZEEREBEENARARE
1,316,664,5007C (ZFE—=4: A
R #1,443,994,00070) - £ AR
46,737 413 (—E—=F 1 8)2
REBRGH - N MEBAK KB AE
BEREHEE (ZBRRETHRE)AAR
#1,269,927,087 L (ZT—=%F: A
R #1,443,994,0007T) °

by RZTE—NF+_A=+—H -FEHE
EIAETTEE .

© FEBETRABRREEDHEAA
AEH R -

32. TR ES

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

(@)

(©)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had borrowing
facilities amounting to approximately RMB1,316,664,500
(2013: RMB1,443,994,000), of which RMB46,737,413
(2013: Nil) had been utilised as at the end of the reporting
period. The unutilised borrowing facilities, subject to
certain conditions, amounted to RMB1,269,927,087
(2013: RMB1,443,994,000) as at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2014, the borrowings are all

denominated in United States dollars.

Certain bank loans and credit facilities of the Group are
secured by the Company.

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

—2-mEF —F—=
2014 2013
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
W=—ZF—MF,xA+/\H Face value of convertible bonds
BITZABRESZ issued on 18 June 2014
[ERED 3,097,380 -
T2 Issuing expenses (53,790) =
=D Equity component (197,140) =
RZZ—MNFxA+/\H Liability component on initial recognition
NEERSHEELD on 18 June 2014 2,846,450 -
EXRGH & Effect of exchange rate changes (18,995) -
Z25T R B A Accumulated finance costs 24,407 =
FEASE I B, Interest payable 12,813 =
BB Liability component 2,864,675 -
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32. KR ES (&) 32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

RZZE—WFNA+TNB - KRAEE
77 7K & 48 %63,900,000,0008 T it — &
—NEXNA+NB(T IJHHEDEIJHJ%Z
ATmBRES NPBRREAEERAR

LHXSSE&%E(T%E@%&)%@W%
BOSE-BRIEZ AT E D - & §E [0
gkl BRIZEEFBERE A EAE
4 %87103.86%f @ -

BED MDD < AR ER AT R
BEHFBRTREE -

BESBPZARE HIRERERET

Tﬁﬁxﬂ’ﬂfﬁz?ﬁi}%?ﬁjﬂfi 55[EFHH -
HERRERSOZEBE SFARRE
SR ERA -

On 18 June 2014, the Company issued convertible bonds
which will be due on 18 June 2019 (the “maturity date”), in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$3,900,000,000 with an
initial conversion price of HK$38.56 (subject to adjustment)
per ordinary share of the Company, and the coupon rate is
0.5%. Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased or
cancelled, these bonds will be redeemed at 103.86% of their
principal amount on the maturity date.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined upon the issuance of the
convertible bonds.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate of 3.55% for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the equity
component, is included in reserves in shareholders’ equity.

RZZE-—MF+_A=+—0 A8k The fair value of the convertible bonds approximated to their
BHEHN AN BERERTNERS carrying amounts as at 31 December 2014,

R-ZZE-—MOF+_A=+—B #HEE
b1

SRAAREESBRASAAR LR
P

As at 31 December 2014, no bond holders have converted
their bonds into ordinary shares of the Company.
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33. IELEB R 33. DEFERRED TAX
B A AR NITRN ST RS E R Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
BB aEEE BREEMSEH IR is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
B — B BHE 2 BERT - B KRR current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
FHEENBEBERAENE- to the same taxation authority.
x&@ NS
Group Company
—g2-mE -T-=F ZB-mE =%
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTRE AR%ETn | AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEHBEE Deferred tax assets 12,690 8,435 - -
ELEHBAE Deferred tax liabilities (1,850) (864) (1,850) =
EXHBEE,/ (BE)FE Deferred tax assets/(labilities), net 10,840 7,571 (1,850) =
RUBRARRE CBEERIEEERE Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected in the statement
(ER/ NS of financial position as follows:
x&E@E NG|
Group Company
“E-WmE T ZB-NFE —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTRE AR%ETn @ AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 12,690 7,571 - =
BEEHEEE Deferred tax liabilities (1,850) = (1,850) =
EXHBEE,/ (BE)FE Deferred tax assets/(iabilities), net 10,840 7,571 (1,850) -
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33. IEEBLIH (#) 33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
RIEFTSHIRE @ EEH T The gross movements on the deferred tax accounts are as
follows:
PN PN
Group Company
“E-mE —E--F ZEBE-QmF —2—-%
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTRE ARBTT | ARBTRE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

F4) At beginning of year 7,571 9,058 - 479
RAFEEBREER Deferred tax credited/(charged)
A/ ()2 to the statement of profit or loss
ERFIR (M) during the year (note 11) 4,255 (6) - -
RAFE =R Deferred tax charged
ZIERTIE to equity during the year (986) (1,481) (1,850) (479)
FE At end of year 10,840 7,571 (1,850) -
BLERBEERBERFAZES (K The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during
ST RBEAR G e AR A 2 &) the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
I balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
(a) ELEHEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
rEE
Group
BeRE
B ¥HIERE st
Cash flow
Provisions hedges Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZT—=%—HA—H  At1January 2013 8,441 617 9,058
RAFEEEZ KM 2  Deferred tax charged to the
EIEFIR statement of profit or loss
during the year (6) - (6)
RAFERZNER Deferred tax charged
EAER T to equity during the year - 617) 617)
R-ZE—=F At 31 December 2013
+-A=+—H 8,435 = 8,435
RAFEEZRFAZ  Deferred tax credited
EAERIE to the statement of profit or loss
during the year 4,255 - 4,255
RAFERZFA Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(k) 2 EZEF A to equity during the year = = -
R=-Z-—NF At 31 December 2014
+=A=+-H 12,690 - 12,690
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33. IEEBLIH (#) 33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(a) EZLEHBEE (&) (a) Deferred tax assets (continued)
b NN
Company
HERE
g g
Cash flow
hedges
ARETT
RMB’000
R-_ZE—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 479
RAFEERNGR 2 IEERIE Deferred tax charged to equity during the year (479)
R-_E—=F+-_A=+—82 Gross deferred tax assets at
BEMIBEERLE 31 December 2013 -
RAFE RN ZELERIE Deferred tax charged to equity during the year =
R-ZZ—MNE+=-HA=+—HZ  Gross deferred tax assets at
EEBREERE 31 December 2014 -
RZE—WE+=ZA=+—8" The Group has tax losses of approximately
AEBEBHBERENARE RMB143,408,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
143,408,000t (ZFE—=4F: A RMB182,073,000). Deferred tax assets have not been
R #182,073,0007T) ° A % B W recognised in respect of these deductible temporary
R ENE TR EERERAR differences as it is not considered probable that taxable
EHmEEE RESERAT AR profits will be available against which the deductible
B2 A FE ER A A B DA R R SE AT 40 A temporary differences can be utilised.
TR =
R B K B 2 AR 3P AT R R 4K 8 R The tax losses arising in Mainland China for offsetting
RIEART AN E 2 B EEAF R — against future taxable profits will expire in one to five
ERFEH- years.
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33. EBEBIH (#) 33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(b) EZEHEARE (b) Deferred tax liabilities
rEH
Group
HERE
¥H1ER
Cash flow
hedges
ARBETF T
RMB’000
A\ZE—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 -
RAFE RN 2 BEERIE Deferred tax charged to equity during the year 864
RZZE—=F+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2013 864
RAFERRIGR CIELERIE Deferred tax charged to equity during the year 986
R-EB-NFE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014 1,850
b NN
Company
RERE
g g
Cash flow
hedges
ARET T
RMB’000
RZZE—=F—HA—HBXK At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013
—T—=%+-A=+—H =
RAFEBRZRMBZIELFIE  Deferred tax charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the year 1,850
R-ZZF—MWFE+-HA=+—HZ  Gross deferred tax liabilities
EEREESEARE at 31 December 2014 1,850
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33. IELERIE (&)

(b)

EEBEEE (F)
RIBREIRERGERE RZZEE
NE—A—H# RFRBRERL
ZEBIMNEECEMEIR 2REE
B10%TE 05 © fie - B 825 Hh %
BEMBRIZERAERBE L B
AEAREKZENHRE - AEERE
s AR E A% o T 151
R-_ZEENFE_RA -+ _HMBEH
B Fi(2008) %198 ST AR = F
E+F+ A=+ —HNERSER
FEEREELRE 2 RIER
o MTEEL

RZE—WOF+=—A=+—8" #
AR BN B REEN 2 B
NRAZBRIBERT 2 K E LR
ZERNTENB mEREERIE &
ERRB ZEWBARRA] LMK
DIKZEBHR ALK R
Z—NFE+ZA=+—H HEH&
AR B K BE BT B R 5] 8 BE A R
RECHIEEBE EREHEAH
#5 A R #8,089,743,0007T ( =
T —=4%: AR %6,915,387,000
5o

AR A A E B RO 5 2 BB 3
B ERI PSR R

33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(b)

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China effective from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax arrangement
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. On 22
February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by
the tax authorities to specify that dividends declared and
remitted out of the PRC from the retained profits as at 31
December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2014, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totaled approximately
RMB8,089,743,000 at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB6,915,387,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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34. K&K 34. SHARE CAPITAL
—E-mf —T-=F
%) Shares 2014 2013
THER ARETT FiEL AREF T
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$’'000 RMB’000
ETE Authorised:
3,000,000,000/% 3,000,000,000 (2013:
(ZB—=%: 3,000,000,000) ordinary
3,000,000,0008% ) & f% shares of HK$0.10 each
EfE0.10 T2 Bk 300,000 312,000 300,000 312,000
BRITRAR Issued and fully paid:
1,399,000,000/% 1,399,000,000 (2013:
(Z%—=%: 1,399,000,000) ordinary
1,399,000,000% ) = i E shares of HK$0.10 each
B010B T2 @M 139,900 142,105 139,900 142,105

RBERRNADBTRAR  FANR

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to

SHEMT: the Company’s issued share capital is as follows:
BB

RHEE ERTREA ROBER @t

Number of Share

shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
T ARETT AR®TR ARET:T
in thousand RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R-_T—=%#—H—H At 1 January 2013 1,330,000 136,609 1,143,000 1,279,609
B84 Issue of shares 69,000 5,496 1,225,574 1,231,070
BOBETRZ Share issue expenses - - (14,371) (14,371)
BE-Z-—=—ERIKE Proposed final 2013 dividend - - (322,342) (322,342)
R-E—=%F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 1,399,000 142,105 2,031,861 2,173,966
BTG Issue of shares - = = =
BABEITRT Share issue expenses = = = =
BE-Z-NERBKRE Proposed final 2014 dividend - - (560,119) (560,119)
R=ZE-MF+=A=1+—H At 31 December 2014 1,399,000 142,105 1,471,742 1,613,847
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35. &R

AEER A A ROBE S 2 G
SERAEDE 2 NHBHEE
FI06EHARELSDE-

() ZTEGLBEL ([ZTEEH
AEL])
RIE A A BE R A B R RE
MEB AR ZABERMA -
BB KENE AR AR
RBABEAREFARAUEEZ
BREEFIE10%EAZEE
BHRAES BEEHEBELE
SER B ARREN B A F T
it I R 2 50% & LE © B 79 %
ERBAES ARG N
BB BRI 24T
TELRFMBRARZ225% -

(i) EZXERE
PEE 34,8 Bh e A 1 T 8% I 42
BB R Rz BmEK
EEZEREZRE-

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

35. RESERVES
(a) #&£E (a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 106

of the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the articles of association of the Mainland
China subsidiaries, each of the Mainland China
subsidiaries is required to allocate 10% of their profit
after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
generally accepted accounting principles, to the
SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of its registered
capital of the Mainland China subsidiaries. Part
of the SSR may be converted to increase paid-
up capital, provided that the remaining balance
after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries.
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35. f@&fE(#)

35. RESERVES (continued)

(b) A&2H (b) Company
naR
E5z EX BRRA
ReEEE  RAB&%  BERG  HHEE  KBEE  REERN Re &3t
Equity
component
Share of Exchange Proposed
premium Capital ~ convertible Hedging  fluctuation Retained final
account surplus bonds reserve reserve profits dividend Total
ME  ARETT ARETR ARETR AREFT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=E-=F-F-H At 1 January 2013 1,143,000 727,430 B (2,426) (416,413) 72,709 754,855 2,279,155
FEREYNELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 2,426 (74,270) 518,107 - 446,263
G Issue of shares 1,205,574 - - - - - - 1205574
BHEGRE Share issue expenses (14,371) = = = = = = (14,371)
WEREHZEZSBH  Equity component of
convertible bonds - - - - - - - -
ERZF-ZERHKE  Final 2012 dividend declared - - - - - - (754,855)  (754,855)
BE-F-=FKHKES  Proposed final 2013 dividend 13 (322,342) = = = - (502578) 824,920 =
RZB-Z% At 31 December 2013
T-A=1+-8 2,031,861 727,430 - - (490,683) 88,238 824,920 3,181,766
FE2ENGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 9,363 5972 545,300 - 560,635
BITR M Issue of shares = - - - _
R BITEL Share issue expenses - - - - - - = =
MERESZBRHH  Equity omponent of
convertible bonds - - 197,140 - - - - 197,140
ER-F-=EKHKS  Final 2013 dividend declared - - - - - - (8249200 (824,920)
BRE-F-MERHMRE  Proposed final 2014 dividend 13 (560,119) = = = - (43552 1,103,671 =
RZB-mE At 31 December 2014
T=B=+-H 1,471,742 721,430 197,140 9,363 (484,711) 89,986 1,103,671 3,114,621
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36. REFEASZ2EMI A 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RBERR SEEe T ACERE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
N instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
EWMEE Financial assets

X5E
Group
“E-mF
2014
BNk AHEE
BEEE P We i oE SREE @zt
Available-
for-sale
Held for Loans and financial
trading  receivables assets Total

AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

afHERE Available-for-sale investments - - 320,000 320,000
G ES Trade and bills receivables - 1,642,917 - 1,642,917
FABRFE -RER Financial assets included
HENGE eREE in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables - 549,906 - 549,906
ZRAER Entrusted loans - 615,000 - 615,000
HEREER Structured deposits - 2,211,160 - 2,211,160
TESMITA Derivative financial instruments 11,214 - - 11,214
BEHEAER Pledged deposits - 893,483 - 893,483
MipERHa=142 Bank deposits with an initial term
RITER of over three months - 22,392 - 22,392
ReERBEZEED Cash and cash equivalents - 1,428,074 - 1,428,074
11,214 7,362,932 320,000 7,694,146
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36. ZERE P 2EMIT A (&) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
SREE (&) Financial assets (continued)
K&
Group
-F-=
2013
EHR THHE
FIEEE FEd kIR TREE B
Available-
for-sale
Held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total

ARBTT  ARWTT ARBTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At HERE Available-for-sale investments = = 200,000 200,000
YRR R EE Trade and bills receivables - 1,374,991 - 1,374,991
FABRRRE ReR Financial assets included in
HwENFIE eREE prepayments, deposits and other
receivables = 59,217 - 59,217
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 3,456 - - 3,456
MNisGErHw="A2 Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITHER over three months = 27,425 = 27,425
HehReFED Cash and cash equivalents - 2,609,050 - 2,609,050
3,456 4,070,683 200,000 4,274,139
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36. RERNESZEMIA (&#) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
- N=N Financial liabilities
rE
Group
—F-mHmF —T=%F
2014 2013
2 #8 8H B A R ER A
FEZ FEZ
o= 8=NE THREE
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JERT R R BRI Trade and bills payables 467,624 391,749
AT AEAMEN FKRIE R FERT  Financial liabilities included
FEZEHBE in other payables and accruals 311,667 268,669
&S RE3E A T 30UE Amounts due to a related party 1,860 =
A % E 5 Convertible bonds 2,864,675 =
ATERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 46,737 =
3,692,563 660,418
SREE Financial assets
NN
Company
—E-ME —T—=F
2014 2013
BNk ERR
BFFEE P Wa i oE Bt FEWRIE
Held for Loans and Loans and
trading  receivables Total receivables
ARET T ARET T AR®TRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
JE U BR X Trade receivables - 120,146 120,146 79,154
FABRRFE - RER Financial assets included
HENFE eREE in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 1,834,849 1,834,849 1,379,159
FEMHT B 1 Rl IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 289,642 289,642 215,085
BTHWBARZER Loans to subsidiaries 4,304,614 4,304,614 927,482
TEEMTA Derivative financial instruments = 11,214 =
ReRREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 166,976 166,976 492,052
6,716,227 6,727,441 3,092,932
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36. ZEHE D Z2EMT A (&)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
TRAE Financial liabilities
KATE
Company
—E-0F —F-=F
2014 2013
R A R AR
EZ TEZ
cRAas TREE
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
ARET ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
T AH At FE A 3R IR K2 Financial liabilities included

BErREZEHEE in other payables and accruals 1,222 =
P& 1< BT /B8 1% R FKIR Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,248,234 815,379
Al R B 5 Convertible bonds 2,864,675 -
4,114,131 815,379
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37. EMIAEZAREBERAARERE 37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
AN OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AEEERARARIZEBRTAREOERA The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
AEWT: Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

34
Group
FHE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
“B-mE  —T=F% “E2-MmEF —E-=%
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTRE AR%TR | AR®TR ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

SREE Financial assets
HEERE Available-for-sale investments 320,000 200,000 320,000 200,000
& AR 3% Trade receivables 1,642,917 1,374,991 1,642,917 1,374,991
SAERNZIE ZEREM  Financial assets included
BURFTIE, CREE in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 549,906 59,217 549,906 59,217
RTER Entrusted loans 615,000 = 615,000 =
HEFT Structured deposits 2,211,160 - 2,211,160 -
(THEeRI A Derivative financial instruments 11,214 3,456 11,214 3,456
EHEAER Pledged deposits 893,483 = 893,483 =
MisEHH@=EA 2$1T Bank deposits with an initial term
B of over three months 22,392 27,425 22,392 27,425
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,428,074 2,609,050 1,428,074 2,609,050
7,694,146 4,274,139 7,694,146 4,274,139
tREE Financial liabilities
ERERRRE Trade and bills payables 467,624 391,749 467,624 391,749
STAE M E R FIE R Financial liabilities included
EetHE eRAE in other payables and accruals 311,667 268,669 311,667 268,669
JER A& AT RIE Amounts due to related parties 1,860 - 1,860 -
ik ES Convertible bonds 2,864,675 = 2,864,675 =
FERGEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 46,737 = 46,737 =

3,692,563 660,418 3,692,563 660,418
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37. EMI B2 NABRAAERE 37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

oz OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
NN
Company
RHE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
“F-mOE -—T-=-F | Z¥F-EFE -—T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTRE ARETT = ARBTR ARETL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

SREE Financial assets
& U B 30 Trade receivables 120,146 79,154 120,146 79,154
SFABRMFE -RER Financial assets included
HittEWF R e REE in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 1,834,849 1,379,159 1,834,849 1,379,159
FE Y B BB 28 Rl SRR Amounts due from subsidiaries 289,642 215,085 289,642 215,085
BYWBRAIZER Loans to subsidiaries 4,304,614 927,482 4,304,614 927,482
fTEERMTIA Derivative financial statements 11,214 - 11,214 =
HehReFED Cash and cash equivalents 166,976 492,052 166,976 492,052
6,727,441 3,092,932 6,727,441 3,092,932
tHaR Financial liabilities
STAHMENRIERES  Financial liabilities included
HEZEBBE in other payables and accruals 1,222 = 1,222 =
FERTHS B 2 RIS IR Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,248,234 815,379 1,248,234 815,379
AR E %S Convertible bonds 2,864,675 - 2,864,675 -
4,114,131 815,379 4,114,131 815,379
TREERABZAANBENUZIARA The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
FEZRZ 575 (M3EsRASBERHEE) & Al at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
R THAIRSEBAR THIHER in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
BREIAREERAE: in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and

assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
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37. ERMIE2ARERAAERE

206

&g

HeRESZBY VRGERHMA=E
AzHAESR SRR #BEX B
EMER - R R EAEX
REE HABMRE RS RE M
WEKIE Y £ BB E A H A ZE
RESZE Sma s EUEMK
BARZERKTHBRAZEXHA
REBEERERE TEREARS
TEREHAEIE.

AFRRITEBRERAIRERERZARETD
EAAEFRLUER  EERRMHT
IR 2 T AR KA G2 M RALRTEH
ARBREZREMFE -

AEBEERZEH I LITEER TR
TEERTA (BREHERAH) HEK
REEEERUZ AERMTE (K
RBEEHE) ZEFEAMAZTETR
ZMGHBEGABE (BRY ST ZE
EE8x HNERRMERER) - EZHE
BeZRaERE R AERR-

R-ZE-—NME+-A=+—H &KME
EEZITEEERRHKRITATAY
HEHNRREBEZEEFGHAE U
EERREBHIETBEITAER T
ETARBEARERRZHEHMERTA
ZH YA AL BEBERNTE -

37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits
with an initial term of over three months, entrusted loans,
structured deposits, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts due
from/to subsidiaries and loans to subsidiaries approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank borrowings and
convertible bonds have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties. Derivative financial instruments,
including forward currency contracts, are measured using
valuation techniques similar to forward pricing, using present
value calculations. The models incorporate various market
observable inputs including the credit quality of counterparties,
foreign exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts
of forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

As at 31 December 2014, the marked to market value of the
derivative asset position is net of a credit valuation adjustment
attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes
in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge
effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in hedge
relationship and other financial instruments recognised at fair
value.

ER M BB 58 @142 R A BR A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



gy S EL R
Notes to Financial Statements

—“E-NE+=-F=+—H 31 December 2014

37. eMI B2 A RERAAEE 37.

oE)

DNREEBR

AEBERTHERNETREBESCR

TAZARE:

E—®: HEAREESEGBNERN
7 HE (REHB)HEY
ARiE

B REERWHEZANE
EfEAYAAEHERS
BEAY SEELS RS
DAHEENREEEMSG

Bo® REERWHEZANE
HFFER s HARMBEHET
TEEACSEERE AR
BRI BR

BAREHBSEE:

FEH

R-ZFE—HONOFE+=-A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

Assets measured at fair value:
Group

As at 31 December 2014

F—1 FZH E=R @t

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARETR ARETR ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - 11,214 - 11,214
RZE—=F+=-"A=+—H As at 31 December 2013

-5 ER F=R @t

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARETT ARETT ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AT A Derivative financial instruments - 3,456 - 3,456
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Annual Report 2014 £ ¥



y

B S 2R B
Notes to Financial Statements

“ZE—NME+=-H=+—H8 31 December 2014

37. eMI B2 NABRAAERE 37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

@) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
AREEBHK(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
BARBHEZEE (&) Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
¥ NN Company
R-ZB-NFE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2014
E-& et 1} F=R @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

fTHEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 11,214 - 11,214
N-E—=F+-"A=+—H As at 31 December 2013

- FR E=5 @t

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARBTT  ARETT ARBTR ARETRL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - -
R-E—mME+-—_B=+—HEK = The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
—=F+=H= Jrf B &£ EE value as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.
fARAREAECERAR

HE-_ZT—NWE+—-_A=+—HIt&E During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no
E MEARBEINERE—FEE T transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
R REE =L SR N 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

%o
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EEREEEERBKE 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BOTETRI AEBEZETESH T A
BREATBEES RTERMBESUR
RPEPRFER - ZEEMITATES
RASEHEEESEMBES AKEN
BEZRHEMEMEEIAGE HINER
REEEEZBRBRR R ENERRK

AREBTETITETARS TE2EBHE
EHRERSL BNREEAKEZE
EEZEEREL -

AEESRMIAELAZTERRANE
R -SERR EERBERBES
R EFEeRZHMEABERRAEEL
MEIREAR - BRABRERN T X A
SEARMITAETAZ @t BREANUG
WKRMIRE2.4

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise convertible bonds, bank loans and
cash and short-term time deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
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38. HEREEREREE 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(%) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
F = @ i Interest rate risk
AEEMEY TS REE R 2 6 The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
AEBEZFERHAEHREX (BEFHEIZ rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt obligations
BTG BER—FRIBAEE Y (including the bank borrowings due to repayment after one year
RITEE)BB- which contain a repayment on demand clause) with floating

interest rates.

TRINENIRERK EAHE EMFE The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
TEZBERT AEBEBKRBAFEEF the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest
REBA @) s WRERE DI - rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s

profit before tax.

RKE
Group
R Bt Al
= R,
THEY (R 2)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
decrease in in profit
basis points before tax
AR T T
RMB’000
—E-mF 2014
WA= 3R If interest rate increases +50 (2,244)
AR 2= T If interest rate decreases -50 2,244
—z—=f 2013
nF| & If interest rate increases +50 =
T =R If interest rate decreases -50 =
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38. IBEMEEEFERBXK 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#&)

ShEE L B

AEEEHRZZEERR %% =R R
B#EE -AKEN78% (T —=4F:
81% ) $H & ASNEE SHE - T 3F PAHETT 35
EZREBEMNYRHEERARKE K
SEEXTELEEMEREYEES
# LUHBREH R R EEE Y ZMNER

B o

AEE 2 BR B HIER 2 HIAER
HHOTETAEZFH  UESKRAYH
AR o

RZF—ME+ZA=+—H A%HE
I 4 R R IR B R T A R B AR IE 2 H)
BHERE (- T — =4 : 60,000,000
JT) °

TRINTRBEHR  EAREEMER
TEZERT A KBRS AR B
SNEERSBAIE B CHREDN
(HREBEERABZANERER
B e

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales. Approximately 78% (2013: 81%)
of the Group’s sales were denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currency of RMB of the operating
units making the sale. The Group requires the major operating
unit to use forward currency contracts to eliminate the foreign
currency exposures on the forecast future sales.

It is the Group’s policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise
the hedge effectiveness.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had hedged none (2013:
US$60,000,000) of its foreign currency sales for which firm
commitments existed at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

SPUSEE = HBRBL AT
EH T FMEzeeg
Increase/
decrease Effect on
in foreign profit
currency rate before tax
% ARBTT
% RMB’000
—E-—F 2014
i AR K E LA If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (63,836)
MARBHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 63,836
—E—=F 2013
MAREHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (369,999)
i AR HETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 369,999
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38.

212

KRB EEEBERBE
(#&)

EERR
AEBERNAREERFZF=TE
TR - AEBZHERMARRESR
HETRHZEP VAKRBEERE
TR R o LS 7N 5% B 455 4B B 5% B IROR
e EASEEH ZEZRRRY &
R-HRUFFNEELLEMLZEEE
BFHEZR S BIFEEEENHMIE
KRl BAAKELAEHRTEER
Ho

AEHEEMEREE (BREREERE
FEY ZRAER BREX CEMAF
o HfbEYRIBARETITAETA) Z
EERBRREXZHF RN MEAX&K
SEAREEFRZEFTAZKREE:

HRAEBRENZEEEERGTZE
—HETRS ARBEEAR -FE
SPRBEREF XU FEE -N®
FHR - AEEEETEESRER -
AXREEIBY (ZE—=F:17%) &
2% (ZEE—=F:89%) ERERD
RIREAREE AR RAARES -
BRASEZFERFYRTREL R
AT HEAEEEEY RAXKH
R AL AEEAZEEREEES
[, Bg2 o

ERASERABKERZEERR
E-FEBE RYBRRME21H

E‘go

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, entrusted loans,
structured deposits, pledged deposits, other receivables
and certain derivative instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 33% (2013: 17%)
and 92% (2013: 89%) of the Group’s trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. As the major customers of the
Group are all world-famous brand companies, which have
established a long-term business relationship with the Group,
concentrations of credit risk are well managed by the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
21 to the financial statements.
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MERRBEEEFERBE 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(%) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REBESER Liquidity risk
AEEFRBRADESTEITAELR The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
EoEmER - FEIAEEAGRT recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
BERxemEE (flnEIERER) 2 2 5 of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
BUREEEK 2BARERE - receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
RS ER IR E R L&A IR 3G The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
E - AEEeRmAGEZRBAEB RN the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
™ undiscounted payments, was as follows:
|
Group
“E-mE
2014
~EAZE
REX  SRAEA SWT=MEA -ERME REAL @t
6 to
Less than less than 1to2 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARMTT ARWMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETZ ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

LT ES Trade and bills payables 13,608 454,016 - - - 467,624
Hit R IR Other payables 311,667 - - - - 311,667
ER—2EEALT Amounts due to a related party - 1,860 - - - 1,860
mHkES Convertible bonds - 9,750 9,750 19,500 2,825,675 2,864,675
SFRREE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 1,865 - - 44,872 46,737
325,275 467,491 9,750 19,500 2,870,547 3,692,563
REE
Group
—T-=F
2013
~ERZE
REX  ORAER SRTZERA —EME REMN L @it
6to
Less than less than 1102 Qver
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LTV ES Trade and bills payables - 386,613 5,136 - = 391,749
H iR Other payables 268,669 - - - - 268,669

268,669 386,613 5,136 = = 660,418
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38. IBEMEEERERBEK 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REBESER (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
b N
Company
“E-mE
2014
~EAZE
REX  ORAEA SRTZEA -EZWE MENL Eh
6 to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARBTRT  ARMTR AREBTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ERER Other payables 1,222 = = = = 1,222
BB AR ZE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 1,248,234 - - - 1,248,234
nHRES Convertible bonds - 9,750 9,750 19500 2,825,675 2,864,675
1,222 1,257,984 9,750 19,500 2,825,675 4,114,131
NG|
Company
2013
~EAZE
BRER  SRAEAR SRTZfEA —EWE RE L £ &5t
6to
Less than less than 1to2 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARETT  ARETT AREBTRT ARETR ARETT ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ERHERRZE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 815,379 = = = 815,379
EAREE Capital management

AEEERER 2 FEHEEREER The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
SEBELE RN RERSRTERL to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
PR FAEEBRRBRREFNHEANE and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
(=R business and maximise shareholders’ value.
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38. IXEREEEERKEK 38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(%)

BREE (£Z)
NEBREBEERAZHERERAER
BEAREE REFIABRERERE K
EEAEAZRRARFIREN ZKRE WK
REEBEARETHIR - BE-F—
Ft+ZA=FT—HBERZ=ZZE—=F+=AH
= T—HBLEFE FHEEREAME
B BRI EEE -

AEBRBEAABLE (AEHKFR
BRERBRERIMERFRE) BERER A&
BFREBREFBRTEE RKER.
FERRR AR MR R - H A0 & 3008 M At
REANENBEEALRE RESR
ReFEM EXBRRAIRREBESEAN
NEER ARIGED B RHEE R
BEMR EXBBELEREOT:

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continueq)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, advances
from customers, trade and bills payables, other payables
and accruals, and amounts due to related parties, less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital includes convertible bonds and
equity attributable to owners of the Company less the hedging
reserve. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

xE

Group
—F-mF —F-=F
2014 2013
AR TR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 46,737 =
T8 U BR 5% Advances from customers = 14,095
AR R EE Trade and bills payables 467,624 391,749
H fth fE 518 R FERTFIE  Other payables and accruals 524,773 531,168
FE A3 A = 3KI8 Amounts due to related parties 1,860 =
BBHERBEEEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents (1,428,074) (2,609,050)
B F 5 Net debt (387,080) (1,672,038)
AR ES - aEHMm Convertible bonds, the liability component 2,864,675 =
RAFHEB AE(HER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 11,795,569 10,316,264
R Hedging reserve (9,363) 2,592
R S PN Adjusted capital 14,650,881 10,318,856
BARREEHE Capital and net debt 14,263,801 8,646,818
BEARBEL X Gearing ratio (8%) (19%)
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39. EEH A
R-T—me REBTIHGHRA
SEAZ—FHNERPE L BHA
EEREFBETHNERBEOER
SRITIE AR 2 BB R M 227 -

40. &IE
(a) KEHEAE
AEERBE A HHECEHELHE
HEEETHAZEMEREE

RZE—NOF+_A=+—H =&
EEREBETTREECLHEEN
ZARRKEHSLBNOT :

39. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
In 2014, the Group has entered into foreign currency swaps
contracts with terms ranging from three months to one year.
Details of the Group’s bank deposits, which are pledged for
certain foreign currency swaps held by the Group, are included
in note27 to the financial statements.

40. COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its office premises and plant
under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had total future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

rE
Group
—F-HmE —T=F
2014 2013
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 73,804 61,768
F_EFERF In the second to fifth years, inclusive
(RREERMF) 187,068 155,635
REFR After five years 149,819 125,656
410,691 343,059
(b) EXREE (b) Capital commitments
rE
Group
—2-mE —T=F
2014 2013
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EHESEE 3 Contracted, but not provided for:
BEME  KE R&EB Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 359,075 359,016
359,075 359,016
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40. &IE ()

(c) RXFREHIESH
RZE—NOF+_A=+—H =&
SEVEEARTERBIES
HEEE(ZE—=F :AN1E
A W H & LA60,000,0003 JT # B
# A R 365,820,0007T &9 3= Hi 51
EAGH) -

41. SREE
AR B R AR BTG IRE B

40. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(c) Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no
commitments in respect of outstanding forward foreign
exchange contracts (2013: to sell forward foreign
exchange contracts of US$60,000,000 for approximately
RMB365,820,000 within one month).

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not

ZHARBENOT provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
PN b
Group Company
“E-mE —ET-=f  ZE-@mF —T-—=-%
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTRT ARBTT | ARBTR AR%Tn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HETUTALH Guarantees given to banks in:
HEEEEE mRT connection with facilities granted to:
fEH 2 ER:
—RKB AR a subsidiary - = 238,641 =
- - 238,641 -

RZTE—MFEF+_A=+—H —H4F
BB AREARRRRITREERT
ERMETEEEHREFHARE
46,737,413 (ZE—=F:F) o

2. BEATRS
(a) AEMITEBABZHS

As at 31 December 2014, the banking facilities granted
to a subsidiary subject to guarantees given to banks by
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
RMB46,737,413 (2013: Nil).

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group
AEE
Group
—E-—MFE —FT—=
2014 2013
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EENEREREAEME Remuneration of directors and

senior management 23,287 17,514

BREERERITBRAERFHEZ
E—THBENM I RKRMES

Further details of the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.
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42. BBEAXTRS (&)
(b) HEEALZXS
BE

SRAFBHRREMBAFRZR
AEBERNFAEHEBEAL

29
ETTIINERR S

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead)
(b) Transactions with related parties
Continuing
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

rE
Group
—E-MF —T-=F
2014 2013
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERRMNEEBRAR Lease of property, plant and
(TEMEZE]) - HEME - equipment from Ningbo Shenzhou
B K & Properties Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Properties”)* 9,851 7,262
=R RNt BB AR AR Processing services provided
(TERMNtEE]) by Ningbo Shenzhou Shitong
M2 TR Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou
Shitong”)* 13,995 13,064
M) 43 B 8% 2= 7 B 8 fh B PR 2 &) Purchase of packing materials from
(IEmpEmaall) Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
KB EYHR Materials Company Limited
(“Huaxi Packaging Company”)** 43,516 42,389
* BNE SRRt BEANA R — * Shenzhou Properties and Shenzhou Shitong are controlled
BMITE SIS by one of the Company’s executive directors.

o EEAERA
BTH B2 B -

ABZEALZREREETDRE
BRARMEXZEPEMH#HZA

FEE M IGRETT -
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Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of
one of the Company’s executive directors.

The purchase and lease from the related parties were
made according to the published prices and conditions
offered by the related companies to their major
customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

—“E-NE+=-F=+—H 31 December 2014

42 BEAXTRF (&)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) EEBEATZRERL (c) Outstanding balance with a related party
AEEHREBEBEATAUTEX The Group had the following significant balance with its
R related party:

rEE

Group
—E-mEF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR®BT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

FERTBEE A 5B Amount due to a related party
—HE5HE: - Trade related:

ERBRRBRA Huaxi Packaging Company 1,860 =
1,860 -

43. #tEMBRR

EZgN_T-RF=-A-tHAH#E

b 354 T3 B S K

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2015.
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Financial Information Summary

(BRBETRIN FFELBEUARETTIIR)  (Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

AEERBEAMBGHERABEERENER
EFBFEZEAMEEUAREE BER
DHBEREREEEIMT

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+t-A=+-BLEE R+t=A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-QmE —T—= —E--F ZE——F ZE-%F
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
AREBTRT AREBETT ARETT ARETT AR®BTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E Results
KA Revenue 11,131,532 10,047,217 8,937,578 9,043,442 6,719,172
BMERA Finance costs (46,442) (10,010) (29,987) (51,243) (35,837)
B 5 BT AR Profit before tax 2,543,347 2,201,209 2,005,465 2,059,420 1,624,597
TR X Income tax expense (476,717) (397,297) (383,985) (354,573) (351,952)
FE Profit for the year 2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847 1,272,645
ATALTREHRER: Attributable to:
BAREB A Owners of the parent 2,065,867 1,802,989 1,620,158 1,703,845 1,271,654
FEPE I 1 e 2 Non-controlling interests 763 923 1,322 1,002 991
2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847 1,272,645
EE BEBR Assets, Liabilities and
FEFI M ER Non-controlling
Interests
BEE Total assets 15,943,028 11,317,274 9,895,409 8,549,559 7,425,455
BEE Total liabilities (4,131,702) (985,617)  (1,773,275)  (2,437,331)  (2,612,184)
FEPE I 1 2 Non-controlling interests (15,757) (15,393) (34,764) (33,999) (18,739)
11,795,569 10,316,264 8,087,370 6,078,229 4,799,532

 AEBBE—T =K== NF+=A
=+ BIMEFESFZLEEEE UK
RZBE—=FR=-Z—NE+=-A=+—H
ZERB AR - BE I 1 e BN B 7% R
FKE102HEEFE2198 FTH & ©

Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended
31 December 2013 and 2014 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 December 2013
and 2014 are those set out on pages 102 to 219 of the financial
statements.
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SHENZHOU INTERNATIONAL
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
thilll @B Ex @R B IR 2 o)

Headquarter ##%

18 Yongjiang Road
Ningbo Economic and Technical
Development Zone
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, PRC

h T B R
EREERNARE
BT 188

Tel E5%: (86) 574 8698 0102
Fax {8E: (86) 574 8698 0162

Hong Kong Representative Office

FEENEE

Unit 2708, 27th Floor
Billion Plaza

8 Cheung Yue Street
Kowloon, Hong Kong

FBNERMNHSR
BEREIS27IE2708E

Tel BE: (852) 2310 4919
Fax 8E: (852) 2310 4929

Shanghai Representative Office

L BREE

26th Floor You Yi Time Building
159 Zhao Jia Bang Road

Xu Hui District

Shanghai, PRC

PE EBIRER

BB 15997
EERERRKRE264

Tel B5E: (86) 21 6403 1166
Fax {SE: (86) 21 5496 0947
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